
ANNUAL
REPORT2022-23

th34



IMPORTANT COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green 
Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by allowing 
paperless compliances by the companies and has issued 
circulars stating that service of notice / documents 
including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its 
members. To support this green initiative of the 
Government in full measure, members who have not 
registered their e-mail addresses, so far, are requested to 
register their e-mail addresses, in respects of electronic 
holding with the Depository through their concerned 
Depository Participants.
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NOTICE OF 34TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(CIN: L17110GJ1988PLC010504)

NOTICE is hereby given that the 34TH Annual General Mee琀椀ng of the Members of AARVEE DENIMS AND 

EXPORTS LIMITED will be held on Saturday, 30th September 2023 at 11:00 A.M. through video conferencing 
mode (VC)/Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business. The venue of the mee琀椀ng 
shall be deemed to be the Registered O昀케ce of the Company at 191, Shahwadi, Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol - 
Sarkhej Highway, Narol, Ahmedabad - 382 405

ORDINARY BUSINESS:-
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 

2023 including audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, Statement of Pro昀椀t & Loss and Cash 昀氀ow 
statement for the year ended on that date and the report of the Auditors and Directors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Nipun V Arora, (DIN: 00989835) who re琀椀res by rota琀椀on and being 
eligible, o昀昀ers himself for reappointment;

SPECIAL BUSINESS:-
3. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. VINOD P. ARORA AS CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

To consider and, if thought 昀椀t, to pass, with or without modi昀椀ca琀椀on(s), following resolu琀椀on(s) as Special 

Resolu琀椀on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommenda琀椀on of Nomina琀椀on and Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee and 
pursuant to the provisions of Sec琀椀ons 196,197,198,203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or re-enactment thereof for the 琀椀me being 
in force, read with Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
including Schedule V to the said Act, the members of the Company hereby approve, the reappointment 
of Mr. Vinod P. Arora, (holding DIN 00007065) as Chairman & Managing Director, for a period of 昀椀ve 
years commencing from 1st October, 2023 to 30th September,2028 to an amount the details of which are 
given in the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the absence of or inadequacy of pro昀椀ts in any 昀椀nancial year during his 
tenure of o昀케ce, the said remunera琀椀on will be paid as minimum remunera琀椀on to Mr. Vinod P. Arora, 
Chairman and Managing Director of the Company subject to Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
such other amount as may be provided in the said Schedule V as may be amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me or 
any equivalent statutory re-enactment(s) thereof.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Commi琀琀ee thereof be and 
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as in its absolute discre琀椀on it may think 
necessary, expedient or desirable and to se琀琀le any ques琀椀on or doubt that may arises in rela琀椀on thereto 
in order to give e昀昀ect to the forgoing resolu琀椀on and to amend, alter or otherwise vary the terms and 
condi琀椀ons of appointment of Mr. Vinod P. Arora, including his remunera琀椀on provided such remunera琀椀on 
does not exceeds limits prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and any Statutory 
modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or re-enactment thereof or any other guidelines rela琀椀ng to managerial remunera琀椀on as 
may be no琀椀昀椀ed by the Government of India from 琀椀me to 琀椀me as may be considered by it to be in the 
best interest of the Company.”

4. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. ASHISH V. SHAH AS MANAGING DIRECTOR
To consider and, if thought 昀椀t, to pass, with or without modi昀椀ca琀椀on(s), following resolu琀椀on(s) as Special 
Resolu琀椀on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommenda琀椀on of Nomina琀椀on and Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee and 
pursuant to the provisions of Sec琀椀ons 196,197,198,203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
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Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or re-enactment thereof for the 琀椀me being 
in force, read with Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
including Schedule V to the said Act, the members of the Company hereby approve, the reappointment of 
Mr. Ashish V. Shah, (holding DIN 00007201) as Managing Director, for a period of 昀椀ve years commencing 
from 1st October, 2023 to 30th September,,2028 to an amount the details of which are given in the 
Explanatory Statement annexed hereto.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the event of loss or inadequacy of pro昀椀ts in any 昀椀nancial year of the 
Company during the term of Mr. Ashish V. Shah, o昀케ce as Managing Director, the remunera琀椀on set 
out in the aforesaid resolu琀椀on of appointment be paid or granted to Mr. Ashish V. Shah, as minimum 
remunera琀椀on provided that the total remunera琀椀on by way of salary and other allowances shall not 
exceed the ceiling provided in Sec琀椀on II of Part II of Schedule V to the said Act or such other amount 
as may be provided in the said Schedule V as may be amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me or any equivalent 
statutory re-enactment(s) thereof.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Commi琀琀ee thereof be and 
is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as in its absolute discre琀椀on it may think 
necessary, expedient or desirable and to se琀琀le any ques琀椀on or doubt that may arises in rela琀椀on thereto 
in order to give e昀昀ect to the forgoing resolu琀椀on and to amend, alter or otherwise vary the terms and 
condi琀椀ons of appointment of Mr. Ashish V. Shah, including his remunera琀椀on provided such remunera琀椀on 
does not exceeds limits prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and any Statutory 
modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or re-enactment thereof or any other guidelines rela琀椀ng to managerial remunera琀椀on as 
may be no琀椀昀椀ed by the Government of India from 琀椀me to 琀椀me as may be considered by it to be in the 
best interest of the Company.”

5. RE-APPOINTMENT OF MR. KALPESH V. SHAH AS WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR
To consider and, if thought 昀椀t, to pass, with or without modi昀椀ca琀椀on(s), following resolu琀椀on(s) as Special 

Resolu琀椀on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to recommenda琀椀on of Nomina琀椀on and Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee and 
pursuant to the provisions of Sec琀椀ons 196,197,198,203 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or re-enactment thereof for the 琀椀me being 
in force, read with Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
including Schedule V to the said Act, the members of the Company hereby approve, the reappointment 
of Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, (holding DIN 00007262) as Whole Time Director, for a period of 昀椀ve years 
commencing from 1st October, 2023 to 30th September,2028 to an amount the details of which are given 
in the Explanatory Statement annexed hereto.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the absence of or inadequacy of pro昀椀ts in any 昀椀nancial year during his 
tenure of o昀케ce, the said remunera琀椀on will be paid as minimum remunera琀椀on to Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, 
Whole Time Director of the Company subject to Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or such other 
amount as may be provided in the said Schedule V as may be amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me or any 
equivalent statutory re-enactment(s) thereof.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any Commi琀琀ee thereof be and is 
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as in its absolute discre琀椀on it may think necessary, 
expedient or desirable and to se琀琀le any ques琀椀on or doubt that may arises in rela琀椀on thereto in order 
to give e昀昀ect to the forgoing resolu琀椀on and to amend, alter or otherwise vary the terms and condi琀椀ons 
of appointment of Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, including his remunera琀椀on provided such remunera琀椀on does 
not exceeds limits prescribed under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and any Statutory 
modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or re-enactment thereof or any other guidelines rela琀椀ng to managerial remunera琀椀on as 
may be no琀椀昀椀ed by the Government of India from 琀椀me to 琀椀me as may be considered by it to be in the 
best interest of the Company.”
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6. TO APPROVE COST AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

To consider and if thought 昀椀t, to pass, with or without modi昀椀ca琀椀on(s), following resolu琀椀on as an 
Ordinary Resolu琀椀on:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sec琀椀on 148 and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory 
modi昀椀ca琀椀on(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the 琀椀me being in force), M/s. N. D. Birla & Co., Cost 
Accountants (Firm Registra琀椀on Number - 000028), appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company 
to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the 昀椀nancial year ending 31st March, 2023, 
be paid the remunera琀椀on of ` 60,000/- (Rupees Sixty Thousand only/-) plus Goods and service tax (GST) 
and out of pocket expenses, if any, incurred during the course of above audit.”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT for the purpose of giving e昀昀ect to this resolu琀椀on, the Key Managerial 
Personnel or any director of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, 
deeds, ma琀琀ers and things as they may deem 昀椀t.”

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Vinod P Arora
Place: Ahmedabad Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 28.08.2023 DIN: 00007065 

Registered o昀케ce:
191, Shahwadi,
Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol - Sarkhej Highway, Narol, Ahmedabad - 382 405
CIN: L17110GJ1988PLC010504

NOTES:

1. The Explanatory Statement, pursuant to Sec琀椀on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the 
businesses under Item No. 3 to 6 of the accompanying no琀椀ce is annexed hereto. The relevant details of 
the persons seeking appointment / re-appointment as Director are also annexed to this No琀椀ce.

2. The Ministry of Corporate A昀昀airs, Government of India (“MCA”) has vide its General Circular 14/2020 
dated April 08, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No. 20/2020 
dated May 05, 2020, General Circular No.02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, General Circular No. 2/2022 
dated May 05, 2022 and General Circular No.10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 (collec琀椀vely referred 
to as “MCA Circulars”) permi琀琀ed the holding of the Annual General Mee琀椀ng (“AGM” or “Mee琀椀ng”) 
through Video Conferencing facility/ Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM”) without the physical 
presence of the Members at a common venue. Accordingly, the 34th AGM of the Company is being held 
through VC/OAVM.

Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) vide its circular no. circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1 
CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020, SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 
15, 2021, SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022 and SEBI Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 provided relaxa琀椀on from Regula琀椀on 36 
(1) (b) of SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons 2015 (“LODR Regula琀椀ons”) 
regarding sending hard copy of annual report containing salient features of all the documents prescribed 
under Sec琀椀on 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the shareholders who have not registered their email 
addresses and also dispensed with the requirement of sending proxy forms under Regula琀椀on 44(4) of the 
LODR Regula琀椀ons 琀椀ll September 30, 2023 in case of Annual General Mee琀椀ngs held through electronic 
mode only.
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3. In line with the Ministry of Corporate A昀昀airs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the 
No琀椀ce calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.aarveedenims.com. 
The No琀椀ce can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges (BSE and NSE) and the AGM 
No琀椀ce is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Vo琀椀ng facility) i.e. 
www.evo琀椀ng.nsdl.com/

4. The a琀琀endance of the Members a琀琀ending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose 
of reckoning the quorum under Sec琀椀on 103 of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Corporate Members are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of its Board or governing 
body Resolu琀椀on / Authoriza琀椀on, etc., authorizing its representa琀椀ve to a琀琀end the AGM through VC / 
OAVM on its 34th Annual Report 2022-23 behalf and to vote through remote e-vo琀椀ng to the M/s. Link 
In琀椀me India Private Limited, the Registrar and Transfer Agent, by email through its registered email 
address to rnt.helpdesk@linkin琀椀me.co.in or cs@aarveedenims.com.

6. Since the AGM is being held through VC /OAVM in accordance with the aforesaid Circulars, the facility 
to appoint proxy to a琀琀end and cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM and hence 
the Proxy Form, A琀琀endance Slip and Route Map are not annexed to this No琀椀ce. However, the Body 
Corporates are en琀椀tled to appoint authorised representa琀椀ves to a琀琀end the AGM through VC/OAVM 
and par琀椀cipate thereat and cast their votes through e-vo琀椀ng.

7. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to in琀椀mate any change of address and / or 
bank mandate to Link In琀椀me India Pvt. Ltd. or Secretarial Department of the Company immediately. 
In case shares held in dematerialized form, the informa琀椀on regarding change of address and bank 
par琀椀culars should be given to their respec琀椀ve Depository Par琀椀cipant.

8. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under 
Sec琀椀on 170 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the 
Directors are interested under Sec琀椀on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents 
referred to in the No琀椀ce will be available for inspec琀椀on in electronic mode.

9. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a昀琀er the scheduled 
琀椀me of the commencement of the Mee琀椀ng by following the procedure men琀椀oned in the No琀椀ce. 
The facility of par琀椀cipa琀椀on at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members 
on 昀椀rst come 昀椀rst served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% 
or more shareholding), Promoters, Ins琀椀tu琀椀onal Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Commi琀琀ee, Nomina琀椀on and Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee and Stakeholders 
Rela琀椀onship Commi琀琀ee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to a琀琀end the AGM without restric琀椀on on 
account of 昀椀rst come 昀椀rst served basis.

10. Pursuant to the provisions of Sec琀椀on 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administra琀椀on) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regula琀椀on 44 of SEBI 
(Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons & Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate A昀昀airs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 
the Company is providing facility of remote e-vo琀椀ng to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with Na琀椀onal 
Securi琀椀es Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilita琀椀ng vo琀椀ng through electronic means, as the authorized 
agency. The facility of cas琀椀ng votes by a member using remote e-vo琀椀ng system as well as venue vo琀椀ng 
on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL.

11. No琀椀ce of AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to 
those members whose email addresses are registered with Company, its Registrar and Transfer Agent 
or CDSL/NSDL (“Depositories”).

http://www.aarveedenims.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in
mailto:cs@aarvee-denims.com
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12. For members who have not registered their email address and holding shares in physical mode, can 
get their email id registered in the system by wri琀椀ng to cs@aarveedenims.com along with scanned 
signed request le琀琀er men琀椀oning the name and address of the Member, self-a琀琀ested copy of the 
PAN card, and self-a琀琀ested copy of any o昀케cially valid document (OVD) (eg.: Driving License, Elec琀椀on 
Iden琀椀ty Card, Passport, Aadhar) in support of the address of the Member. Members holding shares 
in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update their email addresses with the relevant 
Depository Par琀椀cipants.

13. The members are requested to send all their communica琀椀ons to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 
M/s Link In琀椀me India Private Limited, 506 TO 508, Amarnath Business Centre – 1, Beside Gala Business 
Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner, o昀昀, Chimanlal Girdharlal Rd, Sardar Patel Nagar, Ellisbridge, 
Ahmedabad, Gujarat 380006 or at the Share Division o昀케ce of the Company at 191, Moje Shahwadi, 
Narol – Sarkhej Highway, Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol, Ahmedabad – 382 405. Gujarat, India.

14. Brief resumes of Directors including those proposed to be appointed /re-appointed, nature of their 
exper琀椀se in speci昀椀c func琀椀onal areas, names of companies in which they hold directorships and 
memberships/chairmanships of Board Commi琀琀ees, shareholding and rela琀椀onships between directors 
inter-se as s琀椀pulated under Regula琀椀on 36 of SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons And Disclosure Requirements) 
Regula琀椀ons, 2015, are provided in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of the Annual 
Report and also enclosed with this no琀椀ce.

15. In case of joint holders a琀琀ending the Mee琀椀ng, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of 
names will be en琀椀tled to vote.

16. As per Rule 5 of Investor Educa琀椀on and Protec琀椀on Fund (Accoun琀椀ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016 (“IEPF Rules”), informa琀椀on containing the names and the last known addresses of the 
persons en琀椀tled to receive the sums lying in the account referred to in Sec琀椀on 125 (2) of the Act, 
nature of amount, the amount to which each person is en琀椀tled, due date for transfer to IEPF fund, etc 
is provided by the Company on its website and on the website of the IEPF. The concerned members 
are requested to verify the details of their unclaimed dividend, if any, from the said websites and 
lodge their claim with the Company’s RTA or with the Company, before the unclaimed dividends are 
transferred to the IEPF. The members, whose unclaimed dividends/shares have been transferred to 
IEPF, may claim the same by making an applica琀椀on to the IEPF Authority in form no. IEPF-5 available on 
www.iepf.gov.in.

17. Members can avail of the facility of nomina琀椀on in respect of shares held by them in physical form 
pursuant to Sec琀椀on 72 of the Companies Act, 2013. Members desiring to avail this facility may send 
their nomina琀椀on in the prescribed Form SH 13 in duplicate, duly 昀椀lled in, to the RTA at the address 
men琀椀oned in the Notes. The prescribed form in this regard may also be obtained from the RTA at the 
address men琀椀oned in the Notes. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to contact 
their Depository Par琀椀cipants directly for recording their nomina琀椀on.

18. The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account 
Number (PAN) by every par琀椀cipant in securi琀椀es market. Holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, 
requested to submit their PAN to their depository par琀椀cipant with whom they are maintaining their 
demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to Company or RTA.

19. In terms of the SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements), Regula琀椀ons, 2015 securi琀椀es of 
listed companies can only be transferred in dematerialized form with e昀昀ect from 1st April, 2019. In view 
of the above, members are advised to dematerialize shares held by them in physical form.

20. For any communica琀椀on, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s investor email id: 
cs@aarveedenims.com.

mailto:cs@aarveedenims.com%20
http://www.iepf.gov.in/
mailto:cs@aarveedenims.com.
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-
The remote e-vo琀椀ng period begins on Wednesday, 27th September 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Friday, 
29th September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-vo琀椀ng module shall be disabled by NSDL for vo琀椀ng 
therea昀琀er. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Bene昀椀cial Owners as on the 
record date (cut-o昀昀 date) i.e. 22nd September 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The vo琀椀ng right of 
shareholders shall be in propor琀椀on to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on 
the cut-o昀昀 date, being. 22nd September 2023.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Vo琀椀ng system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Vo琀椀ng system consists of “Two Steps” which are men琀椀oned below:

STEP 1: ACCESS TO NSDL E-VOTING SYSTEM
A) Login method for e-Vo琀椀ng and joining virtual mee琀椀ng for Individual shareholders holding 

securi琀椀es in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo琀椀ng facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securi琀椀es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Par琀椀cipants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Vo琀椀ng facility.

 Login method for Individual shareholders holding securi琀椀es in demat mode is given below:

Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders 
holding securi琀椀es in 
demat mode with 
NSDL.

1. If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit 
the e-Services web- site of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: h琀琀ps://eservices.nsdl. com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Services is 
launched, click on the “Bene昀椀cial Owner” icon under “Login” which 
is available under “IDeAS” sec琀椀on. A new screen will open.

You will have to enter your User ID and Password. A昀琀er successful 
authen琀椀ca琀椀on, you will be able to see e-Vo琀椀ng services. Click on 
“Access to e-Vo琀椀ng” under e-Vo琀椀ng services and you will be able 
to see e-Vo琀椀ng page. Click on op琀椀ons available against company 
name or e-Vo琀椀ng service provider - NSDL and you will be re-directed 
to NSDL e-Vo琀椀ng website for cas琀椀ng your vote during the remote 
e-Vo琀椀ng period or joining virtual mee琀椀ng & vo琀椀ng during the 
mee琀椀ng.

2. If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, op琀椀on to register 
is available at h琀琀ps://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online 
for IDeAS” Portal or click at h琀琀ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/
IdeasDirectReg.jsp

https://eservices.nsdl
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
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Type of shareholders Login Method
3. Visit the e-Vo琀椀ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: h琀琀ps://www.evo琀椀ng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Vo琀椀ng system 
is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ sec琀椀on. A new screen will open. You will 
have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 
number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Veri昀椀ca琀椀on Code as 
shown on the screen. A昀琀er successful authen琀椀ca琀椀on, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Vo琀椀ng 
page. Click on company name or e-Vo琀椀ng service provider i.e. NSDL 
and you will be redirected to e-Vo琀椀ng website of NSDL for cas琀椀ng 
your vote during the remote e-Vo琀椀ng period or joining virtual 
mee琀椀ng & vo琀椀ng during the mee琀椀ng

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code men琀椀oned below 
for seamless vo琀椀ng experience.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi琀椀es in 
demat mode with CDSL

1. Exis琀椀ng users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Op琀椀on will be made available 
to reach e-Vo琀椀ng page without any further authen琀椀ca琀椀on. The 
URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are h琀琀ps://web. cdslindia.
com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com and click on 
New System Myeasi.

2. A昀琀er successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 
see the E Vo琀椀ng Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Vo琀椀ng service 
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op琀椀on to register is 
available at h琀琀ps:// web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registra琀椀on/
EasiRegistra琀椀on

4. Alterna琀椀vely, the user can directly access e-Vo琀椀ng page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in www.
cdslindia.com home page. The system will authen琀椀cate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat 
Account. A昀琀er successful authen琀椀ca琀椀on, user will be provided links 
for the respec琀椀ve ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Vo琀椀ng is in progress.

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Type of shareholders Login Method
Individual Shareholders 
(holding securi琀椀es 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
depository par琀椀cipants

1. You can also login using the login creden琀椀als of your demat account 
through your Depository Par琀椀cipant registered with NSDL/CDSL for 
e-Vo琀椀ng facility. Once login, you will be able to see e-Vo琀椀ng op琀椀on. 
Once you click on e-Vo琀椀ng op琀椀on, you will be redirected to NSDL/
CDSL Depository site a昀琀er successful authen琀椀ca琀椀on, wherein 
you can see e-Vo琀椀ng feature. Click on op琀椀ons available against 
company name or e-Vo琀椀ng service provider-NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Vo琀椀ng website of NSDL for cas琀椀ng your vote during 
the remote e-Vo琀椀ng period or joining virtual mee琀椀ng & vo琀椀ng 
during the mee琀椀ng.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User 
ID and Forget Password op琀椀on available at abovemen琀椀oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi琀椀es in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi琀椀es in 
demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk 
by sending a re- quest at evo琀椀ng@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 
1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30

Individual Shareholders 
holding securi琀椀es in 
demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk 
by sending a re- quest at helpdesk.evo琀椀ng@cdslindia.com or contact at 
022- 23058738 or 022-23058542- 43

B) Login Method for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securi琀椀es in demat mode 
and shareholders holding securi琀椀es in physical mode.

 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Vo琀椀ng website?

1. Visit the e-Vo琀椀ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: h琀琀ps://www.
evo琀椀ng.nsdl. com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Vo琀椀ng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Sharehold- er/Member’ sec琀椀on.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Veri昀椀ca琀椀on 
Code as shown on the screen.

Alterna琀椀vely, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at h琀琀ps://eservices.
nsdl.com/ with your exis琀椀ng IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices a昀琀er using your log-in 
creden琀椀als, click on e-Vo琀椀ng and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl/
http://www.evoting.nsdl/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a)  For Members who hold 
shares in demat account with 
NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID For 
example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 
12****** then your user ID is IN300***12******.

b)  For Members who hold 
shares in demat account with 
CDSL.

16 Digit Bene昀椀ciary ID For example if your Bene昀椀ciary 
ID is 12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c)  For Members holding shares 
in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with 
the company For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Vo琀椀ng, then you can user your exis琀椀ng password to login 
and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Vo琀椀ng system for the 昀椀rst 琀椀me, you will need to retrieve the ‘ini琀椀al 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘ini琀椀al password’, you 
need to enter the ‘ini琀椀al password’ and the system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘ini琀椀al password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘ini琀椀al 
password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the a琀琀achment i.e. a .pdf 昀椀le. 
Open the .pdf 昀椀le. The password to open the .pdf 昀椀le is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in 
physical form. The .pdf 昀椀le contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘ini琀椀al password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps men琀椀oned below in process for 
those shareholders whose email ids are not registered

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Ini琀椀al password” or have 
forgo琀琀en your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 
with NSDL or CDSL) op琀椀on available on www.evo琀椀ng.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) op琀椀on available 
on www.evo琀椀ng. nsdl.com.

c) If you are s琀椀ll unable to get the password by aforesaid two op琀椀ons, you can send a request 
at evo琀椀ng@nsdl.co.in men琀椀oning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, 
your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for cas琀椀ng the votes on the 
e-Vo琀椀ng system of NSDL.

7. A昀琀er entering your password, 琀椀ck on Agree to “Terms and Condi琀椀ons” by selec琀椀ng 
on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” bu琀琀on.

9. A昀琀er you click on the “Login” bu琀琀on, Home page of e-Vo琀椀ng will open.

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Mee琀椀ng on NSDL e-Vo琀椀ng system.
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Mee琀椀ng on NSDL e-Vo琀椀ng system?
1. A昀琀er successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are 

holding shares and whose vo琀椀ng cycle and General Mee琀椀ng is in ac琀椀ve status.

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Vo琀椀ng period and 
cas琀椀ng your vote during the General Mee琀椀ng. For joining virtual mee琀椀ng, you need to click on “VC/
OAVM” link placed under “Join General Mee琀椀ng”.

3. Now you are ready for e-Vo琀椀ng as the Vo琀椀ng page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selec琀椀ng appropriate op琀椀ons i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of 
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Con昀椀rm” when prompted.

5. Upon con昀椀rma琀椀on, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print op琀椀on on the 
con昀椀rma琀椀on page.

7. Once you con昀椀rm your vote on the resolu琀椀on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders
1. Ins琀椀tu琀椀onal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 

(PDF/JPG For- mat) of the relevant Board Resolu琀椀on/ Authority le琀琀er etc. with a琀琀ested specimen 
signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scru琀椀nizer by e-mail 
to tapanshah814@yahoo.com with a copy marked to evo琀椀ng@nsdl.co.in.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your pass- word con昀椀den琀椀al. Login to the e-vo琀椀ng website will be disabled upon 昀椀ve unsuccessful 
a琀琀empts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” op琀椀on available on www.evo琀椀ng.nsdl.com to 

reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Ques琀椀ons (FAQs) for Shareholders and 
e-vo琀椀ng user manual for Shareholders available at the download sec琀椀on of www.evo琀椀ng.nsdl.
com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 or send a request to Mr. Ishu Tayal at 
evo琀椀ng@nsdl.co.in

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user 
id and password and registra琀椀on of e mail ids for e-vo琀椀ng for the resolu琀椀ons set out in this no琀椀ce:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy 
of the share cer琀椀昀椀cate (front and back), PAN (self a琀琀ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
a琀琀ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@aarveedenims.com

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit 
bene昀椀ciary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self a琀琀ested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self a琀琀ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@aarveedenims.
com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securi琀椀es in demat mode, you are requested to refer 
to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Vo琀椀ng and joining virtual mee琀椀ng 
for Individual shareholders holding securi琀椀es in demat mode.

3. Alterna琀椀vely shareholder/members may send a request to evo琀椀ng@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id 
and password for e-vo琀椀ng by providing above men琀椀oned documents.

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo琀椀ng facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securi琀椀es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 

mailto:tapanshah814@yahoo.com%20
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:cs@aarveedenims.com 
mailto:grievance@transcorpint.com
mailto:grievance@transcorpint.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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account maintained with Depositories and Depository Par琀椀cipants. Shareholders are required 
to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access 
e-Vo琀椀ng facility.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-
1. The procedure for e-Vo琀椀ng on the day of the AGM is same as the instruc琀椀ons men琀椀oned above for 

remote e-vo琀椀ng.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and 
have not casted their vote on the Resolu琀椀ons through remote e-Vo琀椀ng and are otherwise not barred 
from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Vo琀椀ng system in the AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Vo琀椀ng will be eligible to a琀琀end the AGM. However, they 
will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for 
e-Vo琀椀ng on the day of the AGM shall be the same person men琀椀oned for Remote e-vo琀椀ng.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGHVC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Member will be provided with a facility to a琀琀end the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Vo琀椀ng system. Members may access by following the steps men琀椀oned above for Access to NSDL 
e-Vo琀椀ng system. A昀琀er successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General 
mee琀椀ng” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join 
General Mee琀椀ng menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/ Member login where 
the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and 
Password for e-Vo琀椀ng or have forgo琀琀en the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following 
the remote e-Vo琀椀ng instruc琀椀ons men琀椀oned in the no琀椀ce to avoid last minute rush.

2. Members are encouraged to join the Mee琀椀ng through Laptops for be琀琀er experience.

3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the mee琀椀ng.

4. Please note that Par琀椀cipants Connec琀椀ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connec琀椀ng via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctua琀椀on in their respec琀椀ve 
network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec琀椀on to mi琀椀gate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have ques琀椀ons may send their ques琀椀ons in 
advance men琀椀oning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (cs@
aarveedenims.com). The same will be replied by the company suitably.

OTHER INFORMATION:

o Your login id and password can be used by you exclusively for e-vo琀椀ng on the resolu琀椀ons placed by the 
companies in which you are the shareholder.

o It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep it con昀椀den琀椀al.

In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently Asked Ques琀椀ons (FAQs) for members and e-vo琀椀ng 
user manual for members available at the Downloads sec琀椀ons of h琀琀ps://www.evo琀椀ng.nsdl.com or contact 
NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800 1020 990.

I. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user pro昀椀le details of the folio which may 
be used for sending future communica琀椀on(s).

II. The vo琀椀ng rights of members shall be in propor琀椀on to their shares of the paid-up equity share capital 
of the Company as on the cut-o昀昀 date of 22nd September 2023

mailto:cs@aarveedenims.com
mailto:cs@aarveedenims.com
http://www.evoting.nsdl.comor/
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III. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company a昀琀er dispatch 
of the no琀椀ce and holding shares as of the cut-o昀昀 date i.e. 22nd September 2023 may obtain the login ID 
and password by sending a request at evo琀椀ng@nsdl.co.in.

IV. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-vo琀椀ng then you can use your exis琀椀ng 
user ID and pass- word for cas琀椀ng your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password 
by using “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” op琀椀on available on 
www.evo琀椀ng.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

V. A member may par琀椀cipate in the AGM even a昀琀er exercising his right to vote through remote e-vo琀椀ng 
but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.

VI. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of bene昀椀cial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-o昀昀 date only shall be en琀椀tled to avail the facility of remote 
e-vo琀椀ng as well as vo琀椀ng at the AGM through ballot paper.

VII. Mr. Tapan Shah, Company Secretary in Prac琀椀ce (having membership no. FCS: 4476 COP 2839) has been 
appointed for as the Scru琀椀nizer for providing facility to the members of the Company to scru琀椀nize the 
vo琀椀ng and remote e-vo琀椀ng process in a fair and transparent manner.

VIII. The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scru琀椀nizer shall be placed on the website of the 
Company www.Aarveedenims.com and on the website of NSDL immediately a昀琀er the declara琀椀on of 
result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in wri琀椀ng. The results shall also be immediately 
forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

As required by Sec琀椀on 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), following explanatory statement sets out all 
material facts rela琀椀ng to Special Business men琀椀oned in the accompanying No琀椀ce:

ITEM NO. 3:

Mr. Vinod P. Arora (DIN: 00007065) has been appointed as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company 
for the period of three years with e昀昀ect from 1st October, 2020. His tenure as Chairman & Managing Director 
will expire on 30th September, 2023. It is proposed to reappoint him as Chairman & Managing Director 
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,for a further period of 昀椀ve years with e昀昀ect from 1st 

October, 2023 琀椀ll 30th September,2028, upon terms and condi琀椀ons including remunera琀椀on as permissible 
pursuant to the provision of Sec琀椀ons 196, 197 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
Act, 2013, including any statutory modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or re-enactment thereof for the 琀椀me being in force, read 
with Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 including Schedule 
V to the said Act, and recommended by Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee as well as by the Board & subject to the 
approval of the members in General Mee琀椀ng.

Terms & condi琀椀ons of the reappointment of Mr. Vinod P. Arora, Chairman & Managing Director of the 
company are as follows:-

A) SALARY:

In the scale of upto ` 4,00,000/-p.m.

B) PERQUISITES (including allowances)
i) Housing: Furnished/Unfurnished residen琀椀al accommoda琀椀on or house rent allowance of sixty 

percent of salary in lieu thereof.

ii) The expenditure incurred by the company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be 
valued as per the Income -Tax Rules, 1962.

iii) Medical reimbursement: Expenses incurred for Mr. Vinod P. Arora and his family as 
per company rules.

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www/
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iv) Leave Travel Concession: For Mr. Vinod P. Arora and his family, incurred in accordance with 
the company rules.

v) Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and 
the life membership fees.

vi) Personal Accident Insurance: Premium as per company rules.

vii) Contribu琀椀on to Provident Fund, Superannua琀椀on Fund, Annuity Fund/Contribu琀椀on to Gratuity as 
per company rules.

viii) Encashment of leave not availed of, as per company rules.

ix) Provision of car and telephone as per company Rules.

x) Any other bene昀椀ts, ameni琀椀es and facili琀椀es including educa琀椀onal allowance for a child as per 
company rules for the 琀椀me being in force or authorised by the Board.

“Family” means spouse, dependent children and dependent parents of Mr. Vinod P. Arora.

C) MINIMUM REMUNERATION

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, wherein any 昀椀nancial year during the tenure 
of appointment of the Chairman & Managing Director, the company has no pro昀椀ts or its pro昀椀ts are 
inadequate, the Chairman & Managing Director shall be en琀椀tled to remunera琀椀on by way of salary and 
perquisites as provided in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. In addi琀椀on, the Chairman & Managing 
Director shall be en琀椀tled to the following perquisites which shall not be included in the computa琀椀on of 
the ceiling on minimum remunera琀椀on speci昀椀ed herein.

a. Contribu琀椀on to provident fund, superannua琀椀on fund or annuity funds to the extent these, either 
singly or put together, is not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b. Gratuity not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service and

c. Encashment of leave as per company rules.

d. Interest free loan up to ` 15 lacs repayable payable in maximum 60 installments.

e. Premium of Directors and o昀케cers liability Insurance policy.

This may also be treated as an abstract of the terms of Contract/Agreement of Mr. Vinod P. Arora as a 
Chairman & Managing Director of the company under the provision of Sec琀椀on 190 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

The Board recommends this Resolu琀椀on for approval of Members as Special Resolu琀椀on.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their rela琀椀ves are concerned or 
interested in the proposed resolu琀椀on except Mr. Nipun V Arora, Director of the Company being the 
rela琀椀ve of Mr. Vinod P Arora,deemed to be interested in reappointment of Mr. Vinod P Arora as the 
Chairman & Managing Director of the company

ITEM NO. 4

Mr. Ashish V. Shah (DIN: 00007201) has been appointed as Managing Director of the Company for the 
period of three years with e昀昀ect from 1st October, 2020. His tenure as Managing Director will expire on 30th 

September, 2023. It is proposed to reappoint him as Managing Director under the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013,for a further period of 昀椀ve years with e昀昀ect from 1st October, 2023 琀椀ll 30th September,2028, upon 
terms and condi琀椀ons including remunera琀椀on as permissible pursuant to the provision of Sec琀椀ons 196, 197 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or 
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re-enactment thereof for the 琀椀me being in force, read with Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 including Schedule V to the said Act, and recommended by Remunera琀椀on 
Commi琀琀ee as well as by the Board & subject to the approval of the members in General Mee琀椀ng.

Terms & condi琀椀ons of the reappointment of Mr. Ashish V. Shah, Managing Director of the company 
are as follows:-

A) SALARY:

In the scale of upto `3,00,000/-p.m.

B) PERQUISITES (including allowances)
i) Housing: Furnished/Unfurnished residen琀椀al accommoda琀椀on or house rent allowance of sixty 

percent of salary in lieu thereof.

ii) The expenditure incurred by the company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be 
valued as per the Income -Tax Rules, 1962.

iii) Medical reimbursement: Expenses incurred for Mr. Ashish V. Shah and his family as 
per company rules.

iv) Leave Travel Concession: For Mr. Ashish V. Shah, and his family, incurred in accordance with 
the company rules.

v) Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and 
the life membership fees.

vi) Personal Accident Insurance: Premium as per company rules.

vii) Contribu琀椀on to Provident Fund, Superannua琀椀on Fund, Annuity Fund/Contribu琀椀on to Gratuity as 
per company rules.

viii) Encashment of leave not availed of, as per company rules.

ix) Provision of car and telephone as per company Rules.

x) Any other bene昀椀ts, ameni琀椀es and facili琀椀es including educa琀椀onal allowance for a child as per 
company rules for the 琀椀me being in force or authorised by the Board.

xi) “Family” means spouse, dependent children and dependent parents of Mr. Ashish v. Shah.

C) MINIMUM REMUNERATION

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, wherein any 昀椀nancial year during the tenure 
of appointment of the Managing Director, the company has no pro昀椀ts or its pro昀椀ts are inadequate, 
the Managing Director shall be en琀椀tled to remunera琀椀on by way of salary and perquisites as provided 
in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. In addi琀椀on, the Managing Director shall be en琀椀tled to 
the following perquisites which shall not be included in the computa琀椀on of the ceiling on minimum 
remunera琀椀on speci昀椀ed herein.

a. Contribu琀椀on to provident fund, superannua琀椀on fund or annuity funds to the extent these, either 
singly or put together, is not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b. Gratuity not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service and

c. Encashment of leave as per company rules.

d. Interest free loan up to ` 15 lacs repayable payable in maximum 60 installments.

e. Premium of Directors and o昀케cers liability Insurance policy.
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This may also be treated as an abstract of the terms of Contract/Agreement of Mr. Ashish V. Shah as 
a Managing Director of the company under the provision of Sec琀椀on 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board recommends this Resolu琀椀on for approval of Members as Special Resolu琀椀on.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their rela琀椀ves are concerned or 
interested in the proposed resolu琀椀on except Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, Director of the Company being the 
rela琀椀ve of Mr. Ashish V. Shah, deemed to be interested in reappointment of Mr. Ashish V. Shah as the 
Managing Director of the company.

ITEM NO. 5

Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah has been appointed as Whole-琀椀me Director of the Company for the period of three 
years with e昀昀ect from 1st October, 2020. His tenure as Whole-琀椀me Director will expire on 30th September, 
2023. It is proposed to reappoint him as Whole-琀椀me Director under the new provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013,for a further period of 昀椀ve years with e昀昀ect from 1st October, 2023 琀椀ll 30th September,2028, upon 
terms and condi琀椀ons including remunera琀椀on as permissible pursuant to the provision of Sec琀椀ons 196, 197 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, including any statutory modi昀椀ca琀椀ons or 
re-enactment thereof for the 琀椀me being in force, read with Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 including Schedule V to the said Act, and recommended by Remunera琀椀on 
Commi琀琀ee as well as by the Board & subject to the approval of the members in General Mee琀椀ng.

Terms & condi琀椀ons of the reappointment of Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, Whole-琀椀me Director of the company 
are as follows:-

A) SALARY:

In the scale of upto `2,00,000/-p.m.

B) PERQUISITES (including allowances)
i) Housing: Furnished/Unfurnished residen琀椀al accommoda琀椀on or house rent allowance of sixty 

percent of salary in lieu thereof.

ii) The expenditure incurred by the company on gas, electricity, water and furnishings shall be 
valued as per the Income -Tax Rules, 1962.

iii) Medical reimbursement: Expenses incurred for Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah and his family as 
per company rules.

iv) Leave Travel Concession: For Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, and his family, incurred in accordance with 
the company rules.

v) Club Fees: Fees of clubs subject to a maximum of two clubs. This will not include admission and 
the life membership fees.

vi) Personal Accident Insurance: Premium as per company rules.

vii) Contribu琀椀on to Provident Fund, Superannua琀椀on Fund, Annuity Fund/Contribu琀椀on to Gratuity as 
per company rules.

viii) Encashment of leave not availed of, as per company rules.

ix) Provision of car and telephone as per company Rules.

x) Any other bene昀椀ts, ameni琀椀es and facili琀椀es including educa琀椀onal allowance for a child as per 
company rules for the 琀椀me being in force or authorised by the Board.

“Family” means spouse, dependent children and dependent parents of Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah.
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C) MINIMUM REMUNERATION

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, wherein any 昀椀nancial year during the tenure 
of appointment of the Whole-琀椀me Director, the company has no pro昀椀ts or its pro昀椀ts are inadequate, 
the Whole-琀椀me Director, shall be en琀椀tled to remunera琀椀on by way of salary and perquisites as provided 
in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013. In addi琀椀on, the Whole-琀椀me Director shall be en琀椀tled to 
the following perquisites which shall not be included in the computa琀椀on of the ceiling on minimum 
remunera琀椀on speci昀椀ed herein.

a. Contribu琀椀on to provident fund, superannua琀椀on fund or annuity funds to the extent these, either 
singly or put together, is not taxable under the Income Tax Act, 1961.

b. Gratuity not exceeding half a month’s salary for each completed year of service and

c. Encashment of leave as per company rules.

d. Interest free loan up to ` 15 lacs repayable payable in maximum 60 installments.

e. Premium of Directors and o昀케cers liability Insurance policy.

This may also be treated as an abstract of the terms of Contract/Agreement of Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah as 
an Whole-琀椀me Director of the company under the provision of Sec琀椀on 190 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Board recommends this Resolu琀椀on for approval of Members as Special Resolu琀椀on.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their rela琀椀ves is concerned or 
interested in the proposed resolu琀椀on except Mr. Ashish V. Shah, Managing Director of the Company 
being the rela琀椀ve of Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, deemed to be interested in reappointment of Mr. Kalpesh V. 
Shah as the Whole-琀椀me Director of the company.

ITEM NO. 6

The Board of Directors have approved appointment and remunera琀椀on of Cost Auditors to conduct audit of 
cost records of the Company for 昀椀nancial year ending 31st March, 2023 at a remunera琀椀on of ` 60,000/- plus 
GST and out of pocket expenses, if any, incurred during course of audit.

In accordance with provisions of Sec琀椀on 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014, remunera琀椀on payable to Cost Auditors has to be ra琀椀昀椀ed by shareholders of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolu琀椀on as set out at Item No. 3 of the 
No琀椀ce for ra琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on of remunera琀椀on payable to Cost Auditors for 昀椀nancial year ending 31st March, 2023.

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their rela琀椀ves are, in any way, concerned 
or interested, 昀椀nancially or otherwise, in resolu琀椀on set out at Item No. 3 of No琀椀ce.

The Board recommends Ordinary Resolu琀椀on set out at Item No. 3 of No琀椀ce for approval by the shareholders.

BY ORDER OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Vinod P Arora
Place: Ahmedabad Chairman and Managing Director
Date: 28.08.2023 DIN: 00007065 

Registered o昀케ce:
191, Shahwadi,
Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol - Sarkhej Highway, Narol, Ahmedabad - 382 405
CIN: L17110GJ1988PLC010504
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE 

FORTH COMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Annexure: Informa琀椀on about the appointee
[Pursuant to Regula琀椀on 36 (3) of the SEBI 

(Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons an Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015]

Name of 
Director

Mr. Nipun V. Shah Mr. Vinod P. Arora Mr. Ashish V. Shah Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah

DIN 00989835 00007065 00007201 00007262

Date of Birth 13-12-1974 15-05-1951 04-09-1958 23-09-1951

Date of 
Appointment

11-08-2018 01-10-2010 28-03-1988 01-10-2010

Rela琀椀onship with 
other Directors 
Inter se

Son of Mr. Vinod 
Arora, Chairman 
and Managing 
Director of the 
Company

Father of Mr. Nipun 
Arora, Whole 琀椀me 
Director of the 
Company

Brother of 
Mr. Kalpesh V. 
Shah, Whole Time 
Director

Brother of Mr. Ashish 
V. Shah, Managing 
Director

Pro昀椀le & 
Exper琀椀se 
in Speci昀椀c 
func琀椀onal Areas

He is responsible 
for administra琀椀on 
of the Company. 
His rich 
experience 
and knowledge 
has helped the 
Company to the 
great extent.

Mr. Vinod Arora is 
known by his rich 
experience in Denim 
since 1973 and the 
roaring success
in Arora Group as 
the marke琀椀ng
pioneers of Denim, 
is heading the Board 
as Chairman and
Managing Director.

Mr. Ashish V. 
Shah, commerce 
graduate, hails
from the VB Group 
(since 55 years), the 
forerunners
in tex琀椀le industry. 
He is also member 
of Ahmedabad 
Educa琀椀on Society

Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, 
another dynamic 
entrepreneur also 
hails from the VB 
Group which is a well-
known name in tex琀椀le 
trading since 55 years

Quali昀椀ca琀椀on Gradua琀椀on Gradua琀椀on Gradua琀椀on Gradua琀椀on

No. of Equity 
Shares held in 
the Company

334899 80000 541779 465300
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Name of 
Director

Mr. Nipun V. Shah Mr. Vinod P. Arora Mr. Ashish V. Shah Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah

List of other 
Companies 
in which 
Directorships are 
held

1.  Twenty First 
Century 
Marke琀椀ng 
Limited

2.  Enbee Tex琀椀les 
Private Limited

3.  Pee Vee 
Synthesis 
Private Limited

1.  Twenty First 
Century 
Marke琀椀ng Limited

2.  Rentex Weavers 
Limited,

3.  Aye Ess Spinning 
Mills Private Ltd

1.  V B Investment 
Pvt. Ltd.

2.  Kashvi 
Investment Pvt. 
Ltd.

3.  ATPA Swarmin 
Gujarat Enviro 
Pvt. Ltd.

4.  B A Shah Holdings 
Pvt Ltd

5.  Kashvi Holdings 
Pvt Ltd

6.  Vikalp Holdings 
Pvt Ltd

1.  V B Investment Pvt. 
Ltd.

2.  Kashvi Investment 
Pvt. Ltd.

3.  Vee Bee Tex琀椀le Pvt 
Ltd

4.  Aye Ess Spinning 
Mills Private Ltd

5.  B A Shah Holdings 
Pvt Ltd

6.  MaverlinInterna琀椀onal 
Pvt. Ltd.

Membership held 
in commi琀琀ees

- 1.  Stake Holders’ 
Grievance 
Commi琀琀ee – 
Member

2.  Corporate Social 
Responsibility 
Commi琀琀ee – 
Member

3.  Risk Management 
Commi琀琀ee-
Chairman

1.  Corporate Social 
Responsibility 
Commi琀琀ee – 
Chairman

2.  Risk Management 
Commi琀琀ee-
Member

1.  Stake Holders’ 
Grievance 
Commi琀琀ee – 
Member
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
(CIN: L17110GJ1988PLC010504)

To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presen琀椀ng the 34thAnnual Report on the business and opera琀椀ons of your 
Company together with the audited accounts for the 昀椀nancial year ended 31st March, 2023.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Your Company’s performance during the year is as below:

(` in Lakhs)

Par琀椀culars Year ended
31.03.2023

Year ended
31.03.2022

Total Revenue 26,609.59 43955.52

Pro昀椀t before Interest, Tax & Deprecia琀椀on (2,316.91) 593.51

Less: Net Interest & Finance Cost 4,590.15 4,307.97

Less: Deprecia琀椀on 2,527.90 2,630.56

Pro昀椀t before tax (9,434.97) (6,345.01)

Provision for Tax & Deferred tax (2,930.07) (2,202.74)

Pro昀椀t for the year (6,504.90) (4142.27)

Other comprehensive income 11.50 12.59

Total comprehensive income (6,493.40) (4129.68)

2. PERFORMANCE DURING THE YEAR

During the year under review, the company has achieved revenue of Rs 26,609.59 Lakh as compared to 
` 43955.52 Lakh for the previous 昀椀nancial year. The Net loss for the year stood at ` 6504.90 Lakh against 
` 4142.27 Lakh in the previous year.

Your Company looks forward to strengthen its opera琀椀ons by curtailing expenditure, asset mone琀椀za琀椀on 
and debt reduc琀椀on, etc. This would help the Company to improve its results and pro昀椀tability.

3. DIVIDEND

Your Directors do not recommend payment of any Dividend for the 昀椀nancial year ended 31st March, 
2023.

4. INDIAN ACCOUNTING STANDARD (IND AS)
The company has adopted Indian Accoun琀椀ng Standards (IND AS) with e昀昀ect from 1st April, 2017, pursuant 
to the no琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on of Companies (Indian Accoun琀椀ng Standard) Rules, 2015 issued by the Ministry of 
Corporate A昀昀airs. Hence, previous year’s 昀椀gures have been regrouped and reclassi昀椀ed, wherever 
considered necessary to con昀椀rm the 昀椀gures represented in the current period.

5. COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, the Company has complied with the requirements of the Applicable Secretarial Standards 
i.e. SS-1 and SS-2 rela琀椀ng to “Mee琀椀ng of Board of Directors” and “General Mee琀椀ngs” respec琀椀vely issued 
by Ins琀椀tute of Company Secretaries of India.
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6. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves for the Financial Year 2022-23.

7. SHARE CAPITAL

The paid up Equity Share Capital as at 31st March, 2023 stood at ` 2345.98 Lakhs. During the year under 
review, the Company has neither made any issue of equity shares with di昀昀eren琀椀al vo琀椀ng rights nor 
has granted any stock op琀椀ons or sweat equity. The Company has no scheme of provision of money for 
purchase of its own shares by employees or by trustees for the bene昀椀t of employees.

8. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

During the 昀椀nancial year under review pursuant to SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regula琀椀ons, 2015 your Company has complied with all the applicable provision of Corporate Governance.

Separate report on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion & Analysis, as required under 
the SEBI Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons are forming parts of the Annual Report.

The requisite cer琀椀昀椀cate from Prac琀椀cing Company Secretary con昀椀rming the compliance with the 
condi琀椀on of Corporate Governance along with the observa琀椀on is a琀琀ached to the Report on Corporate 
Governance.

9. MATERIAL CHANGES, IF ANY

No material changes and commitments a昀昀ec琀椀ng the 昀椀nancial posi琀椀on of the Company occurred 
between the end of the 昀椀nancial year to which this 昀椀nancial relate and the date of this report except the 
approval of shareholders was taken by Postal Ballot for Sale Substan琀椀al Part of Undertaking (Vijay Farm 
Unit) i.e. Land and Building & Plant and Machinery of the Company.

The Company is in process of selling its undertaking of Sari Unit and Vijay Farm unit with parts of 
machineries for which shareholders’ approval was taken earlier. Once the bank consent to the sale is 
received the Company will inform accordingly.

10. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Sec琀椀on 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements.

11. FIXED DEPOSITS

During the year under review no Fixed deposit were accepted by the Company. There are no deposits 
which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013.

12. INSURANCE AND CLAIMS

All proper琀椀es and insurable interests of the company including building, plant and machinery and stocks 
wherever necessary and to the extent required have been adequately insured.

13. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES /JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Company is not having any Subsidary, associate company and Joint venture as de昀椀ned under the 
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 whose accounts are to be consolidated with the accounts of the 
company.

14. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES
For all related party transac琀椀ons prior omnibus approval of the Audit Commi琀琀ee is obtained on a yearly 
basis for the transac琀椀ons which are of foreseen and repe琀椀琀椀ve nature and such approval is in interest of 
the Company. Transac琀椀ons entered into, pursuant to the omnibus approval so granted, are audited and 
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a statement giving details of all related party transac琀椀ons is placed before the Audit Commi琀琀ee and the 
Board of Directors for their approval.

A detailed report on material contracts and arrangements made during the 昀椀nancial year 2022-23, 
being arm’s length transac琀椀ons have been reported and annexed hereto in form AOC-2 as Annexure -A 
forming part of this report.

There are no materially signi昀椀cant related party transac琀椀ons made by the company with promoters, key 
managerial personnel or other designated persons which may have poten琀椀al con昀氀ict with interest of 
the company at large.

The Company has adopted a Related Party Transac琀椀ons Policy. The Policy, as approved by the Board 
is uploaded on the Company’s website at the web link h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com/investors/ 

corporate-governance/

15. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Details pertaining to Composi琀椀on of Audit Commi琀琀ee are included in Corporate Governance Report. All 
recommenda琀椀ons made by were accepted by Board.

16. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy for a systema琀椀c approach to control risks. The Risk 
Management Policy of the Company lays down procedures for risk iden琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on, evalua琀椀on, monitoring, 
review and repor琀椀ng. The Risk Management Policy has been developed and approved by the Senior 
Management in accordance with the business strategy.

17. INTERNAL CONTROLS SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The Company has in place an adequate system of internal controls. It has documented policies and 
procedures covering all 昀椀nancial and opera琀椀ng func琀椀ons and processes. These have been designed to 
provide a reasonable assurance with regard to maintaining of proper accoun琀椀ng controls for ensuring 
reliability of 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng, monitoring of opera琀椀ons, protec琀椀ng assets from unauthorized use or 
losses and compliance with regula琀椀ons.

18. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 1) Changes in Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
In accordance with the provision of Sec琀椀on 152 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Ar琀椀cles of 
Associa琀椀on of the Company, Mr. Nipun V Arora, (DIN: 00989835), Whole 琀椀me Director shall re琀椀re 
by rota琀椀on at the forthcoming Annual General Mee琀椀ng of the Company and being eligible o昀昀er 
himself for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment.

Mr. Amol Dalal (DIN: 00458885), Mr. Ashok Gandhi (DIN: 00022507), Mr. Sanjay Majmudar (DIN: 
00091305) & Mrs. Aar琀椀 Thakkar (DIN: 08603909) being independent directors are not eligible 
for re琀椀re by rota琀椀on and hold o昀케ce for 昀椀ve consecu琀椀ve years for a term from the date of their 
appointment by the Board of Directors as per the provisions of Sec琀椀on 149, 152 read with Schedule 
IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula琀椀on 25 of SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015.

Informa琀椀on regarding the mee琀椀ng of directors and remunera琀椀on etc. is given in the Corporate 
Governance report a琀琀ached with the report.

http://www.aarveedenims.com/investors/
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  The company is having following Key Managerial Personnel: -

S. No. Key Managerial Personnel Designa琀椀on
1 Mr. Vinod P. Arora, (DIN: 00007065) Chairman & Managing Director

2 Mr. Ashish V. Shah, (DIN: 00007201) Managing Director

3 Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, (DIN: 00007262) Whole Time Director

4 Mr. Nipun Arora, (DIN: 00989835) Whole Time Director

5 Mr. Ketan Desai Chief Financial O昀케cer

7 Mrs. Abira Mansuri* Company Secretary

8 Mr. Rahul Makwana ** Company Secretary

  * Mrs. Abira Mansuri Company Secretary of the company has appointed w.e.f. 08.07.2023.

  ** Mr. Rahul Makwana Company Secretary of the Company resigned w.e.f. 07.04.2023.

 2) Declara琀椀on by an Independent Director(s)
All Independent Directors have given declara琀椀ons that they meet the criteria of independence 
as laid down under Sec琀椀on 149 (6) of the Act and Regula琀椀on 16 (1) (b) of the Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons. 
In the opinion of the Board, they ful昀椀ll the condi琀椀ons of independence as speci昀椀ed in the Act 
and the Rules made there under and are independent of the management. The detail terms of 
Independent Directors are disclosed on the Company’s website with the following link h琀琀p://www. 
aarvee-denims.com/script-code-stock-exchanges.html

 3) Annual Evalua琀椀on of Board Performance and Performance of its Commi琀琀ees and of Directors
Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015 the Board has carried out an annual performance 
evalua琀椀on of its own performance and, the Directors individually and as well as the evalua琀椀on 
of the working of its Commi琀琀ees. The criteria applied in evalua琀椀on process are explained in the 
Corporate Governance Report.

19. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, Five board mee琀椀ngs were convened and held, the details of which are 
given in the corporate governance report. The intervening gap between the mee琀椀ngs was within the 
period prescribed under the Act and the Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons.

20. COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Your Company has several Commi琀琀ees which have been established as part of best corporate governance 
prac琀椀ces and are in compliance with the requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and 
statutes.

The Company has following Commi琀琀ees of the Board:
a. Audit Commi琀琀ee
b. Nomina琀椀on and Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee
c. Stakeholders’ Grievances and Rela琀椀onship Commi琀琀ee
d. Corporate Social Responsibility Commi琀琀ee
e. Share Transfer Commi琀琀ee
f. Risk Management Commi琀琀ee

A detailed note on the commi琀琀ees with respect to composi琀椀on, mee琀椀ngs, powers, and terms of 
reference is provided under the corporate governance report sec琀椀on in this Annual Report.

http://www.aarvee-denims.com/script-code-stock-exchanges.html
http://www.aarvee-denims.com/script-code-stock-exchanges.html
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21. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Sec琀椀on 134 (3) (c) and 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the 
best of their knowledge and ability, con昀椀rm that:

(i) in the prepara琀椀on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun琀椀ng standards have been 
followed and that there are no material departures;

(ii) they have selected such accoun琀椀ng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and es琀椀mates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of a昀昀airs of the Company as at 31st March, 2023 and of the Pro昀椀t of the Company for the year 
ended on that date;

(iii) they have taken proper and su昀케cient care for the maintenance of adequate accoun琀椀ng records 
in accordance with the provisions of the Act, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preven琀椀ng and detec琀椀ng fraud and other irregulari琀椀es;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) they have laid down internal 昀椀nancial controls to be followed by the Company and that such 
internal 昀椀nancial controls are adequate and are opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀vely; and

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems are adequate and opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀vely.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In Accordance with sec琀椀on 135 of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the Company has cons琀椀tuted 
a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) Commi琀琀ee of Directors. The details of composi琀椀on of CSR 
Commi琀琀ee are given in the Corporate Governance Report.

The details of CSR policy and CSR spending by the Company have been provided as Annexure-B to this 
report, as required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

23. POLICY ON PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT AT 

WORKPLACE
The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on 
Preven琀椀on, Prohibi琀椀on and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions 
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven琀椀on, Prohibi琀椀on and Redressal) Act, 2013 and 
the Rules there under. The Policy aims to provide protec琀椀on to employees at the workplace and prevent 
and redress complaints of sexual harassment and for ma琀琀ers connected or incidental thereto, with the 
objec琀椀ve of providing a safe working environment, where employees feel secure.

The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the 昀椀nancial year 2022-23.

24. VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec琀椀on 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula琀椀on 22 of 
SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀on and Disclosure Requirement) Regula琀椀ons, 2015, a Vigil Mechanism or ‘Whistle 
Blower Policy’ for Directors, employees and other stakeholders to report genuine concern has been 
established. The same is uploaded on the website of the Company h琀琀p://www.aarvee-denims.com/ 

pdfs/vigil-machanism.pdf. It is a昀케rmed that no personnel of the Company have been denied access to 
the Audit Commi琀琀ee.

25. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS

No signi昀椀cant material orders have been passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future opera琀椀ons.

http://www.aarvee-denims.com/pdfs/vigil-machanism.pdf
http://www.aarvee-denims.com/pdfs/vigil-machanism.pdf
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26. AUDITORS

 (1) Statutory Auditors

M/s. Pankaj R. Shah Associates, Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad (Firm registra琀椀on No.107361W) 
were appointed in the 33rd Annual General Mee琀椀ng of the Company as Statutory Auditors to hold 
o昀케ce for 昀椀ve years from the conclusion of the 33rd Annual General Mee琀椀ng 琀椀ll the conclusion of 
38th Annual General Mee琀椀ng of the Company.

M/s. Pankaj R. Shah Associates, Chartered Accountant, Ahmedabad (Firm registra琀椀on No.107361W) 
statutory auditors of the Company have submi琀琀ed the Audit Reports for Audited Standalone 
Financial Results of the Company for the Financial year ended 31st March 2023 with unmodi昀椀ed 
opinion.

 (2) Cost Auditors

The company has received a consent le琀琀er from the cost auditors M/s. N. D. Birla and Co., 
Cost Accountant to the e昀昀ect that their appointment, if made, would be within the prescribed 
limits under sec琀椀on 141(3) (g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disquali昀椀ed 
for appointment. The board of Directors of the company at its mee琀椀ng held on 30th May, 2023 
appointed M/s. N. D. Birla & Co., Cost Accountants as the cost auditors of the Company to conduct 
the audit of cost records maintained by the Company as required by the Companies (Cost Records 
and Audit) Rules 2014 as amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me.

The members are requested to ra琀椀fy the remunera琀椀on to be paid to the cost auditors of the 
company

 (3) Secretarial Auditors

Pursuant to Sec琀椀on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed Mr. Tapan Shah, 
Prac琀椀cing Company Secretary (COP No. 2839) for conduc琀椀ng Secretarial Audit of the Company 
for the 昀椀nancial year ended on 31st March, 2023. The Secretarial Audit report of Mr. Tapan Shah. 
Prac琀椀cing Company Secretary along with the observa琀椀ons for the 昀椀nancial year ended 31st March, 
2023, is annexed as Annexure - C.

Observa琀椀on was raised for upda琀椀ng of some of policies and SDD Register which were considered 
and updated by the Company.

27. FRAUD REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SUB SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHER THAN THOSE TO 

REPORTABLE TO CENTRAL GOVERNMENT:

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and Secretarial Auditor have not reported any 
instances of fraud commi琀琀ed in the Company by its o昀케cers or Employees to the Audit Commi琀琀ee under 
Sec琀椀on 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

28. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The informa琀椀on on conserva琀椀on of energy, technology absorp琀椀on and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo s琀椀pulated under Sec琀椀on 134 (3) (m) of the Act read with Rule 8 (3) of The Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure - D.

29. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION

The informa琀椀on required pursuant to Sec琀椀on 197 read with Rule 5 of The Companies (Appointment and 
Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of employees of the Company is a琀琀ached 
as Annexure – E to this report.
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30. ANNUAL RETURN

The extract of Annual Return is no longer required to be a琀琀ached with the Director’s Report u/s 134(3)
(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management & Administra琀椀on) 
Rules, 2014 vide no琀椀昀椀ca琀椀ons issued by Ministry of Corporate A昀昀airs (MCA) dated 28/08/2020 and 
05/03/2021.

Pursuant to Sub-sec琀椀on 3(a) of Sec琀椀on 134 and Sub-sec琀椀on (3) of Sec琀椀on 92 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administra琀椀on) Rules, 2014, the copy of the 
Annual Return of the Company for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2023 in Form MGT-7 is available on 
website of the Company h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com.

31. INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The industrial rela琀椀ons con琀椀nued to be generally peaceful and cordial.

32. TRANSFER OF AMOUNT/SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The amounts which remained unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years have been transferred by 
the company, from 琀椀me to 琀椀me on due dates, to the Investor Educa琀椀on and Protec琀椀on Fund.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec琀椀on 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Educa琀椀on 
and Protec琀椀on Fund Authority (Accoun琀椀ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 as amended 琀椀ll 
date, transfer of shares held by the shareholders of the Company whose dividends are unpaid for a 
consecu琀椀ve period of 7 years or more to the Demat A/c of the Investor Educa琀椀on and protec琀椀on fund 
authority opened by the IEPF Authority in terms of the aforesaid Rules

Pursuant to the provision of Investor Educa琀椀on and Protec琀椀on Fund (Uploading of informa琀椀on regarding 
unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying with companies) Rules, 2012, there are no unpaid and unclaimed 
amounts lying with the Company as on 30th September 2023 (date of last Annual General Mee琀椀ng).

The Company has Company Secretary as Nodal O昀케cer under the provisions of the Investor Educa琀椀on 
and Protec琀椀on Fund.

33. REGULATORY STATEMENT

The Equity shares of your company are listed on the BSE Limited (BSE) and the Na琀椀onal Stock Exchange 
of India Limited (NSE).

The Company has paid the lis琀椀ng fees for the year 2022-23 as well as for 2023-24 to above stock 
exchanges.

34. INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

Your company keeps in line with the ongoing technological developments taking place in the country and 
worldwide. The informa琀椀on technology adopted by the company serves as an important tool of internal 
control as well as providing the bene昀椀ts of modern technology to its esteemed customers. Company 
is taking utmost precau琀椀ons for the security of data and having a dedicated team for this. During the 
昀椀nancial year 2022-2023 there was no instance of cyber security breach happened in the company.

http://www.aarveedenims.com
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35. CREDIT RATING

Credit ra琀椀ng from Infomerics Valua琀椀on and Ra琀椀ngs Private Limited was obtained for bank loan facility 
and India Ra琀椀ng and Research Private Limited for Deposit. The ra琀椀ng was as under:

Instrument/Facility Amount (` Crore) Ra琀椀ngs

Long Term BankFacili琀椀es 206.59 IVR D

Short Term BankFacili琀椀es 62.55 IVR D

Term Deposit programme (long term) IND tD(ISSUER NOT 
COOPERATING)
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Annexure – A
A statement in Form AOC-2 is given below:-

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transac琀椀ons not at arm’s length basis: No such transac琀椀ons 
were entered during the 昀椀nancial year 2022-23.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transac琀椀ons at arm’s length basis:

The contracts or arrangement or transac琀椀ons entered with the related party during the 昀椀nancial 
year 2022-23 were disclosed in the Note No. 41 of the notes to accounts forming part of the 昀椀nancial 
statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023.



AArvee Denims AnD exports LtD.

34th ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023 29

ANNEXURE – B
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES
1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to 

be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programs.

The Company has framed its CSR Policy in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the same is placed on the Company’s website at the web link: h琀琀p://www.aarvee-denims.com/ 

pdfs/csr-policy.pdf

2. The Composi琀椀on of the CSR Commi琀琀ee.

Company has set up Corporate Social Responsibility Commi琀琀ee (CSR Commi琀琀ee) as per the requirement 
of the Companies Act, 2013. The members of the CSR Commi琀琀ee are:

Mr. Ashish Shah, Chairman

Mr. Vinod P. Arora Member

Mr. Amol Dalal-Member

3. Web-link with informa琀椀on on Composi琀椀on of CSR commi琀琀ee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved 
by the board on the website of the company

h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/3.-CORPORATE-SOCIAL-RESPONSIBILITY-
POLICY.pdf

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (a琀琀ach the 
report): Not applicable

5. Details of the amount available for set o昀昀 in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set o昀昀 for the 昀椀nancial 
year, if any - Not applicable

6. Average net pro昀椀t of the Company as per sec琀椀on 135(5): ` -8222.24 Lacs

7. Details:

(a) Two percent of average net pro昀椀t of the company as per sec琀椀on 135(5) -164.44

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or ac琀椀vi琀椀es of the previous 昀椀nancial years. 0

(c) Amount required to be set o昀昀 for the 昀椀nancial year, if any Nil

(d) Total CSR obliga琀椀on for the 昀椀nancial year (7a+7b-7c). N.A.

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the 昀椀nancial year: Not applicable

(b)  Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the 昀椀nancial year: Not applicable

(c)  Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the 昀椀nancial year: 
Not applicable

(d)  Amount spent in Administra琀椀ve Overheads Nil

(e)  Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable NA

(f)  Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) (in J) NA

(g)  Excess amount for set o昀昀, if any

http://www.aarvee-denims.com/pdfs/csr-policy.pdf
http://www.aarvee-denims.com/pdfs/csr-policy.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/3.-CORPORATE-SOCIAL-RESPONSIBILITY-POLICY.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/3.-CORPORATE-SOCIAL-RESPONSIBILITY-POLICY.pdf
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three 昀椀nancial years: Not applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the 昀椀nancial year for ongoing projects of the preceding 昀椀nancial 
year(s): Not Applicable

10. In case of crea琀椀on or acquisi琀椀on of capital asset, furnish the details rela琀椀ng to the asset so created 
or acquired through CSR spent in the 昀椀nancial year (asset-wise details). None

(a)  Date of crea琀椀on or acquisi琀椀on of the capital asset(s). NA

(b)  Amount of CSR spent for crea琀椀on or acquisi琀椀on of capital asset. NA

(c)  Details of the en琀椀ty or public authority or bene昀椀ciary under whose name such capital asset is 
registered, their address etc. NA

(d)  Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and 
loca琀椀on of the capital asset). NA

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net pro昀椀t as 
per sec琀椀on 135(5). NA

As the Company has incurred losses therefore, the company does not need to spend CSR Expenditure.

A responsibility statement of the CSR Commi琀琀ee that the implementa琀椀on and monitoring of CSR Policy, is 
in compliance with CSR objec琀椀ves and Policy of the company:

The CSR Commi琀琀ee con昀椀rms that the implementa琀椀on and monitoring of the CSR policy is in compliance 
with the CSR objec琀椀ves and policy of the Company.

Vinod P. Arora  Ashish V. Shah
Chairman and Managing Director Chairman - CSR Commi琀琀ee
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Annexure – C

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For the 昀椀nancial year ended 31/03/2023

[Pursuant to sec琀椀on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN: L17110GJ1988PLC010504
191 Shahwadi, Near Old Octroi Naka,
Narol Sarkhej Highway, Narol,
Ahmedabad – 382 405

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 
adherence to good corporate prac琀椀ces by Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited (hereina昀琀er called ‘the 
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evalua琀椀ng 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my veri昀椀ca琀椀on of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 昀椀led and other 
records maintained by the Company and also the informa琀椀on provided by the Company, its o昀케cers, agents 
and authorized representa琀椀ves during the conduct of Secretarial Audit through electronically by way of scan 
copy or so昀琀 copy through mail or otherwise, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during 
the audit period covering the 昀椀nancial year ended on 31st March, 2023 generally complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder (except few observa琀椀on given) and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor琀椀ng 
made hereina昀琀er:

(i) I have examined through electronically by way of scan copy or so昀琀 copy through mail or otherwise, the 
books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 昀椀led and other records maintained by the Company 
for the 昀椀nancial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of: The Companies Act, 
2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under as applicable;

(ii) The Securi琀椀es Contracts (Regula琀椀on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula琀椀ons and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula琀椀ons made there under to the 
extent of Foreign Direct Investment ;

(v) The following Regula琀椀ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

a) The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Substan琀椀al Acquisi琀椀on of Shares and Takeovers) 
Regula琀椀ons, 2011, as amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me;

b) The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi琀椀on of Insider Trading) Regula琀椀ons, 2015, as 
amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me;

c) SEBI (Investor Protec琀椀on and Educa琀椀on Fund) Regula琀椀on, 2009;

(vi) Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins琀椀tute of Company Secretaries of India(SS – 1 and SS – 2);

I have also examined compliance with the applicable Regula琀椀ons of the Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of 
India (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015, amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me, 
pursuant to the Lis琀椀ng Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.
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Further being a Tex琀椀le Industry and involved in speci昀椀c products, only Tex琀椀les (Development and Regula琀椀on) 
Order, 2001 is applicable to the Company, for which examina琀椀on of the relevant documents and records, on 
test check basis, has been carried out.

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the all material aspects of 
applicable provisions of the Acts, Rules, Regula琀椀ons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. men琀椀oned above except 
few observa琀椀ons like:

I. Some of the policies on the Company’s Website have not been reviewed & updated, as per the 

regula琀椀ons/circulars/ guidelines issued by SEBI

II.	 Regula琀椀on 3(5) & 3(6) SEBI (Prohibi琀椀on of insider Trading) Regula琀椀ons, 2015 requires maintenance of 

SDD register. SDD Register is prepared but requires upda琀椀on and entry for all the transac琀椀ons.

During the Period under review, provisions of the following Acts, Rules, Regula琀椀ons, Guidelines, etc. were 
not applicable to the Company:

i. The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Op琀椀on Scheme and Employee Stock 
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee 
Bene昀椀ts and sweat equity) Regula琀椀ons, 2021;

ii. The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Delis琀椀ng of Equity Shares) Regula琀椀ons (Amendment) 
Regula琀椀ons, 2016 and 2021;

iii. The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis琀椀ng of Non-conver琀椀ble Securi琀椀es) 
Regula琀椀ons, 2021;

iv. The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi琀椀es) Regula琀椀ons, 1998 and 2018;

v. The Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 
2009 and 2018; and

vi. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula琀椀ons made there under to the 
extent of Overseas Direct Investments and External Commercial Borrowings;

I further report that – The Compliance by the Company of applicable 昀椀nancial laws, like direct and indirect 
tax laws, name of the related par琀椀es, etc. has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same have been 
subject to review by statutory 昀椀nancial auditor and other designated professionals.

I further report that – Based on the informa琀椀on provided by the Company, its o昀케cers and authorized 
representa琀椀ves during the conduct of the audit and on the basis of Compliance Cer琀椀昀椀cates issued by the 
Managing Director and Company Secretary of the Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors 
at their mee琀椀ngs, in my opinion, adequate systems and processes and control mechanism exist in the 
Company commensurate with the size and opera琀椀ons of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance 
with applicable laws, rules, regula琀椀ons, standards and guidelines and general laws like various labour laws, 
compe琀椀琀椀on law, environmental laws, etc.

I further report that - The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons琀椀tuted with proper balance of 
Execu琀椀ve Directors, Non-Execu琀椀ve Directors and Independent Directors, as on close of the 昀椀nancial year. 
The changes in the Key Managerial Person (KMP) that took place during the period under review were 
carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate no琀椀ce is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Mee琀椀ngs, agenda and detailed notes on 
agenda were sent generally seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
informa琀椀on and clari昀椀ca琀椀ons on the agenda items before the mee琀椀ng and for meaningful par琀椀cipa琀椀on 
at the mee琀椀ng.

During the year, all decision in the Board Mee琀椀ngs were carried unanimously.
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I further report that during the audit period there were few speci昀椀c events/ ac琀椀ons in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regula琀椀ons, standards, etc. having a major bearing on the Company’s a昀昀airs, 
details of which are as stated below:

I. The Company has disposed o昀昀 its remaining 5(Five) windmills with an aggregate capacity of 7 MW 
out of the total 14 (fourteen) windmills installed by the company at various loca琀椀ons in Gujarat 
(“Undertaking”), as a going concern / on a slump sale basis, as approved by the members in the last 
AGM held on 29/09/2022.

Signature:

Name of Company Secretary in prac琀椀ce: Tapan Shah 
FCS No. : 4476

Place: Ahmedabad C P No. : 2839
Date: 14/08/2023 UDIN : F004476E000763773 PR No.: 673/2020

Note: This Report is to be read with my le琀琀er of above date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an 
integral part of this report.

Annexure A
To,
The Members,
AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN: L17110GJ1988PLC010504
191 Shahwadi, Near Old Octroi Naka,
Narol Sarkhej Highway, Narol,
Ahmedabad – 382 405

My report of the above date is to be read along with this le琀琀er.
1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. My 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.
2. I have followed the audit prac琀椀ces and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance 

about the correctness of the contents of secretarial records. The veri昀椀ca琀椀on was done based on the 
records and documents provided, on test basis to ensure that correct facts are re昀氀ected in secretarial 
records. I believe that the processes and prac琀椀ces followed by me provide a reasonable basis 
for my opinion.

3. I have not veri昀椀ed the correctness and appropriateness of 昀椀nancial records and books of accounts 
of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representa琀椀on about the compliance of laws, 
rules and regula琀椀ons and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula琀椀ons, standards is 
the responsibility of management. My examina琀椀on was limited to veri昀椀ca琀椀on of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the 
e昀케cacy or e昀昀ec琀椀veness with which the management has conducted the a昀昀airs of the Company.

Signature:

Name of Company Secretary in prac琀椀ce: Tapan Shah 
FCS No. : 4476

Place: Ahmedabad C P No. : 2839
Date: 14/08/2023 UDIN : F004476E000763773 PR No.: 673/2020
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ANNEXURE - D

Informa琀椀on pursuant to Sec琀椀on 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and under Rule 8 (3) of Companies 
(Accounts) Rules 2014 and forming part of the Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2023

(A) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY-
 (i) The steps taken or impact on conserva琀椀on of energy;

1. Installing energy e昀케cient electric equipments.

2. Use of energy e昀케cient CFL and LED lights and changing of Electronics Ballast in place of 
Copper Ballast.

3. Crea琀椀ng awareness among all the sta昀昀 members to conserve energy.

4. Replacement of ine昀케cient motors.

 (ii) Total energy consump琀椀on and energy consump琀椀on per unit of produc琀椀on
(` In Lakhs)

Par琀椀culars 2022-23 2021-22

1. Electricity

 (a)  Purchased Units KWH in Lac Total Amount 
(` in Lac) Rate/unit (`/KWH)

 (b) Wind Turbine (Units KWH in Lac)

369.66
3690.03

9.98
33.37

519.23
4689.32

9.03
129.77

2. Coal & Lignite
 Quan琀椀ty (in MT)
 Total Cost (Rs in Lac)
 Cost/MT

8379
859.45
10257

17593
1325.77
7535.81

 III. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRODUCTION:

Par琀椀culars 2022-23 21-22

FABRIC 

(PER MTR)

YARN 

(PER KG)

FABRIC 

(PER MTR)

YARN 

(PER KG)

Electricity (KWH) 2.6 1.66 2.28 1.47

Coal (Kg) 0.54 Nil 0.62 Nil

(B) TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION-
 (i) The e昀昀orts made towards technology absorp琀椀on;

E昀昀orts towards technology absorp琀椀on included con琀椀nued e昀昀orts for process improvements and 
improved formula琀椀on types / strengths to improve the e昀케cacy, produc琀椀vity and pro昀椀tability of 
the Company.

 (ii)  The bene昀椀ts derived like product improvement, cost reduc琀椀on, product development or import 
subs琀椀tu琀椀on:
Product development, value addi琀椀on and sustainable.
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 (iii)  In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning 
of the 昀椀nancial year)-
(a) the details of technology imported: The Company has not imported any technology during 

the last three 昀椀nancial years.

(b) the year of import: Not Applicable

(c) whether the technology been fully absorbed: Not Applicable

(d) if not fully absorbed, areas where absorp琀椀on has not taken place, and the reasons 
thereof: Not Applicable

 (iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development.
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars 2022-23 2021-22

Capital Nil Nil

Recurring Nil Nil

Total Nil Nil

Total R&D Expenditure as % of total turnover Nil Nil

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO-
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars 2022-23 2021-22

Foreign Exchange Earning 5115.71 19480.06

Foreign Exchange Outgo 125.95 178.73
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Annexure - E
[Pursuant to Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

1. The ra琀椀o of the remunera琀椀on of each Director to the median remunera琀椀on of the Employees of the 
Company for the 昀椀nancial year:

(Amount in Lacs)

Sr.

No.

Name of Director Designa琀椀on Ra琀椀o of remunera琀椀on 
to director to Median 

Remunera琀椀on of 
employees

Percentage 
(%)

increase in 
Remunera琀椀on

1 Mr. Vinod P. Arora Chairman and Managing 
Director

14.58 Nil

2 Mr. Ashish V. Shah Managing Director 12.15 Nil

3 Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah Whole Time Director 7.29 Nil

4 Mr. Nipun Arora Whole Time Director 4.86 Nil

5 Mr. Rahul Makwana CS 2.91 Nil

6 Mr. Ketan Desai CFO 7.29 Nil

Note: Independent Directors do not receive any remunera琀椀on other than si琀�ng fees for a琀琀ending 
Board and Commi琀琀ee Mee琀椀ngs. Details of si琀�ng fees paid to Independent Directors are given in the 
Report on Corporate Governance forming part of the Annual Report and hence, are not included in the 
above table.

1. The percentage increase in the median remunera琀椀on of employees in the 昀椀nancial year was %-NIL

2. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of Company:909

3. There was no major change in the Managerial Remunera琀椀on for the Financial Year 2022-23 
as compared to Financial Year 2021-22. Therefore, there is no jus琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on and informa琀椀on, 
regarding excep琀椀onal circumstances for increase in Managerial Remunera琀椀on, to be disclosed.

4. It is a昀케rmed that the remunera琀椀on paid is as per the Remunera琀椀on Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees, adopted by the Company.

5. Par琀椀culars of employee in terms of Sub-sec琀椀on 12 of Sec琀椀on 197 of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera琀椀on of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014:

There was no employee of the Company employed throughout the 昀椀nancial year with salary above ` 1 Crore 
and 2 Lakh per annum or employed in part of the 昀椀nancial year with an average salary above ` 8 Lakh and 
50 Thousands per month. Further, there is no employee employed throughout the 昀椀nancial year or part 
thereof, was in receipt of remunera琀椀on in aggregate, in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or 
Whole-琀椀me Director or Manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not 
less than two per cent (2 per cent) of the equity shares of the Company.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
(L17110GJ1988PLC010504)

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY

Corporate Governance is the way of handling the ac琀椀vi琀椀es of a corporate in a fair and most transparent 
manner, se琀�ng accountability and integrity of the management. Corporate governance has indeed been an 
integral part of all ac琀椀vi琀椀es and processes of Aarvee Denims since years. Corporate Governance revolves 
around commitment and ethical business conduct.

Aarvee Board believes that Corporate Governance is just not as compliances of legal requirements; it is 
about standards, value ethics and managing the business ac琀椀vi琀椀es as the trustee of all stakeholders and 
society at large.

Corporate Governance is a con琀椀nuous process of sustaining and enhancing the standards of values and 
ethics. Aarvee’s basic philosophy of Corporate Governance is re昀氀ected in following principals:
a) Conduc琀椀ng the business a昀昀airs in the ethical manner
b) Internal checks and audits
c) E昀昀ec琀椀ve and prompt shareholder’s communica琀椀on ensuring correct and 琀椀mely disclosures and 

dissemina琀椀ons of all the price sensi琀椀ve informa琀椀on
d) Ensuring highest level of accountability and responsibility
e) Ensuring total compliance with all the applicable laws & regula琀椀ons
f) Compliance of Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management along with Insider Trading 

preven琀椀on regula琀椀ons

CODE OF CONDUCT & ETHICS

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for all employees of the Company, including the Managing 
Director. The Board has also approved a Code of Conduct for the Non-Execu琀椀ve Directors of the Company, 
which incorporates the du琀椀es of Independent Directors as laid down in the Companies Act, 2013. Both the 
Codes are posted on the Company’s website.

All Board members and senior management personnel (as per Regula琀椀on 26 (3) of the Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons) 
have a昀케rmed compliance with the applicable Code of Conduct. A declara琀椀on to this e昀昀ect signed by the 
Managing Director forms part of this Report.

Apart from receiving remunera琀椀on that they are en琀椀tled to under the Companies Act, 2013 as Non-
Execu琀椀ve Directors and reimbursement of expenses incurred in the discharge of their du琀椀es, none of the 
Non-Execu琀椀ve Directors has any other material pecuniary rela琀椀onship or transac琀椀ons with the Company, its 
promoters, its Directors, its senior management or its subsidiaries and associates.

The Directors and senior management of the Company have made disclosures to the Board con昀椀rming that 
there are no material 昀椀nancial and/ or commercial transac琀椀ons between them and the Company that could 
have poten琀椀al con昀氀ict of interest with the Company at large at arm’s length basis.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Preven琀椀on of Insider Trading with a view to regulate 
trading in securi琀椀es by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires pre-
clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company shares by the 
Directors and the designated employees while in possession of unpublished price sensi琀椀ve informa琀椀on in 
rela琀椀on to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board is responsible 
for implementa琀椀on of the Code.

All Board Members and the designated employees have con昀椀rmed compliance with the Code.
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MATERIAL SUBSIDIARY

There is no material subsidiary of the Company and as a result the other compliance in respect of material 
subsidiary were not applicable

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises of eminent persons with considerable experience in diverse 昀椀elds.

The Company has a policy of having op琀椀mum combina琀椀on of independent and non-execu琀椀ve directors, to 
ensure the independent func琀椀oning of the Board. As on 31st March 2023 the Board consisted eight members, 
four of whom were independent directors including one women Independent director. The Company has 
received declara琀椀on of independence as per the provisions of Sec琀椀on 149 (6) of Companies Act 2013 from 
all 4 Independent Directors. None of the Director on the Board is a Member of more than ten commi琀琀ees 
and Chairperson of more than 昀椀ve commi琀琀ees across all the Companies in which they are directors. All 
compliances related to the Director who is more than 75 years of age is also complied by the company. All 
necessary disclosures regarding the directorship have been made by the directors.

Names and categories of directors on the Board (as on 31.03.2023), their a琀琀endance at Board mee琀椀ngs 
during the year and at the last Annual General Mee琀椀ng held on 29th September 2022, and also the number 
of directorship in other commi琀琀ees is as follows:

Name of Director Category Inter-se 
Rela琀椀onship

Numbers of Board 
Mee琀椀ngs

No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
Companies 1

No. of Commi琀琀ee 
memberships2

Whether 
a琀琀ended last 
AGM held on 
29.09.2022Held 

during 
the year

A琀琀ended 
during 

the Year

as 

member

as

Chairman

Mr. Vinod P. Arora 
(Chairman & Managing 
Director)

Promoter, Non 
Independent 

and Execu琀椀ve 
Director

Son of 
Mr. Parmanand 
Arora and 
Brother of 
Mr. Rajesh 
Arora

5 3 2 1 0 Yes

Mr. Ashish V. Shah 
(Managing Director)

Promoter, Non 
Independent 

and Execu琀椀ve 
Director

Brother of 
Mr. Kalpesh 
Shah

 5 5 3 0 0 Yes

Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah 
(Whole Time Director)

Promoter, Non 
Independent 

and Execu琀椀ve 
Director

Brother of 
Mr. Ashish 
Shah

5 3 0 1 0 Yes

Mr. Sanjay S. Majmudar 
(Director)

Independent

Non-execu琀椀ve
NA 5 5 5 9 5 Yes

Mr. Ashok C. Gandhi 
(Director)

Independent

Non-execu琀椀ve
NA 5 5 3 5 1 Yes

Mr. Amol R. Dalal 
(Director)

Independent

Non-execu琀椀ve
NA 5 5 1 0 1 Yes
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Name of Director Category Inter-se 
Rela琀椀onship

Numbers of Board 
Mee琀椀ngs

No. of 
Directorships 

in other 
Companies 1

No. of Commi琀琀ee 
memberships2

Whether 
a琀琀ended last 
AGM held on 
29.09.2022Held 

during 
the year

A琀琀ended 
during 

the Year

as 

member

as

Chairman

Mr. Nipun Arora 
(Director)

Non 
Independent 

and Execu琀椀ve 
Director

Son of 
Mr. Vinod 

Arora, 
Chairman 
and 

Managing 
Director of 
the Company

5 5 3 0 0 Yes

Ms. Aar琀椀 Thakkar
(Director)

Independent

Non-execu琀椀ve
NA 5 5 0 0 0 Yes

Note:

1. Other Directorships includes Directorships held in listed, unlisted and private limited companies other 
than Aarvee Denims & Exports Limited.

2. Includes only memberships of Audit Commi琀琀ee (AC) and Stakeholders Rela琀椀onship Commi琀琀ee (SRC) 
of all the public limited companies including Aarvee Denims & Exports Limited

Names of other listed en琀椀ty where the director is holding directorship and their category on the Board of 
that listed en琀椀ty as on 31st March 2023

Mr. Sanjay S. Majmudar 
(DIN 00091305)

Mr. Ashok C. Gandhi 
(DIN 00022507)

Mr. Amol R. Dalal 

(DIN 00458885)

Ms. Aar琀椀 Thakkar 

(DIN 8603909)

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

Welcast Steels 
Limited Aia 
Engineering 
Limited Dishman 
Carbogen Amcis 
Limited Ashima 
Limited M & 
B Engineering 
Limited

Non-Execu琀椀ve 
Independent 

Director

Ahmedabad 
Steel Cra昀琀 
Limited
Dishman 
Carbogen Amcis 
Limited

Non-Execu琀椀ve 
Independent 

Director

Real Strips 
Limited

Non-Execu琀椀ve 
Independent 

Director

NIL

Mr. Vinod P. Arora Mr. Ashish V. Shah  

(DIN 00007201)

Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah 

 (DIN 00007262)

Mr. Nipun Arora  
(DIN 00989835)

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

Name of 
the listed 

en琀椀ty

Category of 
directorship

NIL NIL NIL NIL

Note: * Audit Commi琀琀ee and Shareholders Rela琀椀onship Commi琀琀ee.
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Shareholding of Non-Execu琀椀ve Directors as on 31st March, 2023

Name of Director No. of Shares held
Mr. Sanjay Majmudar -

Mr. Ashok Gandhi -

Mr. Amol Dalal -

Ms. Aar琀椀 Thakkar -

Pursuant to good Corporate Governance the Independent Directors on Board:
• Apart from receiving Director’s remunera琀椀on (si琀�ng fee and other amount viz., pro昀椀t share etc.), do 

not have any material pecuniary rela琀椀onships or transac琀椀ons with the company, its promoters, its 
Directors, its senior management & associates which may a昀昀ect independence of the Director.

• Are not related to promoters or persons occupying management posi琀椀ons at the board level or at one 
level below the board.

• Have not been an execu琀椀ve of the company in the immediately preceding three 昀椀nancial years.

• Are not partners or execu琀椀ves or were not partners or an execu琀椀ve during the preceding 
three years of the:

- Statutory audit 昀椀rm or the internal audit 昀椀rm that is associated with the Company.

- Legal 昀椀rm(s) and consul琀椀ng 昀椀rm(s) that have a material associa琀椀on with the company.

• Are not material suppliers, service providers or customers or lessors or lessees of the company, which 
may a昀昀ect independence of the Director.

• Are not substan琀椀al shareholders of the Company i.e. do not own two percent or more of the block 
of vo琀椀ng shares.

Chart se琀�ng out the skills/exper琀椀se/competencies of Board of Directors
Company being in the business of Foreign Exchange, remi琀琀ance, Payment Systems and other related business 
ac琀椀vi琀椀es hence its Board members should have skills/exper琀椀se/competencies related to 昀椀nance, banking 
& industry speci昀椀c skills. Following chart is showing the skills/exper琀椀se/competencies of Board Members:-

Name Category skills/exper琀椀se/competencies
Mr. Vinod P. Arora 

(Chairman & Managing Director)
Promoter, Non Independent and 
Execu琀椀ve Director

Tex琀椀le Industry, Business

Mr. Ashish V. Shah 

(Managing Director)
Promoter, Non Independent and 
Execu琀椀ve Director

Tex琀椀le Industry, Business

Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah 

(Whole Time Director)
Promoter, Non Independent and 
Execu琀椀ve Director

Tex琀椀le Industry, Business

Mr. Nipun Arora 

(Director)
Non Independent and Execu琀椀ve 
Director

Tex琀椀le Industry, marke琀椀ng skills, 
Business

Mr. Sanjay S. Majmudar 
(Director)

Independent Non-execu琀椀ve Finance

Mr. Ashok C. Gandhi (Director) Independent Non-execu琀椀ve Legal

Mr. Amol R. Dalal (Director) Independent Non-execu琀椀ve Business

Ms. Aar琀椀 Thakkar
(Director)

Independent Non-execu琀椀ve Finance
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CERTIFICATE ON THE QUALIFICATION OF THE BOARD

As per the requirement of SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀on and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2016 a 
Cer琀椀昀椀cate from the Prac琀椀cing Company Secretary that none of the directors on the Board of the Company 
have been debarred or disquali昀椀ed from being appointed or con琀椀nuing as director of Companies by the 
Board/ Ministry of Corporate A昀昀airs or any such authority is enclosed at the end of this report.

ACCEPTANCE OF RECOMMENDATION GIVEN BY THE COMMITTEES TO THE BOARD

The Commi琀琀ees meet and discuss various relevant ma琀琀ers and recommends the Board on various ma琀琀ers. 
During the year 2022-23, all recommenda琀椀ons of the Commi琀琀ees were accepted by the Board

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND FAMILIARIZATION

The provision of an appropriate induc琀椀on program for new Directors and ongoing training for exis琀椀ng 
Directors is a major contributor to the maintenance of high Corporate Governance standards of the 
Company. The Chief Financial O昀케cer and the Company Secretary are jointly responsible for ensuring that 
such induc琀椀on and training program are provided to Directors. The Independent Directors, from 琀椀me to 
琀椀me request management to provide detailed understanding of any speci昀椀c project, ac琀椀vity or process of 
the Company. The management provides such informa琀椀on and training either at the mee琀椀ng of Board of 
Directors or otherwise.

The induc琀椀on process is designed to:

a. Build an understanding of the Company, its businesses and the markets and regulatory environment in 
which it operates;

b. Provide an apprecia琀椀on of the role and responsibili琀椀es of the Director;

c. Fully equip Directors to perform their role on the Board e昀昀ec琀椀vely; and

d. Develop understanding of Company’s people and its key stakeholder rela琀椀onships.

Upon appointment, Directors receive a Le琀琀er of Appointment viz. h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-
content/uploads/2021/06/Appointment-Le琀琀er-for-Independant-Director.pdf se琀�ng out in detail, the 
terms of appointment, du琀椀es, responsibili琀椀es and expected 琀椀me commitments. In addi琀椀on to the extensive 
induc琀椀on and training provided as part of the familiariza琀椀on program, the Independent Directors are also 
taken through various business and func琀椀onal sessions in the Board mee琀椀ngs including the Board mee琀椀ngs 
to discuss strategy. The details of program for familiariza琀椀on of Independent Directors with the Company are 
put up on the website of the Company at h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/9.-
Familiariza琀椀on-Programme-Independent-Director-2022-23.pdf

INFORMATION SUPPLIED TO THE BOARD

The Board has complete access to all informa琀椀on with the Company. Inter-alia, the following informa琀椀on is 
regularly pro- vided to the Board as a part of the agenda papers well in advance of the Board mee琀椀ngs or is 
tabled in the course of the Board mee琀椀ng:

A. Annual opera琀椀ng plans and budgets and any updates.

B. Capital budgets and any updates.

C. Quarterly results for the listed en琀椀ty and its opera琀椀ng divisions or business segments.

D. Minutes of mee琀椀ngs of audit commi琀琀ee and other commi琀琀ees of the board of directors.

E. The informa琀椀on on recruitment and remunera琀椀on of senior o昀케cers just below the level of board of 
directors, including appointment or removal of Chief Financial O昀케cer and the Company Secretary.

F. Show cause, demand, prosecu琀椀on no琀椀ces and penalty no琀椀ces, which are materially important.

G. Fatal or serious accidents, dangerous occurrences, any material effluent or pollu琀椀on problems.

http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Appointment-Letter-for-Independant-Director.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/06/Appointment-Letter-for-Independant-Director.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/9.-Familiarization-Programme-Independent-Director-2022-23.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/04/9.-Familiarization-Programme-Independent-Director-2022-23.pdf
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H. Any material default in 昀椀nancial obliga琀椀ons to and by the listed en琀椀ty, or substan琀椀al non-payment for 
goods sold by the listed en琀椀ty.

I. Any issue, which involves possible public or product liability claims of substan琀椀al nature, including any 
judgment or order which, may have passed strictures on the conduct of the listed en琀椀ty or taken an 
adverse view regarding another enterprise that may have nega琀椀ve implica琀椀ons on the listed en琀椀ty.

J. Details of any joint venture or collabora琀椀on agreement.

K. Transac琀椀ons that involve substan琀椀al payment towards goodwill, brand equity, or intellectual property.

L. Signi昀椀cant labour problems and their proposed solu琀椀ons. Any signi昀椀cant development in Human 
Resources/ Industrial Rela琀椀ons front like signing of wage agreement, implementa琀椀on of Voluntary 
Re琀椀rement Scheme etc.

M. Sale of investments, subsidiaries, assets which are material in nature and not in normal course of business.

N. Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposures and the steps taken by management to limit the risks 
of adverse ex- change rate movement, if material.

O. Non-compliance of any regulatory, statutory or lis琀椀ng requirements and shareholders service such as 
non-payment of dividend, delay in share transfer etc.

MEETING OF BOARD

The Company held 5 Board Mee琀椀ngs during 2022-23 and the gap between two mee琀椀ngs did not 
exceed 120 days.

The dates on which the Board Mee琀椀ngs held were: 30th May, 2022,13th August, 2022, 28th August, 2022,14th 

November 2022 and 13th February 2023.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

A separate mee琀椀ng of Independent Directors of the Company, without the a琀琀endance of Non- Independent 
Directors and members of management, was held on 13th February, 2023, as required under Schedule IV to 
the Companies Act, 2013 (Code for Independent Directors) and Regula琀椀on 25(3) of the Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons. 
At the Mee琀椀ng, the Independent Directors:

● Reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

● Reviewed the performance of the Chairman of the Company, taking into account the views of Execu琀椀ve 
Director and Non-Execu琀椀ve Directors; and

● Assessed the quality, quan琀椀ty and 琀椀meliness of 昀氀ow of informa琀椀on between the Company management 
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to e昀昀ec琀椀vely and reasonably perform their du琀椀es.

All Independent Directors of the Company a琀琀ended the Mee琀椀ng of Independent Directors Mr. Sanjay 
Majmudar chaired the Mee琀椀ng.

COMMITTEES OF BOARD

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Commi琀琀ee has been formed with a view to provide assistance to the board in ful昀椀lling the Board’s 
responsibili琀椀es. The role of the Audit Commi琀琀ee includes the following: -

1. Oversight of the company’s 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng process and the disclosure of its 昀椀nancial informa琀椀on 
to ensure that the 昀椀nancial statement is correct, su昀케cient and credible;

2. Recommenda琀椀on for appointment, remunera琀椀on and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

3. Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors;
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4. Reviewing, with the management, the annual 昀椀nancial statements and auditor’s report thereon before 
submission to the board for approval, with par琀椀cular reference to:

a. Ma琀琀ers required being included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the 
Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-sec琀椀on 3 of sec琀椀on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

b. Changes, if any, in accoun琀椀ng policies and prac琀椀ces and reasons for the same

c. Major accoun琀椀ng entries involving es琀椀mates based on the exercise of judgment by management

d. Signi昀椀cant adjustments made in the 昀椀nancial statements arising out of audit 昀椀ndings

e. Compliance with lis琀椀ng and other legal requirements rela琀椀ng to 昀椀nancial statements

f. Disclosure of any related party transac琀椀ons

g. Quali昀椀ca琀椀ons in the dra昀琀 audit report

5. Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly 昀椀nancial statements before submission to the 
board for approval;

6. Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / applica琀椀on of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferen琀椀al issue, etc.), the statement of funds u琀椀lized for purposes 
other than those stated in the o昀昀er document / prospectus / no琀椀ce and the report submi琀琀ed by 
the monitoring agency monitoring the u琀椀liza琀椀on of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making 
appropriate recommenda琀椀ons to the Board to take up steps in this ma琀琀er;

7. Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and e昀昀ec琀椀veness of audit process;

8. Approval or any subsequent modi昀椀ca琀椀on of transac琀椀ons of the company with related par琀椀es;

9. Scru琀椀ny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

10. Valua琀椀on of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

11. Evalua琀椀on of internal 昀椀nancial controls and risk management systems;

12. Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the 
internal control systems;

13. Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func琀椀on, if any, including the structure of the internal audit 
department, sta昀케ng and seniority of the o昀케cial heading the department, repor琀椀ng structure coverage 
and frequency of internal audit;

14. Discussion with internal auditors of any signi昀椀cant 昀椀ndings and follow up there on;

15. Reviewing the 昀椀ndings of any internal inves琀椀ga琀椀ons by the internal auditors into ma琀琀ers where there 
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and 
repor琀椀ng the ma琀琀er to the board;

16. Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit 
as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

17. To look into the reasons for substan琀椀al defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, 
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

18. To review the func琀椀oning of the Whistle Blower mechanism;

19. Approval of appointment of CFO (i.e., the whole-琀椀me Finance Director or any other person heading 
the 昀椀nance func琀椀on or discharging that func琀椀on) a昀琀er assessing the quali昀椀ca琀椀ons, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate;
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20. Carrying out any other func琀椀on as is men琀椀oned in the terms of reference of the Audit Commi琀琀ee.

The audit commi琀琀ee review the following informa琀椀on:
(1) Management discussion and analysis of 昀椀nancial condi琀椀on and results of opera琀椀ons;

(2) Statement of signi昀椀cant related party transac琀椀ons (as de昀椀ned by the audit commi琀琀ee), 
submi琀琀ed by management;

(3) Management le琀琀ers / le琀琀ers of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

(4) Internal audit reports rela琀椀ng to internal control weaknesses; and

(5) The appointment, removal and terms of remunera琀椀on of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to 
review by the audit commi琀琀ee.

(6) Statement of devia琀椀ons:

(a) Quarterly statement of devia琀椀on(s) including report of monitoring agency, if applicable, submi琀琀ed 
to stock exchange(s) in terms of Regula琀椀on 32(1) of SEBI (LODR) Regula琀椀ons, 2015.

(b) Annual statement of funds u琀椀lized for purposes other than those stated in the o昀昀er document/
prospectus/no琀椀ce in terms of Regula琀椀on 32(7) of SEBI (LODR) Regula琀椀ons, 2015.

Minutes of the all Audit Commi琀琀ee Mee琀椀ngs are circulated to the Members of the Board of Directors 
and taken note of. Terms of reference and powers of the commi琀琀ee include the areas/powers prescribed 
by Regula琀椀on 24 of SEBI (LODR) Regula琀椀ons, 2015 of stock exchanges.

The composi琀椀on, names of members and par琀椀culars of the mee琀椀ngs and a琀琀endance of the members 
during the year and as on the date of this report are as follows:

Name of Member Designa琀椀on Category No. of 
Mee琀椀ngs

Mee琀椀ngs 
a琀琀ended

Mr. Sanjay Majmudar Chairman Independent – Non- 
Execu琀椀ve Director

5 5

Mr. Ashok C. Gandhi Member Independent – Non- 
Execu琀椀ve Director

5 5

Mr. Amol Dalal Member Independent – Non- 
Execu琀椀ve Director

5 5

The Audit Commi琀琀ee met 5 琀椀mes during the year and gap between two mee琀椀ngs did not exceed four 
months. The dates on which Audit Commi琀琀ee Mee琀椀ngs were held were 30th May, 2022,13th August, 
2022, 28th August, 2022,14th November 2022 and 13th February 2023. Necessary quorum was present at 
above Mee琀椀ngs.

All the members of the Audit Commi琀琀ee are 昀椀nancially literate and are having accoun琀椀ng or related 
昀椀nancial management exper琀椀se.

The mee琀椀ngs of Audit Commi琀琀ee are usually a琀琀ended by Chief Financial O昀케cer, Internal Auditor, 
Company Secretary and a representa琀椀ve of the Statutory Auditors. The Business and Opera琀椀on Heads 
are invited to the Mee琀椀ngs, when required. The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to Commi琀琀ee.

The Chairman of Audit Commi琀琀ee, Mr. Sanjay Majmudar was present at the Annual General Mee琀椀ng of 
the Company held on 29th September 2022
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STAKEHOLDER’S RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

(i) Share Transfer Commi琀琀ee
The Board has long back cons琀椀tuted a share transfer commi琀琀ee consis琀椀ng of three execu琀椀ve directors.

The commi琀琀ee meets at frequent intervals, to approve inter-alia, transfer/transmission of shares, 
dele琀椀on of names, split/consolida琀椀on of shares etc. Details of shares transfer/transmissions approved 
by the commi琀琀ee are placed at the Board mee琀椀ngs from 琀椀me to 琀椀me.

Commi琀琀ee consists of Mr. Vinod P. Arora, Chairman, Mr. Ashish V. Shah, Member & Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah, 
Member.

(ii) Stakeholder / Investors Grievance and Rela琀椀onship Commi琀琀ee
The Company has complied with the requirements of Regula琀椀on 20 of SEBI (Lis琀椀ng obliga琀椀ons and 
disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015 and pursuant to provision of Companies Act, 2013 as 
regards to composi琀椀on of this Commi琀琀ee.

Terms of reference, authority and powers of the Stakeholders Rela琀椀onship Commi琀琀ee are in accordance 
with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regula琀椀ons, 2015.

The composi琀椀on, names of members and par琀椀culars of the mee琀椀ngs and a琀琀endance of the members 
during the year are as follows:

Name of Member Designa琀椀on Category No. of 
Mee琀椀ngs

Mee琀椀ngs 
a琀琀ended

Mr. Amol Dalal Chairman Independent – Non- Execu琀椀ve 4 4

Mr. Vinod P. Arora Member Chairman and Managing Director 4 3

Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah Member Whole Time Director 4 4

Name and Designa琀椀on of Compliance o昀케cer: Mrs. Abira Mansuri Company Secretary of the company 
has appointed w.e.f. 08.07.2023 and Mr. Rahul Makwana Company Secretary of the Company resigned 
w.e.f. 07.04.2023

The commi琀琀ee looks into the ma琀琀ers rela琀椀ng to investor grievances viz, transfer of shares, non–receipt 
of dividend, non-receipt of Balance Sheet and other ma琀琀ers rela琀椀ng thereto.

The commi琀琀ee met four 琀椀mes during the year viz. 30th May, 2022,13th August, 2022,14th November 2022 
and 13th February 2023 and all three members of commi琀琀ee were present at above mee琀椀ngs as per 
above table.

The details of the complaint received/solved/pending during the year are as below:

Nature of Complaint Complaints
received

Complaints
solved

Complaints 
pending

Non receipt of shares cer琀椀昀椀cate a昀琀er transfer etc. - - -

Non receipt of dividend warrants 00 00 Nil

Query regarding demat credit - - -

Others 00 00 Nil

Le琀琀ers received from SEBI/ROC/ Stock Exchange 00 00 Nil

Total 00 00 Nil
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(I) Brief descrip琀椀on of terms of reference

The Company has complied with the requirements of Regula琀椀on 20 of SEBI (LODR) Regula琀椀ons, 2015 
and Sec琀椀on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as regards composi琀椀on of Nomina琀椀on and remunera琀椀on 
Commi琀琀ee.

The terms of reference, roles, authority and Powers of the Nomina琀椀on and Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee 
are in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regula琀椀ons, 2015

(II) Composi琀椀on and a琀琀endance during the year
The composi琀椀on of the Commi琀琀ee and details of Mee琀椀ngs a琀琀ended by Directors during the year are 
given below:

Name of Member Designa琀椀on Category No. of 
Mee琀椀ngs

Mee琀椀ngs 
a琀琀ended

Mr. Sanjay Majmudar Chairman Independent – Non- 
Execu琀椀ve Director

4 4

Mr. Ashok C. Gandhi Member Independent – Non- 
Execu琀椀ve Director

4 4

Mr. Amol Dalal Member Independent – Non- 
Execu琀椀ve Director

4 4

The Commi琀琀ee met 昀椀ve 琀椀mes during the year, on 30th May, 2022,13th August, 2022,14th November 2022 and 
13th February 2023.

The Chairman of the Nomina琀椀on and Remunera琀椀on Commi琀琀ee, Mr. Sanjay Majmudar was present at the 
Annual General Mee琀椀ng of the Company held on 29th September 2022.

Performance Evalua琀椀on of Directors and Board
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015 a separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of 
Individual Directors including the Chairman of the Board who were evaluated on parameters such as level 
of engagement and contribu琀椀on and independence of judgment thereby safeguarding the interest of the 
Company, the assessment of 琀椀me devoted by the Board on the Company’s long term goals and strategies, 
Board e昀昀ec琀椀veness, quality of discussions at the mee琀椀ngs of the Board, 琀椀me spent and quality of discussions.

The performance evalua琀椀on of the Independent Directors was carried out by the en琀椀re Board. The 
performance evalua琀椀on of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by the 
Independent Directors. The board also carried out annual performance evalua琀椀on of the working of its 
various Commi琀琀ees

The overall outcome of this exercise to evaluate e昀昀ec琀椀veness of the Board and its Commi琀琀ees was posi琀椀ve 
and members expressed their sa琀椀sfac琀椀on.

(I) Remunera琀椀on Policy
 Remunera琀椀on to Non-execu琀椀ve Directors

The Non-Execu琀椀ve Directors are paid remunera琀椀on by way of Si琀�ng Fees for each Mee琀椀ng of the Board 
or Commi琀琀ee of Directors a琀琀ended by them. The Non-Execu琀椀ve Director/Independent Directors do not 
have any material pecuniary rela琀椀onship or transac琀椀ons with the Company
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 Remunera琀椀on to Execu琀椀ve Directors
The appointment and remunera琀椀on of Execu琀椀ve Directors including Chairman and Managing Director 
and Whole-琀椀me Director is governed by the recommenda琀椀on of the Remunera琀椀on & Nomina琀椀on 
Commi琀琀ee, Resolu琀椀ons passed by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company. Payment 
of remunera琀椀on to Execu琀椀ve Directors is governed by the respec琀椀ve Agreements executed between 
them and the Company. The remunera琀椀on package of Chairman and Managing Director and Whole-
琀椀me Director comprises of salary, perquisites and allowances, and contribu琀椀ons to Provident Fund as 
approved by the shareholders at the General Mee琀椀ngs. Annual increments are linked to performance 
and are decided by the Remunera琀椀on and Nomina琀椀on Commi琀琀ee and recommended to the Board for 
approval thereof. The remunera琀椀on policy is directed towards rewarding performance, based on review 
of achievements.

Presently, the Company does not have a stock op琀椀ons scheme for its Directors.

The Remunera琀椀on and Nomina琀椀on Policy is displayed on the Company’s website viz. www.aarveedenims.
com

 Details of remunera琀椀on of Directors
The details of remunera琀椀on paid to Directors for the year ended 31st March, 2023 are as follows:

(Amount in Lacs)

Name of Director Salaries Si琀�ng Fees Total

Mr. Vinod P. Arora-CMD 36.00 - 36.00

Mr. Ashish V. Shah-MD 30.00 - 30.00

Mr. Kalpesh V. Shah-WTD 18.00 - 18.00

Mr. Nipun V. Arora-WTD 12.00 - 12.00

Mr. Sanjay S. Majmudar-ID - 0.50 0.50

Mr. Ashok C. Gandhi-ID - 0.50 0.50

Mr. Amol R. Dalal-ID - 0.50 0.50

Ms. Aar琀椀 Thakkar ID - 0.45 0.45

Note: No other remunera琀椀on except si琀�ng fee was paid to non-execu琀椀ve directors during the year 
2022-23.

With the enhanced Corporate Governance requirements under the Act and the SEBI Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons, 
the role and responsibili琀椀es of the Board, par琀椀cularly Independent Directors and Non Execu琀椀ve 
Directors have become more onerous, requiring greater 琀椀me commitments, a琀琀en琀椀on and a higher level 
of oversight.

http://www.aarveedenims.com/
http://www.aarveedenims.com/
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
Terms of reference
In compliance with the Sec琀椀on 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Commi琀琀ee of the Board has been cons琀椀tuted. The Commi琀琀ee recommends the amount to be spent on 
the CSR ac琀椀vi琀椀es to the Board for a par琀椀cular 昀椀nancial year and monitor the CSR ac琀椀vi琀椀es undertaken 
by the Company.

The Board has adopted the CSR Policy as formulated and recommended by the Commi琀琀ee. The same is 
displayed on the website of the Company. The Annual Report on CSR ac琀椀vi琀椀es for the year 2022-23 forms a 
part of the Directors’ Report.

Composi琀椀on and a琀琀endance during the year
The composi琀椀on of Commi琀琀ee during the year is given below:

Name of Member Designa琀椀on Category No. of 
Mee琀椀ngs

Mee琀椀ngs 
a琀琀ended

Mr. Ashish V. Shah Chairman Managing Director 1 1

Mr. Vinod P. Arora Member Chairman and Managing Director 1 1

Mr. Amol Dalal Member Independent – Non- Execu琀椀ve 1 1

During the 昀椀nancial year, the said Commi琀琀ee met on 8th February 2022 for considera琀椀on, review and 
recommenda琀椀on to the Board of Directors of the Company for CSR expenditure. The Commi琀琀ee has 
noted that the company had not triggered the criteria speci昀椀ed under sec琀椀on 135 of the Act for the last 3 
昀椀nancial years and hence the company is not required to follow the provisions of the same and no amount 
was required to be spent towards CSR expenditure for the FY 2022-23 in terms of Sec琀椀on 135(5) of the 
Companies Act, 2013.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Company have a voluntary Risk Management Commi琀琀ee which has been entrusted with the 
responsibility to assist the Board in (a) Overseeing and approving the Company’s enterprise wide risk 
management framework; and (b) Overseeing that all the risks that the organiza琀椀on faces such as strategic, 
昀椀nancial, credit, market, liquidity, security, property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputa琀椀onal and other risks have 
been iden琀椀昀椀ed and assessed and there is an adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable 
of addressing those risks. A Risk Management Policy was reviewed and approved by the Commi琀琀ee. The 
Company manages monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertain琀椀es that can impact its ability to 
achieve its strategic objec琀椀ves. The Company’s management systems, organiza琀椀onal structures, processes, 
standards, code of conduct and behaviors together form the Management System that governs how the 
company conducts the business of the Company and manages associated risks. The Company has introduced 
several improvements to Integrated Enterprise Risk Management, Internal Controls Management and 
Assurance Frameworks and processes to drive a common integrated view of risks, op琀椀mal risk mi琀椀ga琀椀on 
responses and e昀케cient management of internal control and assurance ac琀椀vi琀椀es. This integra琀椀on is enabled 
by all three being fully aligned across Company vide Risk Management, Internal Control and Internal Audit 
methodologies and processes.
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Cons琀椀tu琀椀on of the commi琀琀ee is as under:-

Sr No Name Of Director DIN  Designa琀椀on
1 Mr. Vinod P. Arora 00007065 Chairman

2 Mr. Ashish V. Shah 00007201 Member

3 Mr. Amol R. Dalal 00458885 Member

Risk Management Policy is being posted on the web site of the company h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com/
wp-content/uploads/2021/03/5.-risk-management-policy.pdf

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM FOR DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

The ‘Whistle Blower Policy’ cum Vigil Mechanism is in place which is reviewed by the Audit Commi琀琀ee on 
regular basis. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Commi琀琀ee.

Whistle Blower Policy cum vigil Mechanism for directors and employees of the company is available 
on the website of the company viz., h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/
vigil-machanism.pdf

FEES PAID TO STATUTORY AUDITORS

Total fees for all services paid by the listed en琀椀ty and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the 
statutory auditor and all en琀椀琀椀es in the network 昀椀rm/network en琀椀ty of which the statutory auditor is a part 
if any: ` 5.81 lacs

DISCLOSURES

(i) All transac琀椀ons entered into with Related par琀椀es as de昀椀ned under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regula琀椀on 23 of the SEBI Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons during the 昀椀nancial year 2022-23 were undertaken in 
compliance with aforesaid regulatory provisions. There were no materially signi昀椀cant transac琀椀ons 
with related par琀椀es during the 昀椀nancial year which were in con昀氀ict with the interest of the Company.

(ii) There has been no non-compliance by the Company on any ma琀琀er related to capital markets. Hence 
the ques琀椀on of penal琀椀es or strictures being impose by SEBI or the Stock Exchanges or any other 
statutory authori琀椀es does not arise.

(iii) The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy, to provide a formal mechanism to the Directors and 
employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viola琀椀on of 
the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy. The Policy provides for adequate safeguards against 
vic琀椀miza琀椀on of employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the 
Chairman of the Audit Commi琀琀ee. It is a昀케rmed that no personnel of the Company has been denied 
access to the Audit Commi琀琀ee.

(iv) CFO Cer琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on: The Managing Director and the Chief Financial O昀케cer have cer琀椀昀椀ed to the Board in 
accordance with Part B of Schedule II to the Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons pertaining to CFO cer琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on for the 
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023.

(v) Risk Management Policy: The Company has a well-de昀椀ned risk management framework in place. The 
Company periodically places before the Audit Commi琀琀ee and the Board, the key risks and the risk 
assessment and mi琀椀ga琀椀on procedures followed by the Company.

(vi) The Company has complied with all the mandatory and non-mandatory requirements of the Lis琀椀ng 
Regula琀椀ons rela琀椀ng to Corporate Governance and also complied with Clauses (b) to (i) of Regula琀椀on 
46 (1) & (2) rela琀椀ng to the dissemina琀椀on of informa琀椀on on the website of the Company except of the 
composi琀椀on of the board and for which the company has already received the waiver of penalty from 
Bombay Stock Exchange and duly paid the penalty to Na琀椀onal Stock Exchange.

http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/5.-risk-management-policy.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/5.-risk-management-policy.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/vigil-machanism.pdf
http://www.aarveedenims.com/wp-content/uploads/2017/02/vigil-machanism.pdf
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(i) The status of compliance with the non-mandatory requirements listed in Part E of Schedule II of 
the Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons is as under:

The following non-mandatory requirements have been adopted by the Company:

a. Financial statements of Company are unquali昀椀ed and Members’ a琀琀en琀椀on is invited to 
the observa琀椀on made by the Auditors under “Emphasis of Ma琀琀er” appearing in the 
Auditors’ Report.

b. The Company has appointed separate persons to the posts of Chairman and 
Managing Director.

c. The Internal Auditors report directly place to the Audit Commi琀琀ee.

(Vii)  The policy on dealing with related party transac琀椀ons is disclosed on the Company’s website at the 
following web link: h琀琀p://www.aarveedenims.com/investors/corporate-governance/

(viii)  Disclosures in rela琀椀on to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven琀椀on, Prohibi琀椀on and 
Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. number of complaints 昀椀led during the 昀椀nancial year NIL

b. number of complaints disposed of during the 昀椀nancial year NIL

c. number of complaints pending as on end of the 昀椀nancial year. NIL

GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Rule 11 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 permits circula琀椀on of annual report through electronic 
means to those shareholders whose e-mail IDs are registered with NSDL or CDSL or the shareholders who 
have registered their e-mail IDs with the Company to receive the documents in electronic form and physical 
copies to those shareholders whose e-mail IDs have not been registered either with the Company or with 
the depositories.

To support this green ini琀椀a琀椀ve of the Government, shareholders are requested to register their e-mail ID 
with the DPs, in case shares are held in dematerialized form and with the RTA, in case the shares are held 
in physical form and also in琀椀mate changes, if any, in their registered e-mail IDs to DPs / RTA/ Company 
from 琀椀me to 琀椀me.

ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

The Company has duly followed the accoun琀椀ng standards laid down by the Ins琀椀tute of Chartered Accountants 
of India. The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements of corporate governance as required 
by the provisions of SEBI (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀on and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015.

MEANS OF COMMUNCIATION

i. The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly 昀椀nancial results are published in the na琀椀onal English newspaper- 
Indian Express (English) and in Financial Express (Gujara琀椀 Edi琀椀on of Ahmedabad).

ii. The quarterly results are submi琀琀ed to the Stock Exchanges, wherein the equity shares of the company 
are listed and traded, by way of online 昀椀ling in lis琀椀ng center of such Stock Exchanges.

iii. The 昀椀nancial results are also posted on the Company’s website www. Aarvee-denims.com. There 
were no presenta琀椀on made to Ins琀椀tu琀椀onal Investor or to the analyst during the 昀椀nancial year ended 
31st March 2023.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

The Company is registered in the State of Gujarat having Corporate Iden琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on Number (CIN) as allo琀琀ed 
by Ministry of Corporate A昀昀airs (MCA) as L17110GJ1988PLC010504.

http://www.aarveedenims.com/investors/corporate-governance/
http://www/
http://Aarvee-denims.com
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I. 34thANNUAL GENERAL MEETING:

Date Saturday, 30th September 2023

Time 11:00 A.M.

Venue ThroughVideo Conferencing/OAVM

Financial Calendar From 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023

Financial Year

For the year ended 31st March 2023, results 

were announced on:

First Quarter:
Half Yearly:
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter
For the year ending 31st March 2024, results 

will be announced in:

13th August 2022(Limitedly reviewed) 14th 

November 2022(Limitedly reviewed) 13th 

February 2022 (Limitedly reviewed) 30th May 
2022 (Audited)

For First Quarter
Half Yearly
Third Quarter
Fourth Quarter and Annual

By 14th August 2023 (Un-audited)
By 14th November 2023 (Un-audited)
By 13th February 2024 (Un-audited)
By 30th May 2024 (Audited)

Date of Book Closure NA

Dividend Payment Date NA

Lis琀椀ng on Stock Exchange The Company’s Equity Shares are listed on 
Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) and Na琀椀onal 
Stock Exchange of India Ltd (NSE).

Trade Code 514274 of BSE and ARVEEDEN on NSE

Share Division O昀케ce Link In琀椀me India Pvt. Ltd
5th Floor, 506 TO 508, Amarnath Business Centre 
– 1 ( ABC-1), Beside Gala Business Centre, Nr. 
St. Xavier’s College Corner, Opp. C G Road, 
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380009.
Tel. Nos.079-26465179, Fax No 079-26465179, 
Email: ahmedabad@linkin琀椀me.co.in

Demat ISIN No. INE273D01019

mailto:ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
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II. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Loca琀椀on, date and 琀椀me of the Annual General Mee琀椀ngs and Extra Ordinary General Mee琀椀ngs held 
during the preceding 3 years are as under:-

Date Loca琀椀on Time No. of Special 
Resolu琀椀on passed

29th September, 
2022

191, Shahwadi, Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol 
Sarkhej Highway, Narol, Ahmedabad: 382 
405 (through Video Conferencing)

11:00 A.M. 2

29th September, 
2021

191, Shahwadi, Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol 
Sarkhej Highway, Narol, Ahmedabad: 382 
405 (through Video Conferencing)

11:00 A.M. 2

26th December, 
2020

191, Shahwadi, Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol 
Sarkhej Highway, Narol, Ahmedabad: 382 
405 (through Video Conferencing)

11:00 A.M. 3

 Special resolu琀椀ons passed in the previous three (3) annual general mee琀椀ngs

Sr. No Date Details of Special Resolu琀椀on passed
1 29th September, 2022 1. To Sale certain Windmill of the Company
2 29th September, 2021 1. To Sale certain Windmill of the Company

2.  To Sale Substan琀椀al Part of undertaking (Spinning Unit) of the 
Company

3 26th December, 2020 1.  Re-appointment of Mr. Vinod P.Arora as Chairman and Managing 
Director

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Ashish V. Shah as Managing Director

a. No resolu琀椀on was put through postal ballot in the last AGM nor is any resolu琀椀on proposed 
for F.Y 2022-23.

b. No Extra Ordinary General Mee琀椀ng was held in the last 昀椀nancial year.

 Market Price Data:

MONTH BSE NSE

High (`) Low (`) Turnover High (`) Low (`) Turnover
Apr-22 31.85 23.00 3527777 31.95 23.30 18195525
May-22 30.15 22.00 3314923 29.40 21.95 12186592
Jun-22 25.45 18.4 803663 23.85 18.00 3687448
Jul-22 22.25 16.45 1946508 21.75 17.40 8279213
Aug-22 31.00 20.60 4918708 31.00 20.20 33623502
Sep-22 30.70 23.50 12763877 30.45 24.30 45866609
Oct-22 29.55 23.02 2239010 27.75 24.65 8691002
Nov-22 28.70 21.05 1270019 25.80 22.65 8835824
Dec-22 30.50 22.34 6844500 29.45 20.85 36152573
Jan-23 29.60 23.85 4377475 29.70 23.00 36967249
Feb-23 26.50 19.55 1893069 26.40 19.50 6135755
Mar-23 23.49 16.75 1407848 22.45 16.25 4289733
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 Aarvee Denims share price - NSE

 Aarvee Denims share price - BSE

Share Transfer System : As per the SEBI guidelines shares are transferred by the aforesaid Registrars & 
Transfer Agent. The transfers are normally processed within 10-12 days from the date of receipt, if the 
documents are complete in all respects.

Registrar & Transfer Agent :
Link In琀椀me India Pvt. Ltd
5th Floor, 506 TO 508, Amarnath Business Centre – 1 ( ABC-1), Beside Gala Business Centre, Nr. St. X a v i e r ’s 
College Corner, Opp. C G Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380009.
Tel. Nos.079-26465179, Fax No 079-26465179,
Email: ahmedabad@linkin琀椀me.co.in

mailto:ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
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i. Secretarial Audit

a. Mr. Tapan Shah, Prac琀椀cing Company Secretaries have conducted a Secretarial Audit of the 
Company for the year 2022-23. His Audit Report con昀椀rms that the Company has complied with 
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under, Lis琀椀ng 
Agreements with the Stock Exchanges, Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons, applicable SEBI Regula琀椀ons and other 
laws applicable to the Company. The Secretarial Audit Report forms part of the Board’s Report.

b. Pursuant to Regula琀椀on 40 (9) of the Lis琀椀ng Regula琀椀ons, cer琀椀昀椀cates have been issued on a half-
yearly basis, by a Company Secretary in prac琀椀ce, cer琀椀fying due compliance of share transfer 
formali琀椀es by the Company.

c. A Company Secretary in prac琀椀ce carries out a quarterly Reconcilia琀椀on of Share Capital Audit 
pursuant to the Regula琀椀on 55A of the SEBI (Depositories and Par琀椀cipant) Regula琀椀on, 1996, to 
reconcile the total admi琀琀ed capital with Na琀椀onal Securi琀椀es Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. The audit con昀椀rms 
that the total issued/ paid-up capital is in agreement with the aggregate of the total number 
of shares in physical form and the total number of shares in dematerialized form (held with 
NSDL and CDSL).

ii. Distribu琀椀on of Shareholding as on 31-03-2023

Sr.

No.

Category (Shares) Shareholders Shareholding
Numbers Percentage Numbers Percentage

1 1-500 8572 86.3243 1109580 4.7297
2 501-1000 653 6.5760 547341 2.3331
3 1001-2000 333 3.3535 512996 2.1867
4 2001-3000 112 1.1279 292878 1.2484
5 3001-4000 56 0.5639 198644 0.8467
6 4001-5000 48 0.4834 227611 0.9702
7 5001-10000 63 0.6344 480037 2.0462
8 Above 10000 93 0.9366 20090713 85.6389

Total 9930 100.0000 23459800 100.0000

iii. Shareholding Pa琀琀ern as on 31-03-2023

Category Wise Holdings Summary
Category Total Securi琀椀es %-Issued Capital
Corporate Bodies (Promoter Co) 6953978 29.6421
Clearing Members 14588 0.0622
Other Bodies Corporate 133074 0.5672
Hindu Undivided Family 180465 0.7693
Non Na琀椀onalised Banks 300 0.0013
Non Resident Indians 1726526 7.3595
Non Resident (Non Repatriable) 32608 0.1390
Public 4972113 21.1942
Promoters 8482325 36.1569
Trusts 80000 0.3410
Insurance Companies 493758 2.1047
Body Corporate - Ltd Liability Partnership 4102 0.0175
Investor Educa琀椀on And Protec琀椀on Fund 385963 1.6452
TOTAL 23459800 100
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iv. Dividend declared for the last 10 years

Financial Year % Dividend per shares
2012-13 (Interim Div. considered as Final Div. 2012-13) 5

v. Dematerializa琀椀on of Shares and liquidity

Electronic/ Physical No of Shares Percentage %
CDSL 3097628 13.20
NSDL 20086859 85.63
Physical 275313 1.17
TOTAL 2,34,59,800 100.00

As on 31st March, 2023, 23184487 (98.83%) Equity Shares of the Company were dematerialized. 100% 
promoters share holdings are in dematerialized form.

iv. Plant Loca琀椀on
 a. Registered O昀케ce and Vijay Farm Unit

191, Shahwadi, Nr. Old Octroi Naka, Narol – Sarkhej Highway, Ahmedabad-382 405

 b. Narol Unit
188/2, Ranipur Village, Opp. CNI Church, Narol, Ahmedabad-382 405

 c. Spinning Plant-I
Survey No. 215-217, Village Sari,Sarkhej-Bavla Highway, Tal. Sanand, Dist. Ahmedabad-382 210

 d. Spinning Plant-II
Survey No. 212/2-212/4, Village Sari, Sarkhej-Bavla Highway, Tal. Sanand, Dist. Ahmedabad -382 
210.

v. Address for correspondence
In case any problem or query, shareholders can contact at:

Company Secretary
Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited
191, Shahwadi, Near Old Octroi Naka, Narol Sarkhej Highway, Narol, Ahmedabad - 382 405 

Phone : 91-079- 68147000
Fax : 91-079- 68147070
Email :4cs@aarveedenims.com

Shareholders may also contact Company’s Registrar & Share Transfer Agent at:
Name : Link In琀椀me India Pvt. Ltd.
Address : 5th Floor, 506 TO 508, Amarnath Business Centre – 1 (ABC-1), Beside Gala Business Centre,
Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner, O昀昀 C G Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 380009.
Phone : 91-079- 26465179
Fax : 91-079- 26465179
Email : ahmedabad@linkin琀椀me.co.in

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respec琀椀ve 
Depository Par琀椀cipant.
a) Outstanding GDRs /ADRs / Warrants or any conver琀椀ble instrument, conversion and likely 

impact on equity: NIL

b) Electronic Vo琀椀ng:
Pursuant to sec琀椀on 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Management and Administra琀椀on) Rules, 2014 and other applicable requirements, vo琀椀ng 

mailto:4cs@aarveedenims.com
mailto:ahmedabad@linkintime.co.in
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at the 34th Annual General Mee琀椀ng will be made through electronic vo琀椀ng. The electronic vo琀椀ng 
(“E-Vo琀椀ng”) period will be from 9.00 a.m. on 27th September 2023 to 5.00 p.m. on 29th September 2023, 
both days inclusive.

c) Disclosure of material transac琀椀ons
In terms of Regula琀椀on 26(5) of the SEBI LODR Regula琀椀ons, Senior Management has made disclosure to 
the Board rela琀椀ng to all material 昀椀nancial and commercial transac琀椀ons, if any, where they had personal 
interest that might have been in poten琀椀al con昀氀ict with the interest of the Company. Based on disclosures 
received, none of the o昀케cials in senior management team of the Company have personal interest in any 
昀椀nancial or commercial transac琀椀ons that may have poten琀椀al con昀氀ict with the interest of the Company.

d) Disclosures of the Compliance with corporate governance under Regula琀椀ons 17 to 27 of the SEBI 
LODR Regula琀椀ons except those which are already disclosed elsewhere in this report:

i. Orderly succession to Board and Senior Management: The Board had sa琀椀s昀椀ed itself that in the 
event of a requirement for addi琀椀on/succession at the Board level or in the Senior Management, 
there is a process in place.

 ii. Informa琀椀on supplied to the Board
The Board is presented with relevant informa琀椀on on various ma琀琀ers related to the working of the 
Company, especially those which are cri琀椀cal and require delibera琀椀on for arriving at a decision or 
for resolving an issue. In addi琀椀on to the items which are required to be placed before the Board for 
its no琀椀ng and/or approval, informa琀椀on is properly provided on various signi昀椀cant ma琀琀ers.

In terms of quality and importance, the informa琀椀on supplied by the management to the Board 
of Directors of the Company is precise and provided with relevant details that is necessary for 
the directors to enable them to ful昀椀ll their du琀椀es. The Independent Directors of the Company 
expressed sa琀椀sfac琀椀on on the quality, quan琀椀ty and 琀椀meliness of 昀氀ow of informa琀椀on between the 
Company management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to e昀昀ec琀椀vely and reasonably 
perform their du琀椀es.

 iii. Compliance Cer琀椀昀椀cate
The MD and Whole 琀椀me Director have cer琀椀昀椀ed to the Board with regard to the 昀椀nancial statements 
and other ma琀琀ers as required under Regula琀椀on 17(8), read with Part B of Schedule II to the SEBI 
LODR Regula琀椀ons and the same is given in this Annual Report.

 iv. Report on Corporate Governance
This sec琀椀on, read together with the informa琀椀on given in the Board’s Report, Management 
Discussion and Analysis sec琀椀on and General Shareholder Informa琀椀on, cons琀椀tute the compliance 
report on Corporate Governance during the year. The company submits the quarterly compliance 
report on regular basis to the stock exchanges as required under Regula琀椀on 27 of the SEBI LODR 
Regula琀椀ons.

 v.  Cer琀椀昀椀cate from Prac琀椀cing Company Secretary on compliance of Corporate Governance 
condi琀椀ons
The Company has obtained the Cer琀椀昀椀cate from a Prac琀椀cing Company Secretary regarding 
compliance with the provisions rela琀椀ng to corporate governance laid down in Part E of Schedule V 
to the SEBI LODR Regula琀椀ons along with some quali昀椀ca琀椀ons and the Cer琀椀昀椀cate to the e昀昀ect that 
none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disquali昀椀ed from being appointed 
or con琀椀nuing as Director of companies by the Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate A昀昀airs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

These Cer琀椀昀椀cate(s) are annexed to the Board’s Report and will be sent to the stock exchanges, 
along with the Annual Report to be 昀椀led by the Company.
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   46(2)(b) TO (I) OF COMPLIANCE OF CORPORTE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN 

REGULATION 17 TO 27 AND REGULATION LISTING REGULATION

Sr.

No.

Par琀椀culars Regula- 

琀椀on
Compliance 
status Yes/ 

No/N.A

Compliance observed for the 
following

1. Board of Directors 17 Yes  Composi琀椀on
 Mee琀椀ngs
 Review of compliance
 report

  Plans for orderly succession 
for appointments

 Code of Conduct
  Fees/compensa琀椀on to Non- 

Execu琀椀ve Directors
  Minimum informa琀椀on to be 

placed before the Board
 Compliance Cer琀椀昀椀cate
  Risk assessment and 

management
 Performance evolu琀椀on of
 Independent Directors

2. Audit Commi琀琀ee 18 Yes  Composi琀椀on
 Mee琀椀ngs
 Power of the Commi琀琀ee
  Role of the Commi琀琀ee and 

review of informa琀椀on by
 the Commi琀琀ee

3. Nomina琀椀on and 
Remunera琀椀on 
Commi琀琀ee

19 Yes  Composi琀椀on
 Role of the Commi琀琀ee

4. Stakeholders’ 
Rela琀椀onship commi琀琀ee

20 Yes  Composi琀椀on
 Role of the Commi琀琀ee

5. Risk Management 
Commi琀琀ee

21 Yes   Composi琀椀on (Adopted 
Voluntarily)

 Role of the Commi琀琀ee

6. Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes   Formula琀椀on of Vigil 
Mechanism for Directors and 
employees

  Director access to 
Chairperson of Audit

 Commi琀琀ee
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Sr.

No.

Par琀椀culars Regula- 

琀椀on
Compliance 
status Yes/ 

No/N.A

Compliance observed for the 
following

7. Related Party Transac琀椀on 23 Yes   Policy on Materiality of 
Related party Transac琀椀ons 
and dealing with Related 
Party Transac琀椀ons

  Approval including omnibus 
approval of Audit Commi琀琀ee

 Review of related Party
 Transac琀椀ons

8. Subsidiaries of the 
Company

24 Yes   There was no material 
subsidiary of the Company 
and as a result the other 
compliance in respect of 
material subsidiary were not 
applicable

  Review of 昀椀nancial 
statements of unlisted 
subsidiary by the Audit 
Commi琀琀ee was not applicable

  Signi昀椀cant transac琀椀ons and 
arrangement of unlisted 
subsidiary was not applicable

9. Obliga琀椀on with respect 
to Independent Directors

25 Yes   Maximum Directorship and 
tenure

  Mee琀椀ng of Independent 
Directors

 Familiariza琀椀on of
 Independent Directors

10 Obliga琀椀on with respect 
to Directors and Senior 
Managements

26 Yes   Memberships/ 
Chairpersonship in 
Commi琀琀ees

  A昀케rma琀椀on on Compliance of 
Code of Conduct by directors 
and Senior Management

  Disclosure of shareholding by 
Non-Execu琀椀ve Directors

  Discloser by Senior 
Management about poten琀椀al 
con昀氀icts of

 interest
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Sr.

No.

Par琀椀culars Regula- 

琀椀on
Compliance 
status Yes/ 

No/N.A

Compliance observed for the 
following

11. Other Corporate 
Governance 
requirements

27 Yes   Compliance with discre琀椀onary 
requirements

  Filing of quarterly compliance 
report on

 Corporate Governance

12. Website 46(2)
(b)

to (i)

Yes, some 
of the 

policies not 
reviewed 

and 

updated

  Terms and condi琀椀ons for 
appointment of Independent 
Directors

  Composi琀椀on of various 
Commi琀琀ees of the Board of 
Directors

  Code of Conduct of Board 
of Directors and Senior 
Management personnel

  Details of establishment of 
Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle 
Blower policy

  Policy on dealing with Related 
Party Transac琀椀ons

  Policy for determining 
material subsidiaries

  Details of familiariza琀椀on 
programmes imparted to

 Independent Directors

e) Foreign exchange risk and hedging ac琀椀vi琀椀es
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash 昀氀ows of an exposure will 昀氀uctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through 
its sales and purchases from overseas suppliers in foreign currencies. The company measures risk 
through sensi琀椀vity analysis.
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Annexure to Corporate Governance Report
To,
The Members of Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited

Declara琀椀on by the Managing Director under Para D of Schedule V of the SEBI 
(Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015

We, hereby declare that that all the members of the Board of Directors and senior management 
personnel have a昀케rmed compliance with the Code of Conduct, as applicable to them, for the year ended 
31st March, 2023 .

Date: 28.08.2023 Vinod Arora
Place: Ahmedabad (Chairman & Managing Director)

CERTIFICATION

(Pursuant to Regula琀椀on 17(8) of (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015)

To
The Board of Directors

We hereby cer琀椀fy that:

a. We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 
2023 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 
contain statements that might be misleading;

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s a昀昀airs and are in 
compliance with exis琀椀ng accoun琀椀ng standards, applicable laws and regula琀椀ons.

b. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transac琀椀ons entered into by the Company 
during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or viola琀椀ve of the Company’s code of conduct.

c. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng and 
that we have evaluated the e昀昀ec琀椀veness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 
昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng and we have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Commi琀琀ee de昀椀ciencies in the 
design or opera琀椀on of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken 
or propose to take to rec琀椀fy these de昀椀ciencies.

d. We have indicated to the auditors and the Audit commi琀琀ee –

i. signi昀椀cant changes in internal control over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng during the year;

ii. signi昀椀cant changes in accoun琀椀ng policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed 
in the notes to the 昀椀nancial statements; and

iii. Instances of signi昀椀cant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, 
if any, of the management or an employee having a signi昀椀cant role in the Company’s internal 
control system over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng.

Date: 28.08.2023 Ashish Shah Ketan Desai
Place: Ahmedabad Managing Director CFO
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE
Registra琀椀on No.: L17110GJ1988PLC010504 Nominal Capital: ` 50,000,0000/-

To,
The Members of
AARVEE DENIMS & EXPORTS LIMITED

CIN : L17110GJ1988PLC010504
Ahmedabad

I have examined the compliance of condi琀椀ons of corporate governance by AARVEE DENIMS & EXPORTS 

LIMITED , for the year ended on March 31, 2023 as s琀椀pulated under Regula琀椀ons 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) 
of sub- regula琀椀on (2) of Regula琀椀on 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board 
of India (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015, amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me, 
pursuant to the Lis琀椀ng Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges.

The compliance of condi琀椀ons of corporate governance is the responsibility of the management. My 
examina琀椀on was limited to procedures and implementa琀椀on thereof, adopted by the Company, for ensuring 
the compliance of the condi琀椀ons of corporate governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion 
on the 昀椀nancial statements of the Company.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa琀椀on and according to the explana琀椀ons given to me and the 
representa琀椀ons made by the Directors and the Management, I cer琀椀fy that the Company has generally 
complied with the mandatory condi琀椀ons as s琀椀pulated in above men琀椀oned Chapter IV of Securi琀椀es and 
Exchange Board of India (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015, pursuant to 
the Lis琀椀ng Agreement of the said Company with stock exchanges except:

Some of the policies on the Company’s Website have not been reviewed & updated, as per the regula琀椀ons/
circulars/ guidelines issued by SEBI

I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 
e昀케ciency or e昀昀ec琀椀veness with which the management has conducted the a昀昀airs of the Company.

This cer琀椀昀椀cate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with the aforesaid Regula琀椀ons and may not be 
suitable for any other purpose.

Signature:

Name of Company Secretary : TAPAN SHAH
Membership No. : FCS4476

C P No. : 2839
Place: Ahmedabad UDIN : F004476E000764367
Date: 14th August 2023 PR No.: 673/2020
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regula琀椀on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI 

(Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015)

To,
The Members of
AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS LTD

191 Shahwadi, Near Old Octroi Naka, Narol Sarkhej Highway,
Narol, Ahmedabad-382405

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 
of AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS LTD, having CIN: L17110GJ1988PLC010504 and having registered o昀케ce 
at 191 Shahwadi, Near Old Octroi Naka, Narol Sarkhej Highway, Narol Ahmedabad 382405 (hereina昀琀er 
referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this 
Cer琀椀昀椀cate, in accordance with Regula琀椀on 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securi琀椀es Exchange Board of India (Lis琀椀ng Obliga琀椀ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula琀椀ons, 2015, 
amended from 琀椀me to 琀椀me.

In my opinion and to the best of my informa琀椀on and according to the veri昀椀ca琀椀ons (including Directors 
Iden琀椀昀椀ca琀椀on Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explana琀椀ons 
furnished to me by the Company & its o昀케cers and considering the relaxa琀椀ons granted by the Ministry of 
Corporate A昀昀airs and Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19, 
I hereby cer琀椀fy that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial 
Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or disquali昀椀ed from being appointed or con琀椀nuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securi琀椀es and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate A昀昀airs or any 
such other Statutory Authority.

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company
1. Vinod Parmanand Arora 00007065 01/10/2010

2. Ashish Virendrabhai Shah 00007201 28/03/1988

3. Kalpesh Virendrabhai Shah 00007262 01/10/2010

4. Nipun Vinodkumar Arora 00989835 11/08/2018

5. Sanjay Shaileshbhai Majmudar 00091305 14/11/2003

6. Ashok Chandrakant Gandhi 00022507 11/11/1995

7. Amol Rohitbhai Dalal 00458885 31/03/2004

8. Aar琀椀ben Pravinbhai Thakkar 08603903 14/11/2019

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / con琀椀nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 
of the management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my 
veri昀椀ca琀椀on. This cer琀椀昀椀cate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
e昀케ciency or e昀昀ec琀椀veness with which the management has conducted the a昀昀airs of the Company.

Name of Company Secretary : TAPAN SHAH
Membership No. : FCS4476

C P No. : 2839
Place: Ahmedabad UDIN : F004476E000764389
Date: 14th August 2023 PR No.: 673/2020

http://www.mca.gov.in
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DISCLAIMER

Statements in the Directors’ Report & Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s 
objec琀椀ves, projec琀椀ons, es琀椀mates, expecta琀椀ons or predic琀椀ons may be “forward-looking statements” within 
the meaning of applicable securi琀椀es laws and regula琀椀ons. Actual results could di昀昀er materially from those 
expressed or implied. Important factors that could make di昀昀erence to the Company’s opera琀椀ons include 
raw material availability and its prices, cyclical demand and pricing in the Company’s principle markets, 
changes in Government regula琀椀ons, tax regimes, economic developments within India and the countries in 
which the Company conducts business and other ancillary factors.

OVERVIEW OF THE ECONOMY
The global economy is going through a slowdown on account of mul琀椀ple shocks. A昀琀er recovering from the 
pandemic-induced downfall, the global economy has lost momentum on account of Russia-Ukraine war 
and other factors, which is slowing down growth. The con昀氀ict has disrupted global supply chains and led to 
a spike in prices of cri琀椀cal commodi琀椀es, leading to an up琀椀ck in in昀氀a琀椀onary pressures. Major central banks 
around the world undertook monetary 琀椀ghtening to restrain the consequent in昀氀a琀椀on which has resulted in 
increased borrowing costs. High in昀氀a琀椀on is also re昀氀ected in mul琀椀ple leading indicators of global economic 
ac琀椀vity. IMF has projected global growth to decline from 6.0 per cent in 2021 to 3.2 per cent in 2022 and 2.7 
per cent in 2023. Rising interest rates and the war in Ukraine con琀椀nue to weigh on economic ac琀椀vity. With 
in昀氀a琀椀on persis琀椀ng in the advanced economies and the central banks con琀椀nuing with rate hikes, downside 
risks to the global economic outlook appear elevated.

INDIA – ECONOMIC OVERVIEW
India’s growth con琀椀nues to be resilient despite some signs of modera琀椀on in growth. The growth is driven 
by strong performance in the manufacturing, agriculture and service sectors. The government’s focus on 
infrastructure development, investment in manufacturing and agriculture and steps to improve ease of 
doing business helped to boost growth. The World Bank has revised GDP forecast to 6.3 percent (from earlier 
forecast of 6.6 percent) for 昀椀nancial year 2023-24. Going forward, Growth is expected to be constrained by 
slower consump琀椀on growth and challenging external condi琀椀ons. Rising borrowing costs and slower income 
growth will also weigh on private consump琀椀on growth. Government consump琀椀on is projected to grow at 
a slower pace due to the withdrawal of pandemic-related 昀椀scal support measures. There were some signs 
of modera琀椀on in the second half of the 昀椀nancial year 2022-23. In昀氀a琀椀on remained high, averaging around 
6.7 percent in the 昀椀nancial year 2022-23 but the current-account de昀椀cit narrowed in Q3 on the back of 
strong growth in service exports and easing global commodity prices. As per the latest IMF World Economic 
Outlook es琀椀mates, the Indian economy con琀椀nues to be one of the fastest growing major economies.

OVERVIEW OF INDIAN TEXTILE MARKET
India’s tex琀椀les and clothing industry is one of the mainstays of the na琀椀onal economy. It contributes 
signi昀椀cantly to foreign exchange revenues and also holds importance from the employment point of view 
as it provides direct and indirect employment and is a source of livelihood for millions of people including 
a large number of women and rural popula琀椀on. The factors contribu琀椀ng to growth of the sector include 
presence of complete tex琀椀les value chain and self-reliance in raw materials with high spinning and weaving 
capacity, compe琀椀琀椀ve costs of manufacturing, favourable Government policies, large and growing domes琀椀c 
market, greater digital penetra琀椀on including e-commerce, availability of vast pool of skilled and semi-skilled 
workforce, besides an enabling infrastructure.
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FINANCIAL RESULTS AND OUTLOOK:

Financial performance
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

(` in Lacs)

Par琀椀culars Year ended
31.03.23

Year ended
31.03.22

Revenue from Opera琀椀ons 26,609.59 43955.52

Pro昀椀t before tax (9,434.97) (6,345.01)

Pro昀椀t a昀琀er Tax from con琀椀nuing and discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons (6,504.90) (4142.27)

REVENUE

There has been a decreased in Revenue from opera琀椀ons by around 39% from Rs 43,955.52 lacs to ̀  26,609.59 
lacs due to market condi琀椀ons.

RAW MATERIAL
Raw material consump琀椀on decreased from ` 28351 lacs to ` 15857 lacs due to decreased in produc琀椀on 

ac琀椀vi琀椀es.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance cost increased to ` 4590 lacs from 4308 Lacs during the previous year.

OTHER EXPENSES

Other expenses decreased to ` 7317 Lacs as compared to ` 11827 Lacs during previous year mainly due to 
reduced opera琀椀onal turnover

WORKING CAPITAL
The Company has further reduced the working capital limit a昀琀er availment of ECLGS 2.0 Ext. loan and 
u琀椀liza琀椀on of opera琀椀onal cash 昀氀ows.

RISKS AND CONCERNS

The company has an e昀昀ec琀椀ve framework for assessment and mi琀椀ga琀椀on of the risk. The management of the 
Company iden琀椀昀椀es, reviews and develops a plan for reducing risks. Current global and domes琀椀c headwinds 
need to be closely monitored for their impact on the business opera琀椀ons. The Company has put in place 
appropriate measure for its mi琀椀ga琀椀on including business por琀昀olio risk, 昀椀nancial risk and legal risk and 
internal process risk.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has in place Its Internal controls system as per the industry standards. The internal control 
systems of the company are commensurate with the size and nature of its business ac琀椀vi琀椀es. There is a 
proper system to safeguard the interests of the company. The Board of Directors and Audit Commi琀琀ee 
are responsible for ensuring that the Internal Controls system laid down by the Company is adequate and 
opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀vely by reviewing at regular intervals. Internal Control system is in line with compliances 
requirement and expecta琀椀ons of business associates like customers, ins琀椀tu琀椀ons and society at large.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company considers its human resources as one of the most valuable resources available to the 
Company. The Company con琀椀nues to provide them with a safe and excellent working environment. During 
the 昀椀nancial year under review the company has maintained peaceful and harmonious industrial rela琀椀ons.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements of Management Discussion and Analysis Report hereinabove may contain certain forward-
looking objec琀椀ves, based on various assump琀椀ons on the Company’s present and future business strategies 
and the environment in which we operate. Actual results may di昀昀er substan琀椀ally or materially from those 
expressed or implied due to risk and uncertain琀椀es. The opera琀椀ons of the Company could be in昀氀uenced 
by various factors such as domes琀椀c and global demand and supply condi琀椀ons a昀昀ec琀椀ng sales volumes and 
selling prices of 昀椀nished goods, input availability and cost, new regula琀椀ons and Government policies, Tax 
Laws within the country and other factors like li琀椀ga琀椀on and industrial rela琀椀ons of the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Vinod Arora
Date: 28.08.2023 (Chairman & Managing Director) 
Place: Ahmedabad DIN: 00007065
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of

Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: -
Opinion: -

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of M/s Aarvee Denims and 

Exports Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023, the Statement 

of Pro昀椀t and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement, Statement of changes in Equity for the year then ended and 
a summary of the signi昀椀cant accoun琀椀ng policies and other explanatory informa琀椀on. (Collec琀椀vely referred 
to as ‘standalone 昀椀nancial statements’)

In our opinion and to the best of our informa琀椀on and according to the explana琀椀ons given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the informa琀椀on required by the Companies Act,2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun琀椀ng principles 
generally accepted in India of the state of a昀昀airs of the Company as at 31st March 2023, its loss, total 

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash 昀氀ows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion: -

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on audi琀椀ng speci昀椀ed under sec琀椀on 143 (10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Our

responsibili琀椀es under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibili琀椀es for the audit of 
the Ind AS Financial Statements sec琀椀on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the code of ethics issued by the Ins琀椀tute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the 
Act and the rules thereunder, and we have ful昀椀lled our other ethical responsibili琀椀es in accordance with 
these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su昀케cient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Emphasis of Ma琀琀er: -
A琀琀en琀椀on is invited to Note No. 48 of the audited 昀椀nancial results regarding disclosures made under 
MSMED Act, 2006. We have relied upon and accepted the informa琀椀on/data prepared and submi琀琀ed by the 
management as such.

Our opinion is not modi昀椀ed in respect of above ma琀琀er.
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Key audit ma琀琀ers: -
Key audit ma琀琀ers are those ma琀琀ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most signi昀椀cance in our 
audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period. These ma琀琀ers were addressed in the context 
of our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do 

not provide a separate opinion on these ma琀琀ers.

The Key Audit Ma琀琀er How the ma琀琀er was addressed in our audit
Recogni琀椀on of Deferred tax assets, including Minimum 
Alternate Tax (MAT) credit en琀椀tlement. Deferred tax 
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable pro昀椀t will be available against which 
the deduc琀椀ble temporary di昀昀erences and the carry 
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses 
can be u琀椀lized. The Company’s ability to recognize 
previously

un-recognized deferred tax assets is assessed by the 
management at the end of each repor琀椀ng period, 
taking into account forecasts of future taxable 
pro昀椀ts and the applicable tax laws. As at March 31, 
2023 the Company has recognized total deferred tax 
assets (net) amoun琀椀ng to ` 5335.94 lakhs (including 
`1357.45 lakhs of Minimum Alternate Tax credit 
en琀椀tlement). The recogni琀椀on of deferred tax asset 
is a key audit ma琀琀er as its recoverability within the 
allowed 琀椀me frame involves signi昀椀cant es琀椀mate of the 
昀椀nancial projec琀椀ons, availability of su昀케cient taxable 
income in the future and signi昀椀cant judgements in 
the interpreta琀椀on of tax regula琀椀ons and tax posi琀椀ons 
adopted by the Company.

Our audit procedures to test the recogni琀椀on 
of deferred tax assets (including MAT credit 
en琀椀tlement) included the following: Read and 
understood the Company’s accoun琀椀ng policies 
with respect to recogni琀椀on of deferred taxes and 
for assessing compliance with Ind AS 12 ‘Income 

Taxes’. We have evaluated the Company’s tax 
posi琀椀ons by assessing the prevalent tax laws and 
compared the currnt posi琀椀on with prior years 
and past precedents. Assessed the consistency 
of data used in the deferred tax assets amount 
calcula琀椀on and other facts as explained by 
the senior management of the Company. We 
assessed the disclosures in Note:49 of the Ind 
AS 昀椀nancial statements in accordance with the 
requirements of Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’.

Informa琀椀on other than the Ind AS Financial Statements and auditors’ report thereon: -
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the prepara琀椀on of the other informa琀椀on. The other 
informa琀椀on comprises the informa琀椀on included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s 
Report, Business Responsibility Report but does not include the Ind AS Financial Statements and our 

auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other informa琀椀on and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connec琀椀on with our audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
informa琀椀on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa琀椀on is materially inconsistent with the 
standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or 

otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other informa琀椀on, we are required to report that fact. We have 
nothing to report in this regard.
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements: -
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma琀琀ers stated in Sec琀椀on 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara琀椀on of these Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true 
and fair view of the 昀椀nancial posi琀椀on, 昀椀nancial performance including other comprehensive income, cash 
昀氀ows, statement of changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accoun琀椀ng principles generally 
accepted in India, including the Indian Accoun琀椀ng Standards (Ind AS) speci昀椀ed under Sec琀椀on 133 of the 
Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accoun琀椀ng Standards) Rules, 2016, as amended. This responsibility 
also includes maintenance of adequate accoun琀椀ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preven琀椀ng and detec琀椀ng frauds and other irregulari琀椀es; 
selec琀椀on and applica琀椀on of appropriate accoun琀椀ng policies; making judgments and es琀椀mates that are 
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementa琀椀on and maintenance of adequate internal 昀椀nancial 
controls, that were opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun琀椀ng 
records, relevant to the prepara琀椀on and presenta琀椀on of the Ind AS Financial Statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 

to con琀椀nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma琀琀ers related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accoun琀椀ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
opera琀椀ons, or has no realis琀椀c alterna琀椀ve but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements: -
Our objec琀椀ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 

includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to in昀氀uence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS 
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep琀椀cism throughout the audit. We also:

• Iden琀椀fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS Financial Statement, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain 

audit evidence that is su昀케cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detec琀椀ng a material misstatement resul琀椀ng from fraud is higher than for one resul琀椀ng from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, inten琀椀onal omissions, misrepresenta琀椀ons, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal 昀椀nancial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedure that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec琀椀on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion whether the Company has adequate internal 昀椀nancial controls 
system in place and the opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀veness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun琀椀ng policies used and the reasonableness of the accoun琀椀ng 
es琀椀mates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun琀椀ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
condi琀椀ons that may cast signi昀椀cant doubt on the Company’s ability to con琀椀nue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a琀琀en琀椀on in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
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auditor’s report. However, future events or condi琀椀ons may cause the Company to cease to con琀椀nue as 
a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presenta琀椀on, structure and content of the Ind AS Financial Statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS Financial Statements represent the underlying transac琀椀ons 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presenta琀椀on.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that, 

individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 

user of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements may be in昀氀uenced. We consider quan琀椀ta琀椀ve materiality 
and qualita琀椀ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua琀椀ng the results of our works; 
and (ii) to evaluate the e昀昀ect of any iden琀椀昀椀ed misstatements in the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma琀琀ers, the planned scope 
and 琀椀ming of the audit and signi昀椀cant audit 昀椀ndings, including any signi昀椀cant de昀椀ciencies in internal control 
that we iden琀椀fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela琀椀onships and other ma琀琀ers 
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the ma琀琀ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma琀琀ers that 
were of most signi昀椀cance in the audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements of the current period and are 
therefore the key audit ma琀琀ers. We describe these ma琀琀ers in our auditors’ report unless law or regula琀椀on 
precludes public disclosure about the ma琀琀er or when, in extremely rare circumstance, we determine that 
a ma琀琀er should not be communicate in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest bene昀椀ts of such communica琀椀on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements: -

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order,2020 (‘The Order’) issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of subsec琀椀on 11 of sec琀椀on 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure – A, 

a statement on the ma琀琀er speci昀椀ed in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Sec琀椀on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examina琀椀on of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of changes in equity, and the cash 昀氀ow statement dealt with by this report are in 
agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the Indian Accoun琀椀ng 
Standards speci昀椀ed under Sec琀椀on 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accoun琀椀ng 
Standards) Rules, 2016, as amended;

(e) On the basis of the wri琀琀en representa琀椀ons received from the directors as on 31st March, 

2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of directors is disquali昀椀ed the as on 31st 

March,2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Sec琀椀on 164(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal 昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng and the 
opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀veness of such controls; refer to our separate report in Annexure – B. Our report 
expresses an unmodi昀椀ed opinion on the adequacy and opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀veness of the Company’s 
internal 昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng.
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(g) With respect to the other ma琀琀ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the 
requirements of sec琀椀on 197(6) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our informa琀椀on and according to the explana琀椀ons given to us, 
the remunera琀椀on paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the 
provisions of sec琀椀on 197 of the Act.

(h) With respect to the other ma琀琀ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best 
of our informa琀椀on and according to the explana琀椀ons given to us:

i. The Company has no pending li琀椀ga琀椀ons which can signi昀椀cantly impact its 昀椀nancial posi琀椀on.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva琀椀ve contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. The company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Educa琀椀on and 
Protec琀椀on fund.

iv. a)  The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced 

or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or en琀椀ty, including 
foreign en琀椀ty (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri琀椀ng 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in other persons or en琀椀琀椀es iden琀椀昀椀ed in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (“Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries;

 b)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 

other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 

by the company from any person(s) or en琀椀ty(ies), including foreign en琀椀琀椀es (“Funding 
Par琀椀es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in wri琀椀ng or otherwise, that 
the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or 

en琀椀琀椀es iden琀椀昀椀ed in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party 
(“Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries; and

 c)  Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our no琀椀ce that has caused us to believe that the 
representa琀椀ons under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

v. No dividend is declared or paid during this year by the company; hence requirement of this 
clause is not applicable to the company and hence not commented thereon.

For, M/s Pankaj R. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Registra琀椀on No. 107361W)

CA Nilesh Shah

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad (Membership No. 107414)
Date: 30-05-2023 UDIN: 23107414BGUYZQ6091
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ANNEXURE - A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS LIMITED

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirements of our 
report of even date to the Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023:

1. In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full par琀椀culars, including 
quan琀椀ta琀椀ve details and situa琀椀on of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of 
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par琀椀culars of intangible assets.

(b) As explained to us, the Property, Plant and Equipment and right-of-use assets have been physically 
veri昀椀ed by the management in a phased manner, designed to cover all the items over a period 
of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and 

nature of its business. no material discrepancies were no琀椀ced on such physical veri昀椀ca琀椀on.

(c) According to the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons given to us and on the basis of our examina琀椀on of 
the records of the Company and based on the examina琀椀ons of the registered sale deed/transfer 
deed provided to us, we report that, the 琀椀tle deeds, comprising all the immovable proper琀椀es of 
land and buildings, are held in the name of the Company as at balance sheet date. Immovable 
proper琀椀es of land and buildings whose 琀椀tle deeds have been pledged as security for loans are 
held in the name of the Company based on con昀椀rma琀椀ons received from landers. Pursuant to 
lease deed agreement entered in to by the company with lessors, the company had acquired 
immovable property i.e., Land and building on lease hold basis and therefore the ques琀椀on of 
琀椀tle deeds of immovable proper琀椀es in the name of the company does not arise. In respect of 
immovable proper琀椀es of land and buildings that have been taken on lease, the lease agreements 
are in the name of the company, where the company is the lessee in the agreement.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use 
assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) As explained to us, no proceedings have been ini琀椀ated during the year or are pending against the 
Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transac琀椀ons 
(Prohibi琀椀on) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2. In respect of its Inventories:
(a) As explained to us, physical veri昀椀ca琀椀on of the inventories has been conducted at reasonable 

intervals by the management, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of 

the Company and nature of its inventories. As explained to us, the discrepancies no琀椀ced on such 
veri昀椀ca琀椀on between the physical stocks and book records were not signi昀椀cant and the same have 
been properly dealt with in the books of account.

(b) As disclosed in Note No: 22, the company has been sanc琀椀oned working capital limits in excess of 
` 5.00 Crores from banks on the basis of security of current assets. As explained to us and on the 
basis of test-check of relevant records/subsidiary records/books of accounts as produced before 
us and as per the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons furnished to us, the amounts of current assets as 
reported are generally in agreement with the unaudited books of accounts of the company.

3. The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans 

or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, 昀椀rms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other par琀椀es. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company.
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4. In our opinion and according to the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons given to us, during the year under 
review, the company has not made any investments or granted any loans or provide guarantees or 

securi琀椀es and therefore, the ques琀椀on of compliance as to the provisions of Sec琀椀on 185 and 186 of 
the Act, does not arise. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (iv) of the Order are not applicable 
to the Company.

5. According to the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons given to us, the company has generally complied with 
the provisions of Sec琀椀ons 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of 
Deposit) Rules, 2014 (as amended) except there was a shor琀昀all in inves琀椀ng in “Liquid Assets’. According 
to the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons given to us, no order has been passed by the Company Law Board 
or the Na琀椀onal Company Law Tribunal or The Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal.

6. With reference to the compulsory cost records to be maintained by the Company pursuant to the 

Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014 prescribed by the Central Government of India under 
sec琀椀on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has complied with the same.

7. In respect of Statutory Dues:
(a) The company is regular in deposi琀椀ng with appropriate authori琀椀es undisputed statutory dues 

including provident fund, investor educa琀椀on and protec琀椀on fund, employee’s state insurance, 
income tax, sales tax, wealth tax, custom duty, excise duty, cess, GST and other statutory dues 
applicable to it.

(b) According to the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀on given to us, there are no dues of Goods and Service 
Tax, sales tax, income tax, custom duty, wealth tax, service tax, excise duty and cess which have 
not been deposited on account of any dispute except for the following:

Name of the 

Statue

Nature of 

dues

Period 

to which 
amount 

relates

Amount 

Involved 

(` In 

Lakhs)

Amount 

Unpaid 

(` In 

Lakhs)

 Forum where the 

dispute is pending

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax F.Y 2011-12 19.45 19.45  Commissioner of 

Income Tax (Appeal)

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax F.Y 2010-11 5.36 5.36  Commissioner of 

Income Tax (Appeal)

Income Tax Act, 
1961

Income Tax F.Y 2013-14 1161.03 1161.03  Commissioner of 

Income Tax (Appeal)

8. There were no transac琀椀ons rela琀椀ng to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

9. (a)  In our opinion and according to the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons given to us, the Company has 
defaulted in the payment of installment & interest of the loans to banks amoun琀椀ng to ` 7 Crores 

as on 31.03.2023.

During the year, the Company has not taken any loan either from 昀椀nancial ins琀椀tu琀椀ons or from the 
government and has not issued any debentures, except from Banks and its Directors.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or 昀椀nancial ins琀椀tu琀椀on or 
government or any government authority.

(c) On the basis of review of u琀椀liza琀椀on of funds pertaining to term loans on an overall basis and 
related informa琀椀on made available to us, the term loans taken by the Company have been 
applied for the purpose for which they are obtained.
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(d) On an overall examina琀椀on of the 昀椀nancial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-term 
basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examina琀椀on of the 昀椀nancial statements of the Company, the Company has not 
taken any funds from any en琀椀ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga琀椀ons of its 
subsidiaries or associates.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securi琀椀es held in its 
subsidiaries as de昀椀ned under the Companies Act, 2013 and hence repor琀椀ng on Clause 3(ix)(f) of 
the Order is not applicable.

10. (a)  The company has not raised money by way of ini琀椀al public o昀昀er or further public o昀昀er (including 
debt instruments) during the year and hence repor琀椀ng under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is 
not applicable.

(b) During the year under review, the Company has not made any preferen琀椀al allotment or private 
placement of shares or conver琀椀ble debentures (fully or partly or op琀椀onally) and hence repor琀椀ng 
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

11. (a)  During the course of our examina琀椀on of the books and records of the Company, carried out 
in accordance with the generally accepted audi琀椀ng prac琀椀ces in India, and according to the 
informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material 
fraud by the Company or on the Company, no琀椀ced or reported during the year, nor have we been 
informed of any such case by the Management.

(b) No report under sub-sec琀椀on (12) of sec琀椀on 143 of the Companies Act has been 昀椀led in Form 
ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central 
Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 

company during the year.

12. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

13. In our opinion, all transac琀椀ons with the related par琀椀es are in compliance with sec琀椀on 177 and 188 
of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial Statements as 

required by the applicable Ind AS.

14. (a)  In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size 
and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company 

during the year and 琀椀ll date, in determining the nature, 琀椀ming and extent of our audit procedures.

15. Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa琀椀on and explana琀椀ons given by the 
management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transac琀椀ons with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company and hence not commented upon.

16. (a)  In our opinion, the company is not required to be registered under sec琀椀on 45 IA of the Reserve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not 
applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as de昀椀ned in the Core 
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direc琀椀ons, 2016) and accordingly repor琀椀ng under clause 
3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.
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17. The Company has incurred cash losses amoun琀椀ng to ` 3977.00 Lakhs & 1499.12 Lakhs during the 

昀椀nancial year 2022-23 & 2021-22 respec琀椀vely.

18. There has been no resigna琀椀on of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

19. On the basis of the 昀椀nancial ra琀椀os, ageing and expected dates of realiza琀椀on of 昀椀nancial assets and 
payment of 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es, other informa琀椀on accompanying the 昀椀nancial statements and our 
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examina琀椀on of the 
evidence suppor琀椀ng the assump琀椀ons, nothing has come to our a琀琀en琀椀on, which causes us to believe 
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indica琀椀ng that Company is not 
capable of mee琀椀ng its liabili琀椀es exis琀椀ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to 
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our repor琀椀ng is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili琀椀es falling 
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and 

when they fall due.

20. (a)  There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than 

ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund speci昀椀ed in Schedule VII to the Companies Act 
in compliance with second proviso to sub-sec琀椀on (5) of Sec琀椀on 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, 
repor琀椀ng under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) As there is no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) at the end of previous 

昀椀nancial year, the provision of sec琀椀on 135(6) of the Companies Act,2013 is not applicable.

21. The repor琀椀ng under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone 
Financial Statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included 
in this report.

For, M/s Pankaj R. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Registra琀椀on No. 107361W)

CA Nilesh Shah

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad (Membership No. 107414)
Date: 30-05-2023 UDIN: 23107414BGUYZQ6091
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“ANNEXURE - B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS LIMITED

REPORT ON THE INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF SECTION 143 

OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

We have audited the internal 昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng of AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS 
LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunc琀椀on with our audit of the 昀椀nancial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 昀椀nancial controls based 
on the internal control over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng criteria established by the Company considering the essen琀椀al 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Repor琀椀ng issued by the Ins琀椀tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibili琀椀es include 
the design, implementa琀椀on and maintenance of adequate internal 昀椀nancial controls that were opera琀椀ng 
e昀昀ec琀椀vely for ensuring the orderly and e昀케cient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven琀椀on and detec琀椀on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accoun琀椀ng records, and the 琀椀mely prepara琀椀on of reliable 昀椀nancial informa琀椀on, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal 昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial 
repor琀椀ng based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor琀椀ng (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Audi琀椀ng, 
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under sec琀椀on 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal 昀椀nancial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls 
and, both issued by the Ins琀椀tute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal 昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated e昀昀ec琀椀vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
昀椀nancial controls system over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng and their opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀veness. Our audit of internal 
昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng included obtaining an understanding of internal 昀椀nancial controls 
over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes琀椀ng and evalua琀椀ng the 
design and opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
昀椀nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su昀케cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal 昀椀nancial controls system over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor琀椀ng
A company’s internal 昀椀nancial control over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng and the prepara琀椀on of 昀椀nancial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun琀椀ng principles. A company’s internal 
昀椀nancial control over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng includes those policies and procedures that:

(1)  Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly re昀氀ect the 
transac琀椀ons and disposi琀椀ons of the assets of the company;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transac琀椀ons are recorded as necessary to permit prepara琀椀on of 
昀椀nancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun琀椀ng principles, and that receipts and 
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expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authoriza琀椀ons of management 
and directors of the company; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding preven琀椀on or 琀椀mely detec琀椀on of unauthorized acquisi琀椀on 
use, or disposi琀椀on of the company’s assets that could have a material e昀昀ect on the 昀椀nancial statements.

Inherent Limita琀椀ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor琀椀ng
Because of the inherent limita琀椀ons of internal 昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 

error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec琀椀ons of any evalua琀椀on of the internal 昀椀nancial 
controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 昀椀nancial control 
over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi琀椀ons, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal 昀椀nancial controls system over 
昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng and such internal 昀椀nancial controls over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng were opera琀椀ng e昀昀ec琀椀vely as 
at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng criteria established by the Company 
considering the essen琀椀al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Repor琀椀ng issued by the Ins琀椀tute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For, M/s Pankaj R. Shah & Associates
Chartered Accountants

(Registra琀椀on No. 107361W)

CA Nilesh Shah

Partner

Place: Ahmedabad (Membership No. 107414)
Date: 30-05-2023 UDIN: 23107414BGUYZQ6091
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BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2023
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Note As at 
31st March, 2023

As at 
31st March, 2022

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

(a)  Property, plant and equipment 3  20,234.05  23,052.01 
(b)  Intangible assets 3  1.15  2.47 
(c)  Capital work-in-progress 4  144.27  144.27 
(d)  Right to use assets 5  -    -   
(e)  Financial assets
  (i) Investments  -    -   
 (ii) Other 昀椀nancial assets 6  27.99  30.12 
(f) Deferred Tax Asset 21  5,335.94  2,411.08 
(g)  Non-current tax assets (net) 7  116.70  82.10 
(h)  Other non-current assets 8  4.65  4.66 
Total non-current assets  25,864.75  25,726.70 

2 Current assets
(a)  Inventories 9  12,079.41  15,634.90 
(b)  Financial assets
 (i) Trade receivables 10  12,422.09  16,610.55 
 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11  15.99  986.46 
 (iii)  Other bank balance 12  671.72  644.69 
 (iv)  Other 昀椀nancial assets 13  515.80  517.98 
(c)  Other current assets 14  207.53  913.23 
Total current assets  25,912.54  35,307.82 

3 Assets Held For Sale  1,005.75  1,824.80 
TOTAL ASSETS  52,783.03  62,859.32 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 Equity
(a)  Equity share capital 15  2,345.98  2,345.98 
(b)  Other equity 16  3,794.21  10,287.61 
Total equity  6,140.19  12,633.59 
Liabili琀椀es

2 Non-current liabili琀椀es
(a)  Financial liabili琀椀es
 (i)   Borrowings 17  16,639.22  15,729.85 
 (ii)   Lease Liabili琀椀es  -    -   
 (iii)  Other 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es 18  0.70  0.70 
(b)  Other non current liabili琀椀es 19  79.02  84.69 
(c)  Provisions 20  64.17  55.03 
Total non-current liabili琀椀es  16,783.11  15,870.26 

3 Current liabili琀椀es
(a)  Financial liabili琀椀es
 (i) Borrowings 22  23,013.72  25,560.82 
 (ii) Trade payables 23
  (iia)  Total Outstanding due of Micro, and samll 

enterprise
 123.10  361.04 

  (iib)  Total Outstanding due of creditor other 
than Micro and samll enterprise

 5,589.55  7,325.60 

 (ii) Lease liabili琀椀es  -   
 (ii) Other 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es 24  335.78  270.03 
(b)  Current tax liabili琀椀es (net)  -    -   
(c)  Other current liabili琀椀es 25  659.98  701.59 
(d)  Provisions 26  137.61  136.38 
Total current liabili琀椀es  29,859.73  34,355.46 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  52,783.03  62,859.32 

 Signi昀椀cant Accoun琀椀ng Policies 2
 See accompanying notes forming part of 昀椀nancial statements 37-58

For and on behalf of  
M/s. Pankaj R. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited
Registra琀椀on No. : 107361W
CA Nilesh Shah Vinod P. Arora Kalpesh V. Shah
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.107414  (DIN:00007065) (DIN:00007262)
 Ketan Desai Ashish Shah
 Chief Financial O昀케cer Managing Director
  (DIN:00007201)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad 
Date  : 30th May, 2023  Date  : 30th May, 2023
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Note Year ended  
March 31, 2023

Year ended  
March 31, 2022

Con琀椀nuing Opera琀椀ons:
i Revenue
ii  Revenue from opera琀椀ons 27  26,089.90  42,106.35 

 Other income 28  267.70  359.62 
iii Total Income  26,357.60  42,465.97 
iv Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 29  15,856.99  28,351.48 
Changes in inventories of 昀椀nished goods and work in 
progress 

30  3,333.52  (320.31)

Employee bene昀椀ts expense 31  2,400.21  3,281.07 
Finance costs 32  4,590.15  4,307.97 
Deprecia琀椀on and amor琀椀za琀椀on expense 3  2,527.90  2,549.04 
Other expenses 33  7,315.91  11,827.42 

v Total expenses  36,024.69  49,996.68 
vi Loss before tax from con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons  (9,667.09)  (7,530.71)
vii Tax expenses 34

 Current tax  -    -   
 Deferred tax  (2,736.41)  (1,279.19)

viii Loss for the year from con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons  (6,930.67)  (6,251.52)
xi Discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons: 35

 Revenue from opera琀椀ons  111.04  1,019.79 
 Other income  140.95  469.76 
 Total expenses  (19.88)  (303.87)

x Pro昀椀t before tax from discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons  232.11  1,185.68 
Tax expense/(credit) of discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons  (193.66)  (923.55)

xi Pro昀椀t for the year from discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons  425.77  2,109.23 
xii Loss for the year from con琀椀nuing and discon琀椀nued 

opera琀椀ons
 (6,504.90)  (4,142.29)

xiii Other comprehensive income from con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons
(a)  Items that will not be reclassi昀椀ed to statement of 

pro昀椀t and loss
 - Remeasurment of de昀椀ned employee bene昀椀ts plan  16.72  18.30 
(b)   Deferred tax on remeasurment of de昀椀ned employee 

bene昀椀ts plan
 (5.22)  (5.71)

Other comprehensive income from discon琀椀nued 
opera琀椀ons
(a)   Items that will not be reclassi昀椀ed to statement of 

pro昀椀t and loss
 - Remeasurment of de昀椀ned employee bene昀椀ts plan  -    -   
(b)   Deferred tax on remeasurment of de昀椀ned employee 

bene昀椀ts plan
 -    -   

xiv Total other comprehensive income from con琀椀nuing and 
discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons

 11.50  12.59 

xv Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of tax  (6,493.40)  (4,129.69)
Earnings per share 36
Nominal value per share ` 10/- (Previous year : ` 10/-)

Earnings per share for con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons
Basic & Diluted (in `)  (30)  (27)
Earnings per share for discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons
Basic & Diluted (in `)  2  9 
Earnings per share for con琀椀nuing and discon琀椀nued 
opera琀椀ons
Basic & Diluted (in `)  (28)  (18)

Sigi昀椀cant Accoun琀椀ng Policies 2
See accompanying notes forming part of 昀椀nancial 
statements

37-58

For and on behalf of  
M/s. Pankaj R. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited
Registra琀椀on No. : 107361W
CA Nilesh Shah Vinod P. Arora Kalpesh V. Shah
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.107414  (DIN:00007065) (DIN:00007262)
 Ketan Desai Ashish Shah
 Chief Financial O昀케cer Managing Director
  (DIN:00007201)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad 
Date  : 30th May, 2023  Date  : 30th May, 2023
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

(` in Lakh)

No. Par琀椀culars Year ended  

March 31, 2023
Year ended  

March 31, 2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net pro昀椀t before tax as per the Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss  (9,434.97)  (6,345.03)
Adjustments for :

Deprecia琀椀on and amor琀椀za琀椀on expense  2,527.90  2,630.56 
Interest and Financial Expenses  4,590.15  4,307.97 
(Gain)/Loss on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment (Net)  (177.46)  (654.43)
Interest Received  (32.00)  (30.58)
Provision for Expected Credit Loss  -    11.33 
Sundry Balance wri琀琀en o昀昀  17.05  2.31 
Opera琀椀ng pro昀椀t before working capital changes  (2,509.32)  (77.86)
Adjustments for :

Trade Receivables  4,171.41  4,188.46 
Inventories  3,555.49  (241.65)
Other Current Assets  705.71  (46.57)
Other Non Current Assets  (34.60)  0.30 
Other 昀椀nancial assets non current  2.13 -    

Other 昀椀nancial assets current  2.18  (444.00)
Increase/(decrease) in lease liability (Net)  -    (6.89)
Other current liabili琀椀es  (41.61)  (905.53)
Current provisions  17.94  17.42 
Non current provisions  9.14 -    

Other current 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es  65.75  (131.75)
Other non current liabili琀椀es  (5.67)  (29.77)
Trade Payables  (1,973.99)  (1,027.89)
Cash Generated From Opera琀椀ons  3,964.56  1,294.30 
Income Taxes Paid  -    (42.19)
Net Cash From Opera琀椀ng Ac琀椀vi琀椀es (A)  3,964.56  1,252.11 

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipments  -    (213.90)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipments  1,287.88  4,851.95 
Bank Balances not considered as Cash and Cash Equivalents - 
Matured / (Placed)

 (27.03)  2.55 

Interest Received  32.00  30.58 
Net Cash used in Inves琀椀ng Ac琀椀vi琀椀es (B)  1,292.85  4,671.18 
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(` in Lakh)

No. Par琀椀culars Year ended  

March 31, 2023
Year ended  

March 31, 2022
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds/ (Repayment) of Non current borrowings (Net)  909.37  (1,819.96)
Proceeds/ (Repayment) from current borrowings (Net)  (2,547.10)  (151.61)
Interest & Finance cost  (4,590.15)  (4,307.97)
Net Cash used in Financing Ac琀椀vi琀椀es (C)  (6,227.88)  (6,279.55)
Net changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (970.48)  (356.26)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 
16 (i))

 986.46  1,342.72 

E昀昀ect of Foreign Exchange Rate changes (Gain) / Loss  -    -   

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 16 (i))  15.99  986.46 

Note:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect method as set out in Indian Accoun琀椀ng 
Standard-7, Statement of Cash Flow

As per our a琀琀ached report of even date

For and on behalf of  
M/s. Pankaj R. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited
Registra琀椀on No. : 107361W
CA Nilesh Shah Vinod P. Arora Kalpesh V. Shah
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.107414  (DIN:00007065) (DIN:00007262)
 Ketan Desai Ashish Shah
 Chief Financial O昀케cer Managing Director
  (DIN:00007201)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad 
Date  : 30th May, 2023  Date  : 30th May, 2023

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

A Equity share capital 
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars No. of Shares Amount

As at 31st March 2021  2,34,59,800  2,346 

Changes in equity share capital  -    -   

As at 31st March 2022  2,34,59,800  2,346 

Changes in equity share capital  -    -   

As at 31st March, 2023  2,34,59,800  2,346 

B Other equity

Par琀椀culars Capital 

Redemp琀椀on 
Reserve

Securi琀椀es 
Premium 

Account

General 

Reserve

Foreign 

Currency 
Monetary 

Item Trns. 

Dif

Retained 

earnings

Total Equity

Balance at March 31, 2021  1,499.13  2,807.09  562.73  0.02  9,548.33  14,417.30 

Pro昀椀t for the year  -    -    -    -   (4,142.29)  (4,142.29)
Other comprehensive income for 
the year

 -    -    -    -    12.59  12.59 

Total Comprehensive Income for 
the Year

 1,499.13  2,807.09  562.73  0.02  5,418.64  10,287.61 

Dividends  -    -    -    -    -   

Tax on Dividends  -    -    -    -    -   

Balance at March 31, 2022  1,499.13  2,807.09  562.73  0.02  5,418.64  10,287.61 

Pro昀椀t for the year  -    -    -    (6,504.90)  (6,504.90)
Other comprehensive income 
for the year

 -    -    -    11.50  11.50 

Total Comprehensive Income 

for the Year
 1,499.13  2,807.09  562.73  0.02  (1,074.76)  3,794.21 

Dividends  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Tax on Dividends  -    -   

Balance at 31st March, 2023  1,499.13  2,807.09  562.73  0.02  (1,074.76)  3,794.21 

For and on behalf of  
M/s. Pankaj R. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited
Registra琀椀on No. : 107361W
CA Nilesh Shah Vinod P. Arora Kalpesh V. Shah
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.107414  (DIN:00007065) (DIN:00007262)
 Ketan Desai Ashish Shah
 Chief Financial O昀케cer Managing Director
  (DIN:00007201)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad 
Date  : 30th May, 2023  Date  : 30th May, 2023



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

AArvee Denims AnD exports LtD.

8334th ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

AARVEE DENIMS AND EXPORTS LIMITED (“the company”) is a public company domiciled in India and 
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act” erstwhile Companies Act, 

1956).The registered o昀케ce of the Company is located at 191, Moje Shahwadi, Narol- Sarkhej Highway, 
Ahmedabad 382 405. Its equity shares are listed on two stock exchanges in India. The company is 
engaged in the manufacturing and selling of denim and non denim Fabrics. The company caters to both 
domes琀椀c and interna琀椀onal markets.

2.1 Signi昀椀cant Accoun琀椀ng Policies
a Statement of compliance

The 昀椀nancial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accoun琀椀ng Standards (“Ind 
AS”) as issued under the Companies (Indian Accoun琀椀ng Standards) Rules, 2015.

The standalone Ind AS 昀椀nancial statements are presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded 
to the nearest lakh (Rupees 00,000), except where otherwise indicated. Any discrepancies in any table 
between totals and sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding o昀昀.

b Basis of prepara琀椀on of Financial Statement
The 昀椀nancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain 昀椀nancial 
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each repor琀椀ng period, as explained in the 
accoun琀椀ng policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the considera琀椀on given 
in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 

transac琀椀on between market par琀椀cipants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or es琀椀mated using another valua琀椀on technique. In es琀椀ma琀椀ng the fair value of 
an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteris琀椀cs of the asset or liability if 
market par琀椀cipants would take those characteris琀椀cs into account when pricing the asset or liability 
at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these 昀椀nancial 
statements is determined on such a basis, and measurements that have some similari琀椀es to fair value 
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addi琀椀on, for 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, 
or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the 

signi昀椀cance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its en琀椀rety, which are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac琀椀ve markets for iden琀椀cal assets or liabili琀椀es that the 
en琀椀ty can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

c Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings held for use in the produc琀椀on or supply of goods or services, or for administra琀椀ve 
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated deprecia琀椀on and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Proper琀椀es in the course of construc琀椀on for produc琀椀on, supply or administra琀椀ve purposes are carried 
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees for qualifying assets, 
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Company’s accoun琀椀ng policy. Such proper琀椀es are 
classi昀椀ed to the appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready 
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for intended use. Deprecia琀椀on of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences 
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated deprecia琀椀on and accumulated 
impairment losses.

Deprecia琀椀on is recognised so as to write o昀昀 the cost of assets (other than freehold land & proper琀椀es 
under construc琀椀on) less their residual values over their useful lives, as indicated in the Companies 
Act, 2013, using the straight-line method. The es琀椀mated useful lives, residual values and deprecia琀椀on 
method are reviewed at the end of each repor琀椀ng period, with the e昀昀ect of any changes in es琀椀mate 
accounted for on a prospec琀椀ve basis. However, in respect of the following categories of assets, in 
whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under based on technical advice, taking into 

account the nature of the asset, the es琀椀mated usage of the asset, the opera琀椀ng condi琀椀ons of the 
asset, past history of replacement, an琀椀cipated technological changes, manufacturers warran琀椀es and 
maintenance support, etc.:

Par琀椀culars Deprecia琀椀on
Plant & Machineries Over the period of 10 to 40 years as technically assessed

Deprecia琀椀on on addi琀椀ons to / dele琀椀ons from 昀椀xed assets made during the period is provided on pro-
rata basis from / up to the month of such addi琀椀on / dele琀椀on as the case may be.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic 
bene昀椀ts are expected to arise from the con琀椀nued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or re琀椀rement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the di昀昀erence 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in pro昀椀t or loss.

For transi琀椀on to Ind AS, the Company has elected to con琀椀nue with the carrying value of all of its 
property, plant and equipment recognised as of April 1, 2016 (transi琀椀on date) measured as per the 
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transi琀椀on date (except to the 
extent of any adjustment permissible under other accoun琀椀ng standard).

 Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisi琀椀on less accumulated amor琀椀za琀椀on and accumulated 
impairment, if any. Amor琀椀za琀椀on is done over their es琀椀mated useful life on straight line basis from the 
date that they are available for intended use, subjected to impairment test.

Amor琀椀sa琀椀on in respect of Intangible assets is provided on Straight Line basis over the period of under 
lying contract or es琀椀mated period of its economic life.

d Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each repor琀椀ng period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and 
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indica琀椀on that those assets have su昀昀ered an 
impairment loss. If any such indica琀椀on exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is es琀椀mated in 
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to es琀椀mate the 
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company es琀椀mates the recoverable amount of the 
cash-genera琀椀ng unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of alloca琀椀on 
can be iden琀椀昀椀ed, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-genera琀椀ng units, or otherwise 
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-genera琀椀ng units for which a reasonable and consistent 
alloca琀椀on basis can be iden琀椀昀椀ed.

Intangible assets with inde昀椀nite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested 
for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indica琀椀on that the asset may be impaired.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the es琀椀mated future cash 昀氀ows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount 
rate that re昀氀ects current market assessments of the 琀椀me value of money and the risks speci昀椀c to the 
asset for which the es琀椀mates of future cash 昀氀ows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-genera琀椀ng unit) is es琀椀mated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-genera琀椀ng unit) is reduced to its recoverable 
amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in pro昀椀t or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-genera琀椀ng 
unit) is increased to the revised es琀椀mate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-genera琀椀ng unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment 
loss is recognised immediately in pro昀椀t or loss.

e Non-current assets held for sale and discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons.
The Company classi昀椀es non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts 
will be recovered principally through a sale rather than through con琀椀nuing use. Ac琀椀ons required to 
complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely that signi昀椀cant changes to the sale will be made 
or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be commi琀琀ed to the sale expected 
within one year from the date of classi昀椀ca琀椀on. 

The criteria for held for sale classi昀椀ca琀椀on is considered to have met only when the assets or disposal 
group is available for immediate sale in its present condi琀椀on, subject only to terms that are usual and 
customary for sale of such assets (or disposal groups), its sale or distribu琀椀on is highly probable; and 
it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The group treats sale of the asset or disposal group to be 
highly probable when:

I) The management is commi琀琀ed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

ii) An ac琀椀ve programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been ini琀椀ated (if applicable),

iii) The asset (or disposal group) is being ac琀椀vely marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in 
rela琀椀on to its current fair value,

iv) The sale is expected to qualify for recogni琀椀on as a completed sale within one year from the date 
of classi昀椀ca琀椀on, and

v) Ac琀椀ons required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that signi昀椀cant changes to the 
plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying 

amount and the fair value less costs to sell. Assets and liabili琀椀es classi昀椀ed as held for sale/ distribu琀椀on 
are presented separately in the balance sheet. 

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classi昀椀ed as held for sale are not 
depreciated or amor琀椀zed.

A disposal group quali昀椀es as discon琀椀nued opera琀椀on if it is a component of an en琀椀ty that either has 
been disposed of, or is classi昀椀ed as held for sale, and:

1) represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of opera琀椀ons,

2) is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical 
area of opera琀椀ons.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

AArvee Denims AnD exports LtD.

86  34th ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons are excluded from the results of con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons and are presented as a 
single amount as pro昀椀t or loss a昀琀er tax from discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons in the statement of pro昀椀t and loss.

f Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined 
on a 昀椀rst-in-昀椀rst-out basis. Net realisable value represents the es琀椀mated selling price for inventories 
less all es琀椀mated costs of comple琀椀on and costs necessary to make the sale.

g Investments in Subsidiary Company

Investments in subsidiary Company is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Where 
an indica琀椀on of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the investment is assessed and wri琀琀en 
down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in subsidiary companies, the 
di昀昀erence between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amounts are recognised in the Statement 
of Pro昀椀t and Loss.

h Government Grants

Government Grants related to assets are treated as deferred income and are recognized in the 

statement of pro昀椀t and loss on a systema琀椀c and ra琀椀onale basis over the useful life of the assets. 
Government Grants related to revenue are recognized on a systema琀椀c basis in a statement of pro昀椀t 
and loss over the period necessary to match them with the related cost which they are intended to 

compensate. Speci昀椀cally, Government Grants whose primary condi琀椀on is that the company should 
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non current assets are recognized as deferred revenue in the 
balance sheet and transferred to pro昀椀t or loss on a systema琀椀c and ra琀椀onal basis over the useful lives 
of the related assets.

I Provisions, Con琀椀ngent Liabili琀椀es and Con琀椀ngent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obliga琀椀on (legal or construc琀椀ve) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an ou琀昀low of resources embodying economic bene昀椀ts will be 
required to se琀琀le the obliga琀椀on and a reliable es琀椀mate can be made of the amount of the obliga琀椀on. 
The amount recognized as a provision is the best es琀椀mate of the considera琀椀on required to se琀琀le the 
present obliga琀椀on at the end of the repor琀椀ng period, taking into account the risks and uncertain琀椀es 
surrounding the obliga琀椀on. If the e昀昀ect of the 琀椀me value of money is material, provisions are discounted 
using a current pre-tax rate that re昀氀ects, when appropriate, the risks speci昀椀c to the liability.

When discoun琀椀ng is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of 琀椀me is recognised as 
a 昀椀nance cost.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance 
contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is 

virtually certain. The expense rela琀椀ng to a provision is presented in the statement of pro昀椀t and loss 
net of any reimbursement.

Con琀椀ngent liabili琀椀es are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes.

Con琀椀ngent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes where an in昀氀ow of economic 
bene昀椀ts is probable.

j Cash 昀氀ow statement
Cash 昀氀ows are reported using the indirect method, whereby pro昀椀t / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the 
e昀昀ects of transac琀椀ons of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts 
or payments. The cash 昀氀ows from opera琀椀ng, inves琀椀ng and 昀椀nancing ac琀椀vi琀椀es of the Company are 
segregated based on the available informa琀椀on.
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k Opera琀椀ng Cycle
Based on the nature of products / ac琀椀vi琀椀es of the Company and the normal 琀椀me between acquisi琀椀on of 
assets and their realisa琀椀on in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its opera琀椀on cycles 
as twelve months for the purpose of classi昀椀ca琀椀on of assets and liabili琀椀es as current and non-current.

l Financial Instruments
Financial assets and 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es are recognised when an en琀椀ty becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es are ini琀椀ally measured at fair value. Transac琀椀on costs that are 
directly a琀琀ributable to the acquisi琀椀on or issue of 昀椀nancial assets and 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es (other than 
昀椀nancial assets and 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es at fair value through pro昀椀t or loss) are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of the 昀椀nancial assets or 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es, as appropriate, on ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on. 
Transac琀椀on costs directly a琀琀ributable to the acquisi琀椀on of 昀椀nancial assets or 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es at fair 
value through pro昀椀t or loss are recognised immediately in pro昀椀t or loss.

m Financial assets
 Ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on and measurement

Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instrument. On ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on, a 昀椀nancial asset is recognized at fair value. In case of 昀椀nancial 
assets which are recognized at fair value through pro昀椀t and loss (FVTPL), its transac琀椀on costs are 
recognized in the Statement of Pro昀椀t and loss. In other cases, the transac琀椀on costs are a琀琀ributed to 
the acquisi琀椀on value of the 昀椀nancial asset.

 Subsequent measurement

All recognised 昀椀nancial assets are subsequently measured in their en琀椀rety at either amor琀椀sed cost or 
fair value, depending on the classi昀椀ca琀椀on of the 昀椀nancial assets.

 E昀昀ec琀椀ve interest method
The e昀昀ec琀椀ve interest method is a method of calcula琀椀ng the amor琀椀zed cost of a debt instrument and of 
alloca琀椀ng interest income over the relevant period. The e昀昀ec琀椀ve interest rate is the rate that exactly 
discounts es琀椀mated future cash receipts (including all fees and transac琀椀on costs and other premiums 
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, 
to the net carrying amount on ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on. Income is recognized on an e昀昀ec琀椀ve interest basis for 
debt instruments other than those 昀椀nancial assets classi昀椀ed as a FVTPL. Interest income is recognized 
in pro昀椀t or loss and is included in the “Other Income” line item.

 Classi昀椀ca琀椀on of 昀椀nancial assets:
 Financial assets measured at amor琀椀zed cost

A 昀椀nancial asset is measured at the amor琀椀zed cost if both the following condi琀椀ons are met:

a) The Company’s business model objec琀椀ve for managing the 昀椀nancial asset is to hold 昀椀nancial 
assets in order to collect contractual cash 昀氀ows, and

b) The Contractual terms of the 昀椀nancial asset give rise on speci昀椀ed dates to cash 昀氀ows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

This category applies to cash and bank balances, trade receivables, loans and other 昀椀nancial assets of 
the Company. Such 昀椀nancial assets are subsequently measured at amor琀椀zed cost using the e昀昀ec琀椀ve 
interest method.

The amor琀椀zed cost of a 昀椀nancial asset is also adjusted for loss allowances, if any.
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 Financial assets measured at FVTOCI
A 昀椀nancial asset is measured at FVTOCI if both of the following condi琀椀ons are met:

a) The Company’s business model objec琀椀ve for managing the 昀椀nancial asset is achieved both by 
collec琀椀ng contractual cash 昀氀ows and selling the 昀椀nancial assets, and

b) The contractual terms of the 昀椀nancial asset give rise on speci昀椀ed dates to cash 昀氀ows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal on the principal amount outstanding.

 Financial assets measured at FVTPL
A 昀椀nancial asset is measured at FVTPL unless it is measured at amor琀椀zed cost or at FVTOCI as 
explained above.

This is a residual category applied to all other investments of the Company. Such 昀椀nancial assets are 
subsequently measured at fair value at each repor琀椀ng date. Fair value changes are recognized in the 
Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss. Dividend Income on the investments in equity instruments are recognized 
as ‘other income’ in the Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss.

 Foreign exchange gains and losses
The fair value of 昀椀nancial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 
currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each repor琀椀ng period. For foreign currency 
denominated 昀椀nancial assets measured at amor琀椀zed cost and FVTPL, the exchange di昀昀erences 
are recognized in pro昀椀t or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a 
hedging rela琀椀onship.

 Derecogni琀椀on
A 昀椀nancial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 昀椀nancial asset or part of group of similar 昀椀nancial assets) 
is derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when any of the following occurs:

a) The contractual rights to cash 昀氀ows from the 昀椀nancial assets expires,

b) The company transfers its contractual rights to receive cash 昀氀ows of the 昀椀nancial asset and has 
substan琀椀ally transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership of the 昀椀nancial asset;

c) The Company retains the contractual rights to receive cash 昀氀ows but assumes a contractual 
obliga琀椀on to pay the cash 昀氀ows without material delay to one or more recipients under a ‘pass 
through’ arrangement (thereby substan琀椀ally transferring all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of the 昀椀nancial asset);

d) The Company neither transfer nor retains substan琀椀ally all risk and rewards of ownership and 
does not retain control over the 昀椀nancial assets.

In cases where Company has neither transferred nor retained substan琀椀ally all of the risks and rewards 
of the 昀椀nancial asset, but retains control of the 昀椀nancial asset, the Company con琀椀nues to recognize 
such 昀椀nancial asset to the extent of its con琀椀nuing involvement in the 昀椀nancial asset; in that case, the 
Company also recognizes an associated liability.

The 昀椀nancial asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that re昀氀ects the rights and 
obliga琀椀ons that the Company has retained.

On derecogni琀椀on of a 昀椀nancial asset, the di昀昀erence between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum 
of the considera琀椀on received and receivable and the cumula琀椀ve gain or loss that had been recognized 
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in pro昀椀t or loss if such gain or 
loss would have otherwise been recognised in pro昀椀t or loss on disposal of that 昀椀nancial asset.
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 Impairment of 昀椀nancial assets
The Company applies expected credit losses (ECL) model for recognising impairment loss on 昀椀nancial 
assets measured at amor琀椀sed cost and trade receivables. In case of trade receivables, the Company 
follows a simpli昀椀ed approach wherein an amount equal to life琀椀me ECL is measured and recognised 
as loss allowance. For the purpose of measuring life琀椀me expected credit loss, for trade receivables, 
the Company has used a prac琀椀cal expedient as permi琀琀ed under Ind AS 109. The expected credit loss 
allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes in to account historical credit loss 
experience and adjusted for forward looking informa琀椀on. For recogni琀椀on of impairment loss on other 
昀椀nancial assets and risk exposure, the company determines whether there has been a signi昀椀cant 
increase in the credit risk since ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on. If the credit risk has not increased signi昀椀cantly, 12 
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if the credit risk has increased signi昀椀cantly, 
then the impairment loss is provided based on life琀椀me ECL. Subsequently, if the credit quality of the 
昀椀nancial asset improves such that there is no longer a signi昀椀cant increase in credit risk since ini琀椀al 
recogni琀椀on, the Company reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. 
ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income / 
expenses in the Statement of pro昀椀t and loss under the head ‘Other expense’.

 Financial liabili琀椀es and equity instruments
 Debt and Equity Instruments:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classi昀椀ed as either 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es or as 
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the de昀椀ni琀椀ons of a 
昀椀nancial liability and an equity instruments.

 Equity instruments:

An equity instruments is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an en琀椀ty a昀琀er 
deduc琀椀ng all of its liabili琀椀es, Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds 
received, not of direct issue costs.

 Financial Liabili琀椀es:
 Ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on and measurement

Financial liabili琀椀es are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 
the instrument. Financial liabili琀椀es are ini琀椀ally measured at fair value.

 Subsequent measurement

Financial liabili琀椀es are subsequently measured at amor琀椀sed cost using the e昀昀ec琀椀ve interest rate 
method. Financial liabili琀椀es carried at fair value through pro昀椀t or loss are measured at fair value with 
all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss.

 Financial liabili琀椀es at FVTPL
A 昀椀nancial liability may be designated as at FVTPL upon ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on if:

• such designa琀椀on eliminates or signi昀椀cantly reduces a measurement or recogni琀椀on inconsistency 
that would otherwise arise;

• the 昀椀nancial liability whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the 
Company’s documented risk management;

Financial liabili琀椀es at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement 
recognised in pro昀椀t or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in pro昀椀t or loss incorporates any interest 
paid on the 昀椀nancial liability.
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 Foreign exchange gains and losses
For 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amor琀椀sed cost 
at the end of each repor琀椀ng period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on 
the amor琀椀sed cost of the instruments and are recognised in pro昀椀t or loss.

The fair value of 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign 
currency and translated at the closing rate at the end of the repor琀椀ng period. For 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es 
that are measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or 
losses and is recognised in pro昀椀t or loss.

 Derecogni琀椀on of 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es
A 昀椀nancial liability is derecognized when the obliga琀椀on under the liability is discharged or cancelled 
or expires. When an exis琀椀ng 昀椀nancial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substan琀椀ally di昀昀erent terms, or the terms of an exis琀椀ng liability are substan琀椀ally modi昀椀ed, such an 
exchange or modi昀椀ca琀椀on is treated as the derecogni琀椀on of the original liability and the recogni琀椀on of 
a new liability. The di昀昀erence between the carrying amount of the 昀椀nancial liability derecognized and 
the considera琀椀on paid is recognized in the Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss.

n Leases

E昀昀ec琀椀ve 1st April 2019, the company has adopted Ind AS 116 - Leases and applied the standard to all 
leases contracts exis琀椀ng on 01-04-2019 using the modi昀椀ed retrospec琀椀ve method. Refer Note 5 for 
details on transac琀椀on to Ind AS 116 Leases.

At incep琀椀on of a contract, the company assesses whether a contact is, or contains, a lease. A contact is 
or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right of control the use of an iden琀椀昀椀ed asset for a period 
of 琀椀me in exchange for considera琀椀on.

The company recognised a right of use assets and a lease liabili琀椀es at the lease commencement date. 
The right of use asset is ini琀椀ally measured at cost, which comprises the ini琀椀al amount of the lease 
liabili琀椀es adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any ini琀椀al 
direct cost incurred and an es琀椀mate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to 
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incen琀椀ve received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight- line method from the 
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right of use asset or the end of the 

lease term. The es琀椀mated useful lives of right of use asset are determined on the same basis as those 
of property and equipment. In addi琀椀on, the right of use asset is periodically reduced by impairment 
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liabili琀椀es.

The Lease Liabili琀椀es is ini琀椀ally measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid 
at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or , if that rate 

cannot be readily determined, company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the company uses its 
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

The lease liability is measured at amor琀椀zed cost using the e昀昀ec琀椀ve interest method. It is measured 
when there is change in future lease payments arising from change in an index or rate , if there is 
a change in company’s es琀椀mates of the amount expected to be payable under the a residual value 
guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termina琀椀on op琀椀on.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying 
amount of the right of use asset, or is recorded in pro昀椀t or loss if the carrying amount of right of use 
asset has been reduced to zero.
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The company present right - of -use asset that do meet the de昀椀ni琀椀on of investment property in ‘ 
Property Plant and equipment” and lease liabili琀椀es in “ loans and borrowings” in the statement of 
昀椀nancial posi琀椀on.

 Short - term leases and leases of low value assets

The company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabili琀椀es for short- term leases 
of real estate proper琀椀es that have a lease term of 12 months. The company recognises the lease 
payments associated with these leases as on expense on straight line basis over the lease term.

o Segment Repor琀椀ng
Opera琀椀ng segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal repor琀椀ng provided to the 
Chief Opera琀椀ng Decision Maker (CODM) of the Company. The CODM is responsible for alloca琀椀ng 
resources and assessing performance of the opera琀椀ng segments of the Company.

p Fair Value
The Company measures 昀椀nancial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accoun琀椀ng policies 
men琀椀oned above. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transac琀椀on between market par琀椀cipants at the measurement date. The fair value 
measurement is based on the presump琀椀on that the transac琀椀on to sell the asset or transfer the liability 
takes place either;

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

All assets and liabili琀椀es for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the 昀椀nancial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy that categorized into three levels, described as follows, 

the inputs to valua琀椀on techniques used to measure value. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest 
priority to quoted prices in ac琀椀ve markets for Iden琀椀cal assets or liabili琀椀es (Level 1 inputs) and the 
lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 1 – quoted (unadjusted) market prices in ac琀椀ve markets for iden琀椀cal assets or Liabili琀椀es.

Level 2 – inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 – inputs that are unobservable for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabili琀椀es that are recognized in the 昀椀nancial statements at fair value on a recurring 
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by 

re-assessing categorized at the end of each repor琀椀ng period and discloses the same.

q Allowance for doub琀昀ul trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by 

appropriate allowances for es琀椀mated irrecoverable amounts. Es琀椀mated irrecoverable amounts 
are derived based on a provision matrix which takes into account various factors such as customer 
speci昀椀c risks, geographical region, product type, currency 昀氀uctua琀椀on risk, repatria琀椀on policy of the 
country, country speci昀椀c economic risks, customer ra琀椀ng, and type of customer, etc. Individual trade 
receivables are wri琀琀en o昀昀 when the management deems them not to be collectable.

r Revenue recogni琀椀on
Revenue from sale of goods and services is measured at the fair value of the considera琀椀on received or 
receivable, net of es琀椀mated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.
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 Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised the signi昀椀cant risks and rewards of ownership of the 
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods and it is probable that the economic 

bene昀椀ts associated with the transac琀椀on will 昀氀ow to the Company.

 Rendering of services
Revenue from rendering of services recognised when services are rendered and related cost are incurred.

 Interest income
Interest income from a 昀椀nancial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic bene昀椀ts will 
昀氀ow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued 
on a 琀椀me basis.

 Export bene昀椀ts
Export bene昀椀ts are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no 
uncertainty in receiving the same

s Foreign currencies
In preparing the 昀椀nancial statements, transac琀椀ons in currencies other than the en琀椀ty’s func琀椀onal 
currency are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transac琀椀ons. At the end 
of each repor琀椀ng period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign 
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not 

retranslated. Exchange di昀昀erences on monetary items are recognised in pro昀椀t or loss in the period in 
which they arise.

t Financial Deriva琀椀ves and Commodity hedging Transac琀椀ons
In respect of 昀椀nancial deriva琀椀ves and commodity hedging contracts, premium paid, losses on 
restatement and gains/losses on se琀琀lement are charged to the statement of pro昀椀t and loss.

u Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly a琀琀ributable to the acquisi琀椀on, construc琀椀on or produc琀椀on of qualifying assets, 
which are assets that necessarily take a substan琀椀al period of 琀椀me to get ready for their intended use 
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, un琀椀l such 琀椀me as the assets are substan琀椀ally ready for 
their intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of speci昀椀c borrowings pending their expenditure 
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisa琀椀on.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in pro昀椀t or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

v Employee bene昀椀ts
 De昀椀ned bene昀椀t plans

The Company has an obliga琀椀on towards a de昀椀ned bene昀椀t re琀椀rement plan covering eligible employees 
through Group Gratuity Scheme of Life Insurance Corpora琀椀on of India. The Company accounts for 
the liability for the gratuity bene昀椀ts payable in future based on an independent actuarial valua琀椀on 
carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method considering discoun琀椀ng rate relevant to Government 
Securi琀椀es at the Balance Sheet Date.

De昀椀ned bene昀椀t costs in the nature of current and past service cost and net interest expense or income 
are recognized in the statement of pro昀椀t and loss in the period in which they occur. Actuarial gains and 
losses on measurement is re昀氀ected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognized 
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in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur and is re昀氀ected immediately in 
retained earnings and not reclassi昀椀ed to pro昀椀t or loss. Past service cost is recognized in pro昀椀t and loss 
in the period of a plan amendment.

 De昀椀ned Contribu琀椀on plan
The Company recognize contribu琀椀on payable to a de昀椀ned contribu琀椀on plan as an expenses in 
the Statement of pro昀椀t and loss when the employee render services to the Company during the 
repor琀椀ng period.

 Compensated Absences
Provisions for Compensated Absences and its classif ica琀椀ons between current and non-current 
liabili琀椀es are based on independent actuarial valua琀椀on. The actuarial valua琀椀on is done as per the 
projected unit credit method as at the repor琀椀ng date.

 Short term employee bene昀椀ts:
They are recognized at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss for the year in 
which the related services are rendered.

w Taxa琀椀on
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Current and 
deferred tax are recognised in pro昀椀t or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respec琀椀vely.

 Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable pro昀椀t for the year. Taxable pro昀椀t di昀昀ers from ‘pro昀椀t 
before tax’ as reported in the statement of pro昀椀t and loss because of items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deduc琀椀ble in other years and items that are never taxable or deduc琀椀ble. The Company’s 
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substan琀椀ally enacted by end of 
repor琀椀ng periods.

 Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary di昀昀erences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabili琀椀es in the 昀椀nancial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computa琀椀on of 
taxable pro昀椀t. Deferred tax liabili琀椀es are generally recognised for all taxable temporary di昀昀erences. 
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deduc琀椀ble temporary di昀昀erences to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable pro昀椀ts will be available against which those deduc琀椀ble temporary 
di昀昀erences can be u琀椀lised. Such deferred tax assets and liabili琀椀es are not recognised if the temporary 
di昀昀erence arises from the ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on of assets and liabili琀椀es in a transac琀椀on that a昀昀ects neither 
the taxable pro昀椀t nor the accoun琀椀ng pro昀椀t.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each repor琀椀ng period and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that su昀케cient taxable pro昀椀ts will be available to allow all or 
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabili琀椀es and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
period in which the liability is se琀琀led or the asset realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted 
or substan琀椀vely enacted by the end of the repor琀椀ng period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabili琀椀es and assets re昀氀ects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the repor琀椀ng period, to recover or se琀琀le 
the carrying amount of its assets and liabili琀椀es.
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x Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the pro昀椀t a昀琀er tax by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the 
pro昀椀t a昀琀er tax as adjusted for the e昀昀ects of dividend interest and other charges rela琀椀ng to the dilu琀椀ve 
poten琀椀al equity shares by weighted average number of shares plus dilu琀椀ve poten琀椀al equity shares.

2.2 Signi昀椀cant accoun琀椀ng judgments, es琀椀mates and assump琀椀ons
 Signi昀椀cant accoun琀椀ng judgements

The applica琀椀on of the Company’s accoun琀椀ng policies in the prepara琀椀on of the Company’s 昀椀nancial 
statements requires management to make judgements, es琀椀mates and assump琀椀ons that a昀昀ect the 
reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabili琀椀es, and the accompanying disclosures, 
and the disclosure of con琀椀ngent liabili琀椀es. The es琀椀mates and assump琀椀ons are based on historical 
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. The es琀椀mates and underlying 
assump琀椀ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis and any revisions thereto are recognized in the period 
in which they are revised or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision a昀昀ects both 
the current and future periods. Actual results may di昀昀er from these es琀椀mates which could result in 
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabili琀椀es a昀昀ected in 
future periods.

 Es琀椀mates and assump琀椀ons
The key assump琀椀ons concerning the future and other key sources of es琀椀ma琀椀on uncertainty at the 
repor琀椀ng date, that have a signi昀椀cant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabili琀椀es within the next 昀椀nancial year, are described below. Exis琀椀ng circumstances 
and assump琀椀ons about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances 
arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are re昀氀ected in the assump琀椀ons 
when they occur.

(a) Fair value measurement of 昀椀nancial instruments
When the fair value of 昀椀nancial assets and 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es recorded in the balance sheet cannot 
be measured based on quoted prices in ac琀椀ve markets, their fair value is measured using ECL 
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where 
this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include 
considera琀椀ons of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and vola琀椀lity. Changes in assump琀椀ons about 
these factors could a昀昀ect the reported fair value of 昀椀nancial instruments.

(b) De昀椀ned bene昀椀t plans (gratuity bene昀椀ts)
The cost of the de昀椀ned bene昀椀t gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obliga琀椀on are 
determined using actuarial valua琀椀ons. An actuarial valua琀椀on involves making various assump琀椀ons that 
may di昀昀er from actual developments in the future. These include the determina琀椀on of the discount 
rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexi琀椀es involved in the valua琀椀on and 
its long-term nature, a de昀椀ned bene昀椀t obliga琀椀on is highly sensi琀椀ve to changes in these assump琀椀ons. 
All assump琀椀ons are reviewed at each repor琀椀ng date.

(c) Provisions and Con琀椀ngent Liabili琀椀es
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obliga琀椀on (legal or construc琀椀ve) as a 
result of a past event, it is probable that an ou琀昀low of resources embodying economic bene昀椀ts will be 
required to se琀琀le the obliga琀椀on and a reliable es琀椀mate can be made of the amount of the obliga琀椀on. 
These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and adjusted to re昀氀ect the current best es琀椀mate. 
Con琀椀ngent liabili琀椀es are not recognised in the 昀椀nancial statements. The policy for the same has been 
explained above in note 2.1(I).
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4. Capital work-in-progress 

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year  144.27  -   

Add: Addi琀椀on during the year  -    144.27 
Less: Capitalised during the year  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  144.27  144.27 

 Ageing of Capital work-in-progress

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Less than 

one year

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More than 

3Years 

 Total 

Balance as at March 31, 2023
Projects in progress  -    144.27  -    -    144.27 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  -    144.27  -    -    144.27 

Balance as at March 31, 2022
Projects in progress  144.27  -    -    -    144.27 
Projects temporarily suspended  -    -    -    -    -   

Total  144.27  -    -    -    144.27 

5. Non Current Right-Of-Use Assets 

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Land of Windmill

Opening Balance  -    86.13 
Deduc琀椀on during the year  -    86.13 
Addi琀椀ons during the year  -    -   

Total  -    -   

Opening Balance  -    37.28 

Depreca琀椀on for the year  -    3.89 
Deduc琀椀on during the year  -    41.17 
Total  -    -   

Net Block  -    -   

6. Other 昀椀nancial assets (Non - current)
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
 Security Deposits  

 Unsecured, considered good  27.79  29.92 
   -Balance with government authori琀椀es  0.20  0.20 
 Total  27.99  30.12 
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7. Non-current tax assets (net)
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Advance tax and TDS receivable (Net of provision)  116.70  82.10 

Total  116.70  82.10 

8. Other non-current assets
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Capital advances
Unsecured, considered good  4.65  4.66 

Total  4.65  4.66 

9. Inventories

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
 Raw materials   198.28  417.25 

 Work in progress  9,278.07  9,888.98 

 Finished goods  2,503.46  4,763.68 

 Goods in transit (Finished goods)  -    462.39 

 Stores and spares  99.61  102.60 

 Total  12,079.41  15,634.90 

10. Trade receivables
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Secured, considered good  -    -   

Unsecured, considered good  12,422.09  16,610.55 

Unsecured, considered doub琀昀ul  58.83  58.83 

Less: Allowance for unsecured doub琀昀ul debts (Expected credit 
loss allowance) (Refer Note 42B) 

 (58.83)  (58.83)

Total  12,422.09  16,610.55 
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 AGEING OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
 As at March 31, 2023

Par琀椀culars  Not Due  Less than 

6 Months 

 Six 

months  

to 1 year 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More 

than 

3 Years 

 Total 

UNDISPUTED 

TRADE RECEIVABLE
Considered Goods  3,087.82  5,555.30  2,046.83  37.52  649.40  1,045.22 12,422.09 
Credit Impaires  -    -    -    3.18  23.18  32.47  58.83 
DISPUTED TRADE 

RECEIVABLE
Considered Goods  -    -    -    -    -   

Credit Impaires  -    -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  3,087.82  5,555.30  2,046.83  40.70  672.57  1,077.68 12,480.91 

Less : Provision for 
doub琀昀ul debts

 -    -    -    3.18  23.18  32.47  58.83 

Balance at the end 
of the year

 3,087.82  5,555.30  2,046.83  37.52  649.40  1,045.22 12,422.09 

 As at March 31, 2022

Par琀椀culars  Not Due  Less than 

6 Months 

 Six 

months  

to 1 years 

 1-2 years  2-3 years  More 

than 

3 Years 

 Total 

UNDISPUTED 

TRADE RECEIVABLE
Considered Goods  7,282.11  2,231.23  1,068.46  4,612.05  1,190.96  225.74 16,610.54 
Credit Impaires  -    -    3.18  23.18  5.98  26.48  58.83 
DISPUTED TRADE 

RECEIVABLE
Considered Goods  -    -    -    -    -   

Credit Impaires  -    -    -    -    -   

TOTAL  7,282.11  2,231.23  1,071.64  4,635.22  1,196.94  252.22 16,669.37 

Less : Provision for 
doub琀昀ul debts

 -    -    3.18  23.18  5.98  26.48  58.83 

Balance at the end 
of the year

 7,282.11  2,231.23  1,068.46  4,612.05  1,190.96  225.74 16,610.55 

11. Cash and cash equivalents
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
 Cash on hand  3.35  2.32 
 Balances in current accounts with banks  12.64  984.15 
 Total  15.99  986.46 
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12. Other bank balance
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
 In unclaimed dividend accounts  -    -   

 In deposit accounts for margin money  671.72  644.69 
 Total  671.72  644.69 

(Above deposit includes ` 635.96 lakh (Previous year ` 509.39 lakh) under bank lien for margin money).

13. Other 昀椀nancial assets (Current)
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
 (Unsecured, considered good) 
 Loans and Advance to Sta昀昀   3.07  3.01 
 Loans and advance to others  1.27  4.51 
 Goods and service tax receivable  3.99  3.99 
 Interest receivable on margin money  6.95  5.96 
 Receoverables from Insurance company on 昀椀re  500.52  500.52 
 Total  515.80  517.98 

14. Other current assets
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
 Export Bene昀椀t Receivable  80.19  693.22 
 Advance to Creditors  58.97  53.10 
 Balance with Government Authori琀椀es  38.73  133.01 
 Prepaid Expenses  29.63  33.91 
 Total  207.53  913.23 

15. Share Capital

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Authorised

Equity Shares of ` 10/- each  3,50,00,000  3,500.00  3,50,00,000  3,500.00 
13%  Cumula琀椀ve Redeemable Non Conver琀椀ble 
Preference Shares of ` 10/- each

 1,50,00,000  1,500.00  1,50,00,000  1,500.00 

Issued,Subscribed & Fully Paid up
Equity Shares of ` 10/- each fully paid up  2,34,59,800  2,345.98  2,34,59,800  2,345.98 
Total  2,34,59,800  2,345.98  2,34,59,800  2,345.98 

 a.  Reconcilia琀椀on of the number of Equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the 
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Year;

Par琀椀culars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Number Amount Number Amount

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  2,34,59,800  2,345.98  2,34,59,800  2,345.98 
Shares Issued during the year  -    -    -    -   

Shares bought back during the year  -    -    -    -   

Shares outstanding at the end of the year  2,34,59,800  2,345.98  2,34,59,800  2,345.98 

 b. Terms/rights a琀琀ached to equity shares 
The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder 
of equity shares is en琀椀tled to one vote per share. The company declares and pays dividends 
in Indian rupees. The dividend & interim proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee琀椀ng.

During the year ended 31st March 2023, the amount of per share dividend recognized as 

distribu琀椀ons to equity shareholders was ` NIL (31st March 2022: `NIL).

In the event of liquida琀椀on of the company, the holders of equity shares will be en琀椀tled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, a昀琀er distribu琀椀on of all preferen琀椀al amounts. The distribu琀椀on 
will be in propor琀椀on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 c. Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares:

Name of Shareholder As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
No. of 

Shares held

% of 
Holding

No. of 

Shares held

% of 
Holding

Devangkumar Narendrakumar Sanghavi  14,90,000  6.35  14,90,000  6.35 
Rita Arora  13,73,362  5.85  13,73,362  5.85 
Rajesh Arora  12,92,341  5.51  12,92,341  5.51 
V.B. Investment Private Limited  23,20,900  9.89  23,20,900  9.89 
Kashvi Investment Private Limited  13,88,200  5.92  13,88,200  5.92 

 d. Details of Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

Name of the promoter Number of shares % holding 

of equity 

shares 

% Change 
during the 

Year

March 31, 
2022

 Changes March 31, 
2021

Rita Arora 1373362 0 1373362 5.85% 0.00%
Rajesh Arora 1292341 0 1292341 5.51% 0.00%
Pari Bhogilal Laxmichand 718932 0 718932 3.06% 0.00%
Ashish Virendrabhai Shah 252265 289514 541779 2.31% 114.77%
Kalpesh Shah 465300 0 465300 1.98% 0.00%
Parul Shah 425641 0 425641 1.81% 0.00%
Renu V. Arora 408155 0 408155 1.74% 0.00%
Bela Shah 363991 0 363991 1.55% 0.00%
Parmanand Arora 360140 0 360140 1.54% 0.00%
Nipun V. Arora 334899 0 334899 1.43% 0.00%
Pankaj V. Arora 324849 0 324849 1.38% 0.00%
Pankil K. Shah 269600 0 269600 1.15% 0.00%
Kashvi Kalpeshbhai Shah 261935 0 261935 1.12% 0.00%
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Name of the promoter Number of shares % holding 

of equity 

shares 

% Change 
during the 

Year

March 31, 
2022

 Changes March 31, 
2021

Anuj Ashish Shah 244389 0 244389 1.04% 0.00%
Pankil Kalpeshbhai Shah 

Huf
224164 0 224164 0.96% 0.00%

Heena Khanna 122951 0 122951 0.52% 0.00%
Somni Arora 116760 0 116760 0.50% 0.00%
Karishma Pankilbhai Shah 110000 0 110000 0.47% 0.00%
Vinod P. Arora 80000 0 80000 0.34% 0.00%
Jhanvi Nipunkumar Arora 75790 0 75790 0.32% 0.00%
Sarthak Pankajkumar Arora 75790 0 75790 0.32% 0.00%
Chinmaya Pankaj Arora 75786 0 75786 0.32% 0.00%
Bhrigu Nipun Arora 75785 0 75785 0.32% 0.00%
Shah Kalpesh Virendrabhai 
Huf

60300 0 60300 0.26% 0.00%

T.P. Vinodkumar 35000 0 35000 0.15% 0.00%
Anoli Ashishbhai Shah 23600 0 23600 0.10% 0.00%
Pree琀椀 N. Arora 10000 0 10000 0.04% 0.00%
Shikha P. Arora 10000 0 10000 0.04% 0.00%
Sushilaben Shah 290600 -289514 1086 0.00% -99.63%

Name of the promoter Number of shares % holding 

of equity 

shares 

% Change 
during the 

Year

March 31, 
2022

 Changes March 31, 
2022

Rita Arora  8,23,362  5,50,000  13,73,362 5.85% 66.80%
Rajesh Arora  10,72,645  2,19,696  12,92,341 5.51% 20.48%
Pari Bhogilal Laxmichand  7,18,932  -    7,18,932 3.06% 0.00%
Kalpesh Shah  4,65,300  -    4,65,300 1.98% 0.00%
Parul Shah  4,25,641  -    4,25,641 1.81% 0.00%
Renu V. Arora            23,306  3,84,849  4,08,155 1.74% 1651.29%
Bela Shah  3,63,991  -    3,63,991 1.55% 0.00%
Parmanand Arora          18,99,533  (15,39,393)  3,60,140 1.54% -81.04%
Nipun V. Arora           1,42,475  1,92,424  3,34,899 1.43% 135.06%
Pankaj V. Arora          1,32,425  1,92,424  3,24,849 1.38% 145.31%
Sushilaben Shah          2,90,600  -    2,90,600 1.24% 0.00%
Pankil K. Shah           2,69,600  -    2,69,600 1.15% 0.00%
Kashvi Kalpeshbhai Shah  2,61,935  -    2,61,935 1.12% 0.00%
Ashish Shah  2,52,265  -    2,52,265 1.08% 0.00%
Anuj Ashish Shah         2,44,389  -    2,44,389 1.04% 0.00%
Pankil Kalpeshbhai Shah 

Huf
 2,24,164  -    2,24,164 0.96% 0.00%

Heena Khanna  1,22,951  -    1,22,951 0.52% 0.00%
Somni Arora  1,16,760  -    1,16,760 0.50% 0.00%
Karishma Pankilbhai Shah  1,10,000  -    1,10,000 0.47% 0.00%
Vinod P. Arora           80,000  -    80,000 0.34% 0.00%
Jhanvi Nipunkumar Arora  75,790  -    75,790 0.32% 0.00%
Sarthak Pankajkumar Arora   75,790  -    75,790 0.32% 0.00%
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Name of the promoter Number of shares % holding 

of equity 

shares 

% Change 
during the 

Year

March 31, 
2022

 Changes March 31, 
2022

Chinmaya Pankajkumar 
Arora 

 75,786  -    75,786 0.32% 0.00%

Bhrigu Nipun Arora       75,785  -    75,785 0.32% 0.00%
Shah Kalpesh Virendrabhai 
Huf

 60,300  -    60,300 0.26% 0.00%

T.P. Vinodkumar          35,000  -    35,000 0.15% 0.00%
Anoli Ashishbhai Shah    23,600  -    23,600 0.10% 0.00%
Pree琀椀 N. Arora          10,000  -    10,000 0.04% 0.00%

16. Other equity

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Capital Redemp琀椀on Reserve  1,499.134  1,499.134 
Securi琀椀es Premium Account  2,807.090  2,807.090 
General reserve  562.731  562.731 
Foreign Currency Monetary Item Trns.Di昀昀  0.020  0.020 

 0.020  0.020 

Retained Earning

As per last Balance Sheet  5,418.637  9,548.329 
Add: Net loss for the current year  (6,504.90)  (4,142.29)

 (1,086.27)  5,406.04 
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)
Re-mesurement gain /(losses) in de昀椀ned bene昀椀t plans  11.502  12.593 
Balance at the end of year  (1,074.76)  5,418.64 

Total  3,794.21  10,287.61 

 Nature and purpose of reserves

 Capital redemp琀椀on reserve
The company has recognized capital redemp琀椀on reserve, for cumula琀椀ve redeemable non conver琀椀ble 
preference shares. The amount of capital redemp琀椀on reserve is equal to nominal amount of the 
preference shares.

 General reserve

General reserve is created from 琀椀me to 琀椀me by way of transfer pro昀椀ts from retained earnings for 
appropria琀椀on purposes. General reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to 
another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

 Security premium
The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares, in rela琀椀on to issuance of equity, is 
recognized in securi琀椀es premium reserve.

 Retained earning

Retained earnings are the pro昀椀ts that the company has earned 琀椀ll date, less any transfers to general 
reserve, dividends or other distribu琀椀ons paid to the shareholders.
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17. Borrowings (Non - current )
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Secured Loans 
Term loans from Banks: (Refer Note a, c & d below)  7,969.13  7,181.89 
Less: Current maturi琀椀es of long-term Loan (Refer Note 22)  (2,644.24)  (2,172.25)

 5,324.88  5,009.64 

Vehicle Loans: (Refer Note b & d below)  1.33  11.64 
Less: Current maturi琀椀es of long-term Vehicle Loans (Refer 
Note 22)

 (1.33)  (10.30)

 -    1.33 

 5,324.88  5,010.98 

Unsecured 
Deposits  (Refer Note No 41 )

      From Directors  1,271.38  1,194.54 
      From Others  7,075.62  6,720.92 

 8,346.99  7,915.46 

Inter Corporate Loans from related par琀椀es  (Refer Note No. 41)  2,967.34  2,803.41 
Less: Current maturi琀椀es of long-term loans from related 
par琀椀es

 -    -   

 2,967.34  2,803.41 

Total  16,639.22  15,729.85 

 Nature of Securi琀椀es:
a. Secured by mortgage of all 昀椀xed assets of Unit- I (Narol), Unit- II (Sari), Unit- III (Vijay Farm) & Unit-

IV (Sari) and 昀椀rst pari passu charge on 昀椀xed assets and second pari passu charge on the current 
assets of Unit- I (Narol), Unit- II (Sari), Unit- III (Vijay Farm) & Unit- IV (Sari) and extension of parri 
passu charge on 昀椀xed and current assets.

b. Secured by way of hypotheca琀椀on of respec琀椀ve motor vehicles purchased.

c.  Speci昀椀c charge on assets purchased from the proceeds of Loan.

d. Term of Repayment

(` in Lakh)

Term Loan & 

Corporate Loan

Repayment Schedule As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
YES Bank (Term Loan) 15 Quarterly inst. Star琀椀ng from 

03/12/18 of ` 60,64,000 each
 -    121.24 

YES Bank (Term Loan) 10 Quarterly inst. Star琀椀ng 
from30/09/2020 of ` 3,54,695 each

 -    7.09 

YES Bank (Term Loan) 10 Quarterly inst. Star琀椀ng 
from30/09/2020 of ` 6,292 each

 -    0.13 

YES Bank (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
3/2/2022 of ` 10,75,000 each

 393.48  502.28 

TATA Capital (Term 

Loan)

48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
22/2/2022 of ` 1,33,300 each

 47.08  63.11 
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Term Loan & 

Corporate Loan

Repayment Schedule As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
SCB - ECB Loan 22 Quarterly Inst. Star琀椀ng from 

11/08/2019 of USD 2,27,272.72 each
 1,494.85  1,885.92 

BOB (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
25/1/2022 of ` 34,27,100 each

 1,130.94  1,532.12 

SCB (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
25/2/2022 of ` 26,56,250 each

 1,006.39  1,221.88 

SBI (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
25/3/2022 of ` 29,12,500 each

 1,091.98  1,353.76 

BOI (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
24/2/2022 of ` 10,77,100 each

 405.21  494.36 

BOB (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
28/06/2024 of ` 17,12,500 each

 822.00  -   

SCB (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
19/08/2024 of ` 13,27,083 each

 637.00  -   

SBI (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
24/08/2024 of ` 14,56,250 each

 709.58  -   

BOI (Term Loan) 48 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng From 
25/072024 of ` 5,37,500 each

 261.56  -   

Vehicle Loans Repayment Schedule As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
ICICI Bank Ltd. 60 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng from 01/06/18 of 

` 71,260 each

 1.33  9.39 

HDFC  Bank Ltd 60 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng from 05/06/17 of 
` 16,412 each

 -    0.90 

HDFC  Bank Ltd 60 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng from 05/06/17 of 
` 12,310 each

 -    0.67 

HDFC  Bank Ltd 60 Monthly inst. Star琀椀ng from 05/06/17 of 
` 12,310 each

 -    0.67 

18. Other 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es (Non - current)
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Trade deposits 0.70 0.70
Total  0.70  0.70 

19. Other non - current liabili琀椀es 
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Deferred income on government grant (Refer Note 45)  79.02  84.69 
Total  79.02  84.69 
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20. Provisions (Non - current)
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Provision for employee bene昀椀ts
Compensated absences  55.10  55.03 
Gratuity  9.07  -   

Total  64.17  55.03 

21. Deferred tax assets (Net)

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Deferred Tax Liability

Related to Fixed Assets  3,119.25  4,435.14 
Deferred Tax Assets

Disallowances for Leave Salary & Gratuity under Income Tax 
Act, 1961

 108.09  99.64 

Provision Of Doub琀昀ull Debts  18.35  18.35 
Unabsorbed Deprecia琀椀on & Business loss  7,016.43  5,410.71 
MAT credit en琀椀tlements  1,357.45  1,357.45 
Remeasurement bene昀椀t of the de昀椀ned bene昀椀ts plans through  
OCI

 (45.13)  (39.92)

Total  (5,335.94)  (2,411.08)

 The Major Components of De昀昀ered tax Liablity/Assets
Par琀椀culars Opening 

Balance
Recognised 

in P/L

Recognised 
in OCI

 Closing 

Balance 
Related to Fixed Assets  4,435.14  (1,315.90)  -    3,119.25 

Related to Expenses  (117.99)  (8.45)  -    (126.44)
Unabsorbed Deprecia琀椀on  (5,410.71)  (1,605.72)  -    (7,016.43)
Remeasurement bene昀椀t of the de昀椀ned 
bene昀椀ts plans through OCI

 39.92  -    5.22  45.13 

Leases  -    -    -    -   

MAT Credit En琀椀tlements  (1,357.45)  -    -    (1,357.45)
 (2,411.08)  (2,930.07)  5.22  (5,335.94)

22. Borrowings (Current)

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Secured 
Loans from banks

Working capital loans (Refer Note a below)  20,332.66  23,218.79 
 20,332.66  23,218.79 

Current maturi琀椀es of long-term Loan  2,645.58  2,182.55 
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Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Unsecured 
Public Deposits  (Refer Note No 41 )
      From Others  35.48  159.48 

 35.48  159.48 

Total  23,013.72  25,560.82 

 a. Nature of Securi琀椀es:
Loans are Secured by hypotheca琀椀on of all current assets of Unit -I (Narol), Unit- II (Sari), Unit- III 
(Vijay Farm), Unit- IV (Sari) and second charge on the 昀椀xed assets of Unit -I (Narol),Unit- II (Sari), 
Unit- III (Vijay Farm), Unit- IV (Sari) and hypotheca琀椀on of 2 Windmills located at Lamba and 1 
Windmill located at Kutch.

23. Trade Payables

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Trade Payables (Refer Note No. 48)
Total Outstanding due of Micro, and samll enterprise  123.10  361.04 
Total Outstanding due of creditor other than Micro and samll 
enterprise

 5,589.55  7,325.60 

Total  5,712.65  7,686.64 

24. Other 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es (Current)
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 166.27 91.70 
Unclaimed dividends 0.00 0.00 
Other Payables 169.51 178.33 
Total 335.78 270.03 

25. Other current liabili琀椀es
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Other Liabili琀椀es
Advance received from Customers 447.48 190.95 
Advance received against Sale of Fixed Asset 212.50 510.64 
Total 659.98 701.59 

26. Provisions (Current)

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Gratuity Payable 105.48 102.82 
Compensated absences 32.13 33.56 
Total 137.61 136.38 
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27. Revenue from opera琀椀ons
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Sale of products  25,929.13  40,989.87 
Other opera琀椀ng revenues :
Export incen琀椀ve income  160.77  1,116.49 
Total  26,089.90  42,106.35 

28. Other income
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Interest Income  32.00  30.58 
Gain on foreign currency transac琀椀ons and transla琀椀on (net)  -    95.51 
Appor琀椀oned income from government grant (Refer Note 44)  5.67  29.77 
Other non-opera琀椀ng income  14.94  11.74 
renewal energy cer琀椀昀椀cate sales  37.64  7.35 
Gain/(Loss) on Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment  177.46  184.67 
Total  267.70  359.62 

29. Cost of materials consumed
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Opening Stock  417.25  463.25 
Add  :  Purchases  15,638.01  28,319.52 

 16,055.26  28,782.77 

Less :  Sales  -    14.04 
 16,055.26  28,768.73 

Less :  Closing Stock  198.28  417.25 
Cost of raw materials consumed  15,856.99  28,351.48 

30. Changes in inventories of 昀椀nished goods and work in progress
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Inventories at the end of the year

Work in progress  9,278.07  9,888.98 
Finished Goods  2,503.46  5,226.07 

 11,781.53  15,115.05 

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work in progress  9,888.98  9,591.38 
Finished Goods  5,226.07  5,203.36 

 15,115.05  14,794.74 

Net (Increase) / Decrease in stock  3,333.52  (320.31)
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31. Employee Bene昀椀ts Expense
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Salaries,Wages and bonus  2,312.84  3,169.54 
Contribu琀椀ons to Provident fund & Others Funds 

(Refer Note 37.2)
 72.36  92.75 

Sta昀昀 welfare expenses  15.01  18.77 
Total  2,400.21  3,281.07 

32. Finance costs
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Interest expense  4,465.15  4,080.14 
Other borrowing costs  125.01  227.83 
Total  4,590.15  4,307.97 

33. Other Expenses

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Consump琀椀on of stores and spare parts  144.27  359.61 
Power and fuel  4,873.22  7,095.07 
Payment to auditors (Refer note below)  5.81  9.00 
Rent  12.36  16.61 
Repairs to building  9.96  36.56 
Repairs to machineries  185.03  339.09 
Insurance  149.43  200.62 
Rates & taxes  35.89  86.57 
Job work charges  163.99  179.93 
Packing materials  99.31  219.21 
Folding charges  9.76  15.05 
Labour charges  180.98  365.84 
Adver琀椀sement, publicity & sales promo琀椀on  7.67  3.06 
Commission & brokerage  245.94  289.54 
Travelling & conveyance  30.69  22.50 
Freight & forwarding  352.22  2,333.25 
Sundry balance wri琀琀en o昀昀  17.05  2.31 
Allowances for unsecured doub琀昀ul debts  -    11.33 
Professional fees and charges  66.93  73.84 
Loss on foreign currency transac琀椀ons and transla琀椀on (net)  339.76  -   

Miscellaneous expenses  385.63  168.44 
Total  7,315.91  11,827.42 
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 Payments to the auditors

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Payment to auditors

   For statutory audit fees  5.81  9.00 

   For taxa琀椀on ma琀琀ers  -    -   

   For other services  -    -   

Total  5.81  9.00 

34. Income Tax Expense
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
A. Income tax expense

Current income tax charged  -    -   

Current Tax :

In respect of current year  -    -   

Adjustments in respect of previous year  -    -   

MAT Credit en琀椀tlement  -    -   

Deferred Tax (refer note 21)

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (net)  (2,736.41)  (1,279.19)

Total deferred tax expense/(bene昀椀t)  (2,736.41)  (1,279.19)

Income tax expense  (2,736.41)  (1,279.19)

B.  Reconcilia琀椀on of tax expense and the accoun琀椀ng 
pro昀椀t for the year is as under:
Pro昀椀t before tax from con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons  (9,667.09)  (7,530.71)

Income tax expense calculated at 31.20%  (3,016.13)  (2,349.58)

Deferred tax assets not recognised on certain expenses  284.93  1,070.39 

Income tax expense of con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons  (2,731.20)  (1,279.19)

Pro昀椀t before tax from discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons  232.11  1,185.68 

Income tax expense calculated at 31.20%  72.42  369.93 

Tax e昀昀ect of amounts which are exempt in 
calcula琀椀ng taxable income

 (72.42)  (369.93)

Reversal of deferred tax liabili琀椀es of 
discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons

 (193.66)  (923.55)

Income tax expense/(credit) of discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons  (193.66)  (923.55)
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35. Reorganiza琀椀on and discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons:  
 During the period under review, the company has disposed o昀昀 remaining wind mills by way of sales in the 

昀椀rst quarter of current year and hence wind farm business has been disclosed separately as discon琀椀nued 
opera琀椀on in the 昀椀nancial statement.

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Revenue:

Sale of products  111.04  1,019.79 

Income:
Other Income  140.95  469.76 

Expenses:

Total Expenses  (19.88)  (303.87)

Total  232.11  1,185.68 

36. Earnings per share

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
For con琀椀nuing opera琀椀ons
 Pro昀椀t available for equity share holders (Amt in Lakhs)  (6,930.67)  (6,251.52)

 Weighted average number of equity shares  in compu琀椀ng 
basic & diluted EPS (Nos.)

 234.60  234.60 

 Face value of the share – `  10.00  10.00 

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share – `  (29.54)  (26.65)

For discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons
Pro昀椀t available for equity share holders (Amt in Lakhs)  425.77  2,109.23 

 Weighted average number of equity shares  in compu琀椀ng 
basic & diluted EPS (Nos.)

 234.60  234.60 

Face value of the share – `  10.00  10.00 

Basic and diluted earnings per share – `  1.81  8.99 

For con琀椀nuing and discon琀椀nued opera琀椀ons
Pro昀椀t available for equity share holders (Amt in Lakhs)  (6,504.90)  (4,142.29)

 Weighted average number of equity shares  in compu琀椀ng 
basic & diluted EPS (Nos.)

 234.60  234.60 

 Face value of the share – `  10.00  10.00 

Basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share – `  (27.73)  (17.66)
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37. Employee bene昀椀ts
  As per Ind AS 19 "Employee Bene昀椀ts", the disclosures of Employee bene昀椀ts as de昀椀ned in the accoun琀椀ng 

Standard are given below:

 1 De昀椀ned bene昀椀ts plans
  I.  Expenses recognised in the Statement of Pro昀椀t and Loss and other comprehensive income 

for the year: 

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Gratuity

 Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Current service cost  45.27  51.55 

Net interest cost  7.48  6.92 

Past service cost  -    -   

Amount recognised in pro昀椀t and loss accounts 
(Refer note 31)

 52.75  58.47 

Acturial (gain)/Loss
a) arising from changes in 昀椀nancial assump琀椀on  (4.99)  (8.51)

b) arising from experience adjustments  (14.76)  (13.06)

c) arising from demographic assump琀椀ons  -    (0.13)

Return on plan assets excluded amount included 
in interest income 

 3.03  3.40 

Amount recognised in other comprehensive 
income 

 (16.72)  (18.30)

  II. Reconcilia琀椀on of opening and closing balances of de昀椀ned bene昀椀t obliga琀椀on:
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Gratuity

 Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
De昀椀ned bene昀椀ts obliga琀椀on at beginning of the 
year 

 288.54  309.82 

Interest cost  20.98  21.24 

Current service cost  45.27  51.55 

Past service cost  -    -   

Actuarial losses (gains)  (19.75)  (21.70)

Bene昀椀ts paid  (33.10)  (72.37)

De昀椀ned bene昀椀ts obliga琀椀on at the end of the 
year 

 301.94  288.54 
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  III. Reconcilia琀椀on of opening and closing balances of fair value of plan assests :
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Gratuity

 Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year  185.70  209.49 
Interest Income  13.50  14.32 
Contribu琀椀ons by employer  24.30  37.67 
Bene昀椀ts paid  (33.10)  (72.37)
Return on plan assets excluded amount included 
in interest income 

 (3.03)  (3.40)

Fair value of plan assets at year end  187.37  185.70 

  IV. Investment details:
Par琀椀culars Gratuity

 Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Investment with insurer 

(Investment in policy of LIC) 

98.00% 98.00%

Investment with insurer 

(Investment in policy of India First) 

2.00% 2.00%

  V. The Principal assump琀椀on used in determining gratuity obliga琀椀ons are as follows:
Par琀椀culars Gratuity

 Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Mortality table (LIC) 2006-08(Ul琀椀mate) 2006-08(Ul琀椀mate)
Discount rate (per annum ) 6.90% 6.90%
Rate of escala琀椀on in salary (per annum) 6.00% 6.00%

Es琀椀mates of future salary increases considered in actuarial valua琀椀on take account of 
in昀氀a琀椀on, seniority, promo琀椀on and other relevant factors such as supply and demand in the 
employment market.

 These  plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as interest rate risk, salary 
risk and Investment Risk.    

a) Interest risk : A fall in the discount rate which is linked to the G. Sec. Rate will increase 
the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate 
generally increases the mark to market value of the assets depending on the dura琀椀on 
of asset.   

b) Salary risk : The present value of de昀椀ned bene昀椀t plan liability is calculated by reference 
to the future salaries of members. As such, an increase in the salary of the members 
more than assumed level will increase the plan’s liability.   

c) Investment risk : The present value of the de昀椀ned bene昀椀t plan liability is calculated 
using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of 

the repor琀椀ng period on government bonds. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, 
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it will create a plan de昀椀cit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a rela琀椀vely balanced mix 
of investments in government securi琀椀es, and other debt instruments.

  VI Sensi琀椀vity Analysis
 Signi昀椀cant actuarial assump琀椀ons for the determina琀椀on of de昀椀ned obliga琀椀on are discount 

rate and expected salary increase. The sensi琀椀vity analysis below have been determined 
based on reasonably possible changes of the respec琀椀ve assump琀椀ons occurring at the end of 
the repor琀椀ng period, while holding all other assump琀椀ons constant.

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Gratuity

 Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Projected bene昀椀t obliga琀椀on on current 
assump琀椀ons

 301.94  288.54 

Delta e昀昀ect of +1% change in rate of discoun琀椀ng  (19.66)  (20.48)
Delta e昀昀ect of -1% change in rate of discoun琀椀ng  23.14  24.35 
Delta e昀昀ect of +1% change in rate of salary 
increase

 19.83  21.17 

Delta e昀昀ect of -1% change in rate of salary 
increase

 (17.36)  (18.17)

Delta e昀昀ect of +1% change in rate of employee 
turnover 

 2.92  2.67 

Delta e昀昀ect of -1% change in rate of employee 
turnover 

 (3.45)  (3.20)

  The sensi琀椀vity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the 
respec琀椀ve assump琀椀ons occurring at the end of the repor琀椀ng period, while holding all other 
assump琀椀ons constant.

The sensi琀椀vity analysis presented above may not be representa琀椀ve of the actual 
change in the projected bene昀椀t obligaton as it is unlikely that the change in assump琀椀on 
would occur in isola琀椀on of one another as some of the assump琀椀ons may be correlated.  
Furthermore, in presen琀椀ng the above sensi琀椀vity analysis, the present value of the projected 
bene昀椀t obliga琀椀on has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end 
of the repor琀椀ng period, which is the same method as applied in calcula琀椀ng the projected 
bene昀椀t obliga琀椀on as recognised in the balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assump琀椀ons used in preparing the sensi琀椀vity 
analysis from prior years.

  VIII E昀昀ect of plan on en琀椀ty's future cash 昀氀ows
   (i) Funding arragements and Funding policy

The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to 

the employees. Every year, the insurance company carries out a funding valua琀椀on based 
on the latest employee data provided by the company, Any de昀椀cit in the assets arising as 
a result of such valua琀椀on is funded by the Company.

   (ii) Expected contribu琀椀on during the next annual repor琀椀ng period
The Company’s best es琀椀mate of Contribu琀椀on during the next year is ` 105.48 Lakhs.
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  IX. Expected ou琀昀low in future years (as provided in actuarial report)
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Gratuity

As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Expected ou琀昀low in 1st year  102.17  97.58 
Expected ou琀昀low in 2nd year  6.75  4.81 
Expected ou琀昀low in 3rd year  14.87  8.62 
Expected ou琀昀low in 4th year  13.72  14.15 
Expected ou琀昀low in 5th year  22.49  12.55 
Expected ou琀昀low sum of years 6 to 10  71.13  73.59 
Expected ou琀昀low sum of years 11 and above  412.15  431.71 

 2 De昀椀ned contribu琀椀on plans
  Contribu琀椀on of De昀椀ned Contribu琀椀on Plan, recognised as expense for the year are as under:

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars  Year ended  

31st March, 2023
Year ended  

31st March, 2022
Employer's contribu琀椀on to provident fund  55.44  69.68 
Employer's contribu琀椀on to ESIC  16.92  23.08 
Total  72.36  92.75 

38. Capital commitments
Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Es琀椀mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on 
capital accounts and not provided for

 8.43  132.32 

39. Con琀椀ngent liabili琀椀es in respect of:
Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
a.  Income tax ma琀琀ers disputed in appeal  1,185.84  1,185.84 
b.  Custom duty payable on pending export obliga琀椀ons  1,455.78  1,455.78 
c.  Corporate guarantee  333.83  333.83 

 Note : In the opinion of the Company, the possibility rela琀椀ng to net ou琀昀low on the above accounts are 
remote.

40 Segment informa琀椀on
Opera琀椀ng segment have been iden琀椀昀椀ed on the basis of products / services and have been iden琀椀昀椀ed 
as per the quan琀椀a琀椀ve criteria speci昀椀ed in the IND AS 108. 

The company has iden琀椀昀椀ed two reportable segments viz. Tex琀椀le and Windmill. Segments have been 
iden琀椀昀椀ed and reported taking into account, the nature of products and services, the di昀昀ering risks and 
returns, the organiza琀椀on structure and the internal 昀椀nancial repor琀椀ng systems.

Disclosures required under Ind AS 108 - Opera琀椀ng Segments are as under
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 A) Primary segment : Business segment

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
External Sales Total External Sales Total

a. Segment revenue

 Tex琀椀le 26,089.90  26,089.90  42,106.35  42,106.35 
 Wind mill 111.04  111.04  1,019.79  1,019.79 
Segment total  26,200.94  43,126.14 

 Elimina琀椀ons  -    -   

 Total revenue  26,200.94  43,126.14 
b. Segment results

 Tex琀椀le  (5,076.93)  (3,253.30)
 Wind mill 232.11  1,185.68 
Segment total  (4,844.82)  (2,067.62)

Elimina琀椀ons
Total  (4,844.82)  (2,067.62)

Unallocable corporate 
expenses / (Income)

 -    (30.58)

Loss before interest etc.  (4,844.82)  (2,037.04)
Finance costs  4,590.15  4,307.97 
Loss before tax  (9,434.97)  (6,345.02)
Provision for tax  (2,930.07)  (2,202.74)
Loss a昀琀er tax  (6,504.90)  (4,142.27)
Total other comprehensive 

income

 11.50  12.59 

Total comprehensive income 

for the year

 (6,493.40)  (4,129.68)

c. Other informa琀椀on
  Deprecia琀椀on and amor琀椀sa琀椀on  

(allocable)

 Tex琀椀le  2,527.90  2,549.04 
 Wind mill 0.00  81.52 
Segment total  2,527.90  2,630.56 

 d. Segment assets and liabili琀椀es

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Segment 

Assets

Segment 

Liabili琀椀es
Segment 

Assets

Segment 

Liabili琀椀es
Tex琀椀le  52,783.03  46,642.84  61,729.27  49,914.73 
Wind Mill  -    -    1,130.05  311.00 
Segment Total  52,783.03  46,642.84  62,859.32  50,225.73 
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 B) Secondary segment : Geographical segment
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Year ended 

31st March, 2023
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
Segment revenue

a) In India  21,085.23  23,646.09 
b) Outside India  5,115.71  19,480.06 
Total  26,200.94  43,126.15 

Par琀椀culars As at 

 31st March, 2023
As at 

 31st March, 2022
Carrying cost of segment assets
a) In India  52,013.26  60,115.64 
b) Outside India  769.77  2,743.68 
Total  52,783.03  62,859.32 

Carrying cost of segment liabili琀椀es
a) In India  45,051.04  40,770.54 
b) Outside India  1,591.80  9,455.19 
Total  46,642.84  50,225.73 

41 Related party disclosures
 Related par琀椀es and their rela琀椀onship
 (a) Subsidiary company : wholy own subsidiary company
  AYE ESS Spinning Mills Private Limited

 (b) En琀椀ty controlled by one or more Key management personnel
Companies Firms

New Ahmedabad Synthe琀椀cs Pvt. Ltd. B. Kalpeshkumar & Co.
Vee Bee Tex琀椀le Pvt. Ltd. Parmanand Rajeshkumar
Rentex Weavers Ltd. Virendra Bhogilal & Co.
Twenty First Century Marke琀椀ng Ltd. Arora Agencies

Ennbee Tex琀椀les Pvt. Ltd. Parmanand Vinodkumar
V.B. Investment Pvt. Ltd. Pari Bhogilal Laxmichand
Pee Vee Synthe琀椀cs Pvt. Ltd. Parmanand Arora & Sons, HUF
Shipa Fabrics Pvt. Ltd. T.P. Vinodkumar, HUF
Kashvi Investments Pvt. Ltd. T.P. Rajeshkumar, HUF
Bhansali Tradelink Pvt. Ltd. K.V. Enterprise

A.V. Enterprise
A Star Fibres

Namit Enterprise

B.S.Tex琀椀le
Techtex
Triveni Interna琀椀onal
Panch Ra琀琀an Fabrics
Tex琀椀le India
M/s. Kashvi
Ashish V. Shah HUF
Kalpesh V. Shah HUF
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 (c) Key management personnel
Name Name

Vinodkumar P. Arora Ashish V. Shah
Kalpesh V. Shah Ketan Desai

Nipun V. Arora Yashaswini Pandey 

(w.e.f  07.10.2020 to 16.09.2021)
Rahul Makwana (w.e.f  16.09.2021)

 (d) Non - Execu琀椀ve Directors/ Independent Director
Name Name

Sanjay S. Majmudar Aar琀椀 Thakkar 
Ashok C. Gandhi Amol R. Dalal

 (e) Rela琀椀ves of key management personnel
Name Name

Anoli Shah Renu Arora

Pankaj V. Arora Rita Arora

Heena Khanna Kastura Rani Arora

Chinmaya P. Arora Bhrigu N. Arora
Jahanvi N. Arora Parul K. Shah
Bela A. Shah Pankil K. Shah
Pree琀椀 N. Arora Shikha Arora

Somni Chawla Sarthak P. Arora
Anuj A Shah Sushila Shah

Sela D. Jhaveri Kashvi Shah

Shyama Sethi Lata Khanna

Neelu Rajan Khurana

 Disclosure in respect of material transac琀椀ons with related par琀椀es
(` in Lakh)

Transac琀椀on Name of the Related 

Party

Transac琀椀on With the Par琀椀es Balance
Year ended  

31st March, 
2023

Year ended  

31st March, 
2022

As at 

31st March, 
2023

As at 

 31st March, 
2022

Loans / 
Advacne  

taken

Ennbee Tex琀椀les Pvt.Ltd  10.75  8.34  268.99  258.24 
Rentex Weavers Ltd  7.92  6.82  183.92  176.00 
Shipa Fabrics Pvt.Ltd  4.35  3.32  138.03  133.67 
Twenty First Century 

Mktg. Ltd.
 114.80  99.55  1,951.74  1,836.94 

New Ahmedabad Synt.
Pvt. Ltd.

 25.26  23.32  412.94  387.68 
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(` in Lakh)

Transac琀椀on Name of the Related 

Party

Transac琀椀on With the Par琀椀es Balance
Year ended  

31st March, 
2023

Year ended  

31st March, 
2022

As at 

31st March, 
2023

As at 

 31st March, 
2022

Loans/ 
Advance 

Repaid

Bhansali Tradelink Pvt 

Ltd

 0.25  0.26  4.26  4.01 

Pee Vee Synthe琀椀cs 
P.Ltd

 0.25  0.26  3.06  2.81 

Shipa Fabrics Pvt.Ltd ( 
Loan )

 4.35  -    138.03  133.67 

Vee Bee Tex琀椀les (P) Ltd  0.36  0.17  4.41  4.05 
Fixed 
Deposits 

taken

Pankajbhai V Arora  17.54  -3.45  336.56  319.02 
Nipun V Arora  16.59  -7.39  319.22  302.63 
Rajesh Arora  85.00  448.18  1,429.56  1,344.56 
Rita Arora  68.69  501.47  1,330.82  1,262.13 
Parmanand Arora  -    -2,106.34  -    -   

Vinod P Arora  60.24  -33.15  952.15  891.91 
Pree琀椀 N Arora  30.92  -152.49  583.09  552.18 
Nipun Vinodkumar 
Arora Huf

 8.88  130.30  139.19  130.30 

Pankaj Vinodkumar 
Arora Huf

 8.88  130.30  139.19  130.30 

Parmanand Arora & 
Sons, HUF

 -    -77.31  -    -   

T.P. Vinodkumar, HUF  7.31  -0.26  114.52  107.21 
T.P. Rajeshkumar, HUF  6.20  -0.28  96.63  90.43 
Kastura Rani Arora  -55.15  -4.15  -    55.15 
Shyama Sethi  11.88  -    11.88  -   

Lata Khanna  11.88  -    11.88  -   

Neelu Rajan Khurana  11.88  -    11.88  -   

Renu Arora  101.30  472.54  1,926.91  1,825.61 
Fixed 
Deposits 

taken

Sarthak P Arora  9.35  130.29  143.89  134.54 
Chinmaya P. Arora  0.34  -0.02  5.23  4.89 
Kashviben Kalpeshbhai 

Shah

 -    -    -    -   

Shikha Arora  28.08  -74.75  540.73  512.65 
Heena Khanna  0.78  -0.10  22.60  21.82 
BHRIGU N. ARORA  8.24  130.28  141.77  133.52 
Parulben Kalpeshbhai 

Shah

 2.23  2.23  34.81  32.59 

Somani Chawla  2.34  -0.29  66.35  64.01 
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(` in Lakh)

Transac琀椀on Name of the Related 

Party

Transac琀椀on With the Par琀椀es Balance
Year ended  

31st March, 
2023

Year ended  

31st March, 
2022

As at 

31st March, 
2023

As at 

 31st March, 
2022

Sale of goods Arora Agencies  -1.12  -    263.41  1,877.45 
Parmanand 

Vinodkumar
 0.04  -    77.48  2,194.77 

Panch Ra琀琀an fabrics  1,626.98  1,788.84  2,517.03  1,596.57 
VIRENDRABHAI 
BHOGILAL & CO. 

 9.33  143.86  -    -   

NAMIT ENTERPRISE  -    -    -    181.73 
Techtex  -0.81  -    -    17.28 

Lease Rent Techtex  2.03  1.17  0.40  17.28 

(` in Lakh)

Transac琀椀on Name of the Related 

Party

Transac琀椀on With the Par琀椀es Balance
Year ended  

31st March, 
2023

Year ended  

31st March, 
2022

As at 

31st March, 
2023

As at 

 31st March, 
2022

Job Work 
Charges

VIRENDRABHAI 
BHOGILAL & CO. 

 77.53  75.70  97.98  27.92 

A.V. ENTERPRISE  1.49  4.73  7.08  5.54 
B.KALPESHKUMAR & 
CO.

 1.49  5.20  7.01  5.47 

K.V. ENTERPRISE  1.48  4.73  7.08  5.54 
NAMIT ENTERPRISE  19.00  39.74  0.84  -   

B S TEXTILES  62.99  50.14  200.67  136.43 
Interest 

on Loans / 
Advance/ FDs

Vinod P Arora  69.89  76.28  101.22  891.91 
Parmanand Arora  -    11.68  -    -   

Rajesh Arora  105.26  108.08  149.87  1,344.56 
Pankaj V Arora  25.06  26.89  32.86  319.02 
Pankaj Vinodkumar 
Arora HUF

 10.05  9.37  17.31  130.30 

Nipunbhai V Arora  23.71  25.65  31.87  302.63 
Chinmaya P. Arora  0.38  0.39  0.63  4.89 
Sarthak P Arora  10.38  9.70  18.01  134.54 
Shikha Arora  40.12  46.25  54.48  512.65 
Parulben Kalpeshbhai 

Shah

 2.48  2.48  4.81  32.59 
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(` in Lakh)

Transac琀椀on Name of the Related 

Party

Transac琀椀on With the Par琀椀es Balance
Year ended  

31st March, 
2023

Year ended  

31st March, 
2022

As at 

31st March, 
2023

As at 

 31st March, 
2022

Bhrigu N Arora  10.30  9.61  16.89  133.52 
Renu Arora  144.71  148.36  172.81  1,825.61 
Rita Arora  98.13  101.17  141.32  1,262.13 
Kastura Rani Arora  1.46  4.33  -    55.15 
Pree琀椀 N Arora  44.17  52.92  47.74  552.18 
Heena Khanna  1.73  1.87  1.60  21.82 
Shyama Sethi  0.62  -    0.56  -   

Lata Khanna  0.62  -    0.56  -   

Neelu Rajan Khurana  0.62  -    0.56  -   

Somani Chawla  5.12  5.47  4.35  64.01 
Nipun Vinodkumar 
Arora Huf

 10.05  9.37  17.31  130.30 

Parmanand Arora & 
Sons, HUF

 -    0.47  -    -   

T.P. Rajeshkumar H.U.F.  6.89  7.82  13.13  90.43 
T.P. Vinodkumar H.U.F.  8.13  9.59  16.02  107.21 
Kashviben Kalpeshbhai 

Shah

 -    -    -    -   

Bhansali Tradelink Pvt 

Ltd

 0.39  0.39  4.26  4.01 

Ennbee Tex琀椀le Pvt. Ltd 
( Loan )

 24.83  23.91  268.99  258.24 

New Ahmedabad 

Synthe琀椀cs Pvt. Ltd
 40.33  35.55  412.94  387.68 

Pee Vee Synthe琀椀cs 
P.Ltd

 0.28  0.28  3.06  2.81 

Rentex Weavers Ltd ( 
Loan )

 17.02  16.28  183.92  176.00 

Shipa Fabrics Pvt.Ltd ( 
Loan )

 12.73  12.50  138.03  133.67 

Twenty First Century 

Marke琀椀ng Ltd ( Loan )
 179.36  170.06  1,951.74  1,836.94 

Vee Bee Tex琀椀les (P) Ltd  0.40  0.39  4.41  4.05 
Commission 

& Brokerage
Parmanand 

Vinodkumar
 54.36  48.54  -    -   

Arora Agencies  34.34  46.38  -    -   

Namit Enterprise  -    -    -    -   
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(` in Lakh)

Transac琀椀on Name of the Related 

Party

Transac琀椀on With the Par琀椀es Balance
Year ended  

31st March, 
2023

Year ended  

31st March, 
2022

As at 

31st March, 
2023

As at 

 31st March, 
2022

Remunera琀椀on Vinodbhai P Arora  36.00  36.00  6.00  3.00 

Ashishbhai V Shah  30.00  30.00  5.00  2.50 

Nipunbhai V Arora  12.00  12.00  2.00  1.00 

Kalpeshbhai V Shah  18.00  18.00  3.00  1.50 

Salary Pankajbhai V Arora  12.00  12.00  2.00  1.00 

Pankilbhai K Shah  12.00  12.00  2.00  1.00 

Rahulkumar 

Chandubhai Makwana

 7.80  4.25  1.20  0.60 

Yashaswini Pandey( 
upto 30.09.2021)

 -    3.20  -    -   

Ketan Desai  21.50  19.49  3.00  1.50 

Si琀�ng Fees Sanjay S. Majmudar  0.50  0.55  0.18  0.09 

Ashok C. Gandhi  0.50  0.55  -    -   

Amol R. Dalal  0.50  0.55  -    -   

Aar琀椀 Thakkar  0.45  0.30  -    -   

42. Financial risk management
The Company’s 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es comprise mainly of borrowing, trade payables and other payables. 
The Company’s 昀椀nancial assets comprise mainly of cash and cash equivalent, other balance with banks, 
loans, trade receivable and other receivable. These risks include market risk (including currency risk, 
interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.

 (A)  Market risk

The Company is exposed to market risks on account of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange 
rates, liquidity and other market changes. These risks a昀昀ect income and expenses of the Company. 
The objec琀椀ve of the Management of the Company is to maintain this risk within the acceptable 
parameters, while op琀椀mising returns.

  (i) Interest rate risk

The Company is mainly exposed to interest rate risk due to its variable interest rate 
borrowings. The interest rate risk arises due to uncertain琀椀es about the future market 
interest rate of these borrowings.

The Company monitors 昀氀uctual琀椀ons in interest rate con琀椀nuously and has laid policies and 
guidelines including to minimise impact of interest rate risk.



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

AArvee Denims AnD exports LtD.

122  34th ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

   Interest rate sensi琀椀vity
   A change in 50 bps in interest rates would have following impact on pro昀椀t before tax

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Year ended 

31st March, 2023
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
50 bps increase would decrease the pro昀椀t before 
tax by

 128.29  141.15 

50 bps decrease would increase the pro昀椀t before 
tax by

 128.29  141.15 

  (ii) Foreign currency risk
The Company operates interna琀椀onally and por琀椀on of the business is transacted in several 
currencies and consequently the Company is exposed to foreign exchange risk through its 
sales in overseas and purhcased from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies.

Exposure on foreign currency sales and purchases are managed through the Company’s 
hedging policy, which is reviewed periodically to ensure that the results from 昀氀uctua琀椀ng 
currency exhcnage rates are appropriately managed. The company strives to achieve 
asset liability o昀昀set of foreign currency exposures and only the net posi琀椀on is hedged. 
Consequently, the overall objec琀椀ve of the foreign currency risk management is to minimize 
the short term currency impact on its revenue and cash-昀氀ow in order to improve the 
predictability of the 昀椀nancial performance.

The year end Foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a deriva琀椀ve 
instruments or otherwise are given below; 

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Amount Amount Amount Amount

(Foreign 

Currency)
(`) (Foreign 

Currency)
(`)

Amount payable in 

foreign currency

$20.83  1,712.86 $124.41  9,418.09 
€ 0.44  39.34 € 0.39  32.92 

Amount receivable in 

foreign currency

$11.98  984.81 $38.83  2,946.83 
€ 0.03  2.92  -    -   

 (B) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of 昀椀nancial loss to the company if customers or counter party to a 昀椀nancial 
instruments fails to meet its contractual obliga琀椀ons and arises principally from the company’s 
receivables from customers. 

All trade receivables are subject to credit risk exposure. The Company’s exposure to credit risk 
is in昀氀uenced mainly by the individual characteris琀椀cs of each customer. The demographics of the 
customer, including the default risk of the industry and country, in which the customer operates, 

also has an in昀氀uence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through established 
policies, controls rela琀椀ng to credit approvals and procedures for con琀椀nuously monitoring 
the creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal 

course of business.
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For trade receivables, the Company applies the simpli昀椀ed approach permi琀琀ed by Ind AS 109 
Financial Instrument, which requires expected life琀椀me losses to be recognized from ini琀椀al 
recogni琀椀on of the receivables. When determining whether the credit risk of a 昀椀nancial asset 
has increased signi昀椀cantly since ini琀椀al recogni琀椀on and when es琀椀ma琀椀ng expected credit losses, 
the Company considers reasonable and relevant informa琀椀on that is available without undue 
cost or e昀昀ort. This includes both quan琀椀ta琀椀ve and qualita琀椀ve informa琀椀on and analysis, based 
on the Company’s historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking informa琀椀on.

  The reconcilia琀椀on of ECL (Expected Credit Loss) is as follows: (` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Year ended 

31st March, 2023
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year  58.83  125.67 

Provision made / (reversed) during the year  -    (66.84)

Balance at the end of the year  58.83  58.83 

 (C) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is de昀椀ned as the risk that the Company will not be able to se琀琀le or meet its 
obliga琀椀ons on 琀椀me, or at a reasonable price. The objec琀椀ve of liquidity risk management is to 
maintain su昀케cient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. 
The Company generates cash 昀氀ows from opera琀椀ons to meet its 昀椀nancial obliga琀椀ons, maintains 
adequate liquid assets in the form of cash & cash equivalents and has undrawn short term line 
of credits from banks to ensure necessary liquidity. The Company closely monitors its liquidity 
posi琀椀on and deploys a robust cash management system. 

The table below summarises the maturity pro昀椀le of the Company’s 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es based on 
contractual undiscounted payments:

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars <1 year >1 year but 

<5 years

More than 

5 years

Total

Year ended March 31, 2023
Interest bearing borrowings  23,013.72  16,639.22  -    39,652.94 

Trade payables  5,712.65  -    -    5,712.65 

Other 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es  335.78  -    0.70  336.48 

Total  29,062.15  16,639.22  0.70  45,702.07 

Year ended March 31, 2022
Interest bearing borrowings  25,560.82  15,729.85  -    41,290.67 

Trade payables  7,686.64  -    -    7,686.64 

Other 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es  270.03  -    0.70  270.73 

Total  33,517.49  15,729.85  0.70  49,248.04 
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43. Capital Management

 The primary objec琀椀ve of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains an e昀케cient 
capital structure and healthy capital ra琀椀os in order to support its business and maximise shareholder 
value.     

 The Company manages its capital structure with a view to ensure that it will be able to con琀椀nue as a 
going concern while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the op琀椀miza琀椀on of the debt and 
equity balance.     

 a) The net debt to equity ra琀椀o at the end of the repor琀椀ng period was as follows:
(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 

31st March, 2023
As at 

31st March, 2022
Non-Current borrowings  16,639.22  15,729.85 
Current maturi琀椀es of non-current borrowings  2,645.58  2,182.55 
Current borrowings  20,368.14  23,378.27 
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  166.27  91.70 
Total Debt  39,819.21  41,382.37 

Less: Cash and bank balances  687.71  1,631.16 
Net Debt  39,131.50  39,751.21 
Equity  6,140.19  12,633.59 
Net debt to equity ra琀椀o 637.30% 314.65%

 b) Catagories of 昀椀nancial instruments: (` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Carrying 

Value
Fair Value Carrying 

Value
Fair Value

Financial assets
Measured at amor琀椀sed cost
Investments (non current)  -    -    -    -   

Security deposit  27.99  27.99  30.12  30.12 
Trade receivable  12,422.09  12,422.09  16,610.55  0.21 
Cash and cash equivalent  15.99  15.99  986.46  0.01 
Other bank balances  671.72  671.72  644.69  0.01 
Other 昀椀nancial assets  515.80  515.80  517.98  0.00 
Total 昀椀nancial assets at 
amor琀椀sed cost (A)

 13,653.59  13,653.59  18,789.81  30.35 

Measured at fair value 

through other comprehensive 
income (B)

 -    -    -    -   

Measured at fair value 

through pro昀椀t and loss (C)
 -    -    (1.00)  -   

Total 昀椀nancial assets 

(A + B + C)
 13,653.59  13,653.59  18,788.81  30.35 
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Par琀椀culars As at 31st March, 2023 As at 31st March, 2022
Carrying 

Value
Fair Value Carrying 

Value
Fair Value

Financial liabili琀椀es
Measured at amor琀椀sed cost
Borrowings non current  16,639.22  16,639.22  15,729.85  15,729.85 
Borrowings current  23,013.72  23,013.72  25,560.82  25,560.82 
Trade payables  5,712.65  5,712.65  7,686.64  7,686.64 
Other 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es  335.78  335.78  270.03  270.03 
Total 昀椀nancial liabili琀椀es 
carried at amor琀椀sed cost

 45,701.37  45,701.37  49,247.34  49,247.34 

44. Government Grant

Export Promo琀椀on Capital Goods (EPCG): This scheme allows import of certain capital goods including 
spares at zero duty subject to an export obliga琀椀on for the duty saved on such capital goods. The 
duty saved on capital goods imported under EPCG scheme being Government Grant, is accounted as a 

Capital Grant as stated in the Accoun琀椀ng policy on Government Grant.

The Government Grant above represents unamor琀椀sed amount of the subsidy referred to below, with 
the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment.

45. Expenditure in foreign currency (` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Year ended 

31st March, 2023
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
Traveling  4.08  1.15 
Commission on Export Sales  121.88  98.08 
Labouratory & Tes琀椀ng Fees  -    0.11 
Total  125.95  99.34 

46. Earnings in foreign currency (` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Year ended 

31st March, 2023
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
FOB value of Export Sales  5,115.71  19,480.06 

47. During the year, the gross amount to be spent by the Company for Corporate Social Responsibility 

expenditure is ` Nil and amount spent is ` NIL (As at 31.03.2020  `  9.23 Lakh and amount spent is ` NIL).

48. Disclosure under the MSMED Act, 2006     
 The Following disclosure are made for the amounts due to the Micro and Small enterprise as at  31st 

March-2023    

(` in Lakh)

Par琀椀culars Year ended 

31st March, 2023
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
The Principal amount and the interest due thereon 

remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each 

accoun琀椀ng year

 247.98  485.92 

Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise  123.10  361.05 
Interest due thereon outstanding to any supplier  -    -   
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Par琀椀culars Year ended 

31st March, 2023
Year ended 

31st March, 2022
Interest paid by the Company  -    -   

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making 

payment

 -    -   

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid  124.88  124.88 
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable 

even in the succeding year, un琀椀l such date when the interest 
dues as above are actully paid to the small enterprise, for 

the purpose of allowance as a deduc琀椀ble expenditure under 
sec琀椀on 23 of MSMEDA

 -    -   

The company has made required disclosure for outstanding amount due and payable to Micro and Small 
enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006 as per the informa琀椀on/data rela琀椀ng to micro, medium and small 
enterprises available with the company. Auditors are relied upon and accepted the informa琀椀on/data 
prepared and submi琀琀ed by the management as such. 

49. The company is con琀椀nuing with the balance of MAT credit aggrega琀椀ng to ` 1357.45 lacs recognized 
up to March 31, 2023. Based on the future projec琀椀ons of pro昀椀tability and tax liabili琀椀es computed in 
accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961, the management of the company believes 
that there shall be su昀케cient future taxable pro昀椀t and the company shall be required to pay normal 
taxes within the period speci昀椀ed u/s. 115JAA of the Income Tax Act and en琀椀re amount of MAT credit 
shall be seto昀昀/ u琀椀lised. Therefore, in accordance with the Guidance Note on Minimum Alternate Tax 
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 issued by the Ins琀椀tute of Chartered Accountants of India, such MAT 
credit is properly recognized in the books.

50. Persuant to publica琀椀on of no琀椀ce in the O昀케cial Gaze琀琀e by the ROC, Gujarat, the name of the subsidiary 
i.e. Aye Ess Spinning Mills Pvt. Ltd. (herein a昀琀er referred to as ‘Aye Ess’) is stricked-o昀昀 from Register of 
Companies w.e.f 25/09/2021. The investment in Aye Ess amoun琀椀ng to ` 1.00 lakh had been provided 
as loss in diminu琀椀on in value of investment in subsidiary in 昀椀nancial statements of the company for 
earlier year. On account of above, the investments in subsidiary and provision for diminu琀椀on in value 
of investments both have been adjusted in current year.

51. During the year under review, the company has entered into Memorandum of understanding for sale 

of certain Wind Mills and has also iden琀椀昀椀es speci昀椀ed part of the land at Matoda Plant, Ahmedabad 
for sale. Due to pending legal/other formali琀椀es to be complied with by the company, resultant gain 
on proposed disposal of such assets is not recognized in the books and en琀椀re such assets has been 
disclosed separately as Non- current assets held for disposal. The same has been properly valued 
and separately disclosed in the 昀椀nancial results as per the requirements of Ind AS 105. Further, as at 
March 31, 2023, the management is of the opinion that there is no impairment in exis琀椀ng assets and 
therefore no provision is required to be made for impairment of assets. Auditors have relied upon and 
accepted the same.

52. In the opinion of the management of the company, all the current/non-current assets are approximately 
of the value stated if realized in the ordinary course of business. Further, the company has recorded all 
known liabili琀椀es and adequate provisions have been made for all known losses and claims of material 
amounts. No events or transac琀椀ons have occurred since the date of Balance Sheet or are pending 
that would have a material e昀昀ect on the 昀椀nancial statements as at March 31, 2023. The yearend 
various stocks have been physically veri昀椀ed, valued and cer琀椀昀椀ed by the management and no material 
discrepancies were observed between book stock and physical stock. The management is of the 
opinion that there is no impairment in exis琀椀ng assets and therefore no provision is required to be 
made for impairment of assets. Auditors have relied upon and accepted the same as such.
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53. In absence of taxable income during the year under review, no provision for current tax is required 
to be made. Further, the company has evaluated the tax posi琀椀ons by assessing the prevalent tax laws 
and compared the current posi琀椀on with prior years and past precedents and the consistency of data 
used in the deferred tax assets amount calcula琀椀on and other relevant facts, the management is of the 
opinion that, there is a virtual certainty in future as to taxable income as per the normal provisions of 
the Income Tax Act -1961, therefore, deferred tax assets is recognized on unabsorbed business loss as 
at March 31, 2023 which is in compliance with the requirements of Ind AS 12 ‘Income Taxes’.

54. Other statutory informa琀椀on 
(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been ini琀椀ated or 

pending against the Compnay for holding any Benami property.

(ii) The Company does not have any transac琀椀ons with companies struck o昀昀.

(iii) The Company does not have any charges or sa琀椀sfac琀椀on which is yet to be registered with ROC 
beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the 
昀椀nancial year.

(v) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or 昀椀nancial ins琀椀tu琀椀on or 
government or any government authority.

(vi) The Company has not any such transac琀椀on which is not recorded in the books of accounts that 
has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or en琀椀ty(ies), 
including foreign en琀椀琀椀es (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en琀椀琀椀es iden琀椀昀椀ed in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries

(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or en琀椀ty(ies), including foreign 
en琀椀琀椀es (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in wri琀椀ng or otherwise) that 
the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or en琀椀琀椀es iden琀椀昀椀ed in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul琀椀mate Bene昀椀ciaries.

55. Events occurring a昀琀er the balance sheet date
The Company evaluates events and transac琀椀ons that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date 
but prior to the 昀椀nancial statements to determine the necessity for recogni琀椀on and/or repor琀椀ng of 
any of these events and transac琀椀ons in the 昀椀nancial statements. As of 30th May, 2023 there were no 

subsequent events to be recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.
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56. Ra琀椀os

Par琀椀culars Numerator  Denominator 31st 

March, 
2023

31st 

March, 
2022

% 
Variance

Reason 

for 

variance

(a)  Current Ra琀椀o Current 

Asset

 Current 

Liabili琀椀es 
 0.87  1.03 -15.56% NA

(b)  Debt-Equity 
Ra琀椀o

Total Debt Shareholder’s 

Equity
637.30% 314.65% 102.54% refer 

note:i 

(c)  Debt Service 

Coverage Ra琀椀o
Earnings for 

debt service 

= Net pro昀椀t 
a昀琀er taxes 
+ Non-cash 
opera琀椀ng 
expenses+ 
昀椀nance cost

Debt service 

= Interest & 
Lease Payments 

+ Principal 
Repayments

 0.10  0.43 -77.23% refer 

note:ii

(d)  Return on 

Equity Ra琀椀o
Net Pro昀椀ts 
a昀琀er taxes

Average 

Shareholder’s 

Equity

-69.30% -28.18% 145.90% refer 

note:iii

(e)  Inventory 

turnover ra琀椀o
Cost of 

Goods Sold

Average 

Inventory

 1.40  1.23 14.37% NA

(f)  Trade 

Receivables 

turnover ra琀椀o

Net credit 

sales = 

Gross credit 

sales - sales 

return

Average Trade 

Receivable

 1.78  1.52 17.23% NA

(g)  Trade payables 

turnover ra琀椀o
Net Credit 

Purchases

Average Trade 

Payable

 2.90  2.37 22.64% refer 

note:iv

(h)  Net capital 

turnover ra琀椀o
Net sales = 

Total sales - 

sales return 

Average Working 

capital = Current 

assets – 

Current liabili琀椀es

 (17.24)  23.32 -173.93% refer 

note:v

(i) Net pro昀椀t ra琀椀o Net Pro昀椀t 
a昀琀er taxes 

 Net sales = Total 

sales - sales 

return 

-25.20% -10.11% 149.32% refer 

note:vi

(j)  Return on 
Capital 

employed

Earnings 

before 

interest and 

taxes 

Capital Employed 

= Tangible Net 

Worth + Total 
Debt

-19.06% -6.67% 185.74% refer 

note:vii

(k)  Return on 

investment 

 Finance 

Income 

Time weighted 

average 

Investment 

 -    -    -    NA 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023

AArvee Denims AnD exports LtD.

12934th ANNUAL REPORT 2022-2023

Note on ra琀椀os :
(i)  Increase in debt equity ra琀椀o is on account of reduc琀椀on in shareholders fund due to losses incurred 

by the company in current year.

(ii)  Debt service coverage Ra琀椀o change due to increase in borrowings in current year.

(iii)  Return on equity ra琀椀o is change due to reduc琀椀on in shareholders fund in current year.

(iv)  Trade Payable turnover ra琀椀o is change due to higher payout during the year with be琀琀er cash昀氀ow.

(v)  Net Capital Turnover ra琀椀o is change due to Decrease in sales turnover of the company 
in current year.

(vi)  Net Pro昀椀t Turnover ra琀椀o is change due to Decrease in sales turnover in current year.

(vii)  Return on capital employed ra琀椀o is change due to decrease in sales turnover in current year.

57. Previous Year 昀椀gures have been regrouped/ rearranged wherever considered necessary.

58. The 昀椀nancial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on 30th May, 2023.

For and on behalf of  
M/s. Pankaj R. Shah & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants Aarvee Denims and Exports Limited
Registra琀椀on No. : 107361W
CA Nilesh Shah Vinod P. Arora Kalpesh V. Shah
Partner Chairman & Managing Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.107414  (DIN:00007065) (DIN:00007262)
 Ketan Desai Ashish Shah
 Chief Financial O昀케cer Managing Director
  (DIN:00007201)
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad 
Date  : 30th May, 2023  Date  : 30th May, 2023
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